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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Chefs’ Warebe, Inc. (the “Company”) contains forward-lookstgtements. Forward-looking
statements provide our current expectations ochsts of future events and are not statementstifridal fact. These forward-looking
statements include information about possible surmed future events, including, among other thidggussion and analysis of our future
financial condition, results of operations, ouaggic plans and objectives, cost managementdiiguand ability to refinance our indebtedness
as it matures, anticipated capital expenditured éatess to capital) required to complete projectgunts of cash distributions to our
stockholders in the future, if any, and other nratté/ords such as “anticipates,” “expects,” “intefidplans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates”
and variations of these words and similar expressare intended to identify forwatdeking statements. These statements are not geaso
future performance and are subject to risks, uat#its and other factors, some of which are beymndaontrol, are difficult to predict and/or
could cause actual results to differ materiallynirthose expressed or forecasted in the forwardibgodtatements.

Forwardiooking statements involve inherent uncertainty eray ultimately prove to be incorrect or false. Yaye cautioned not to place unc
reliance on forward-looking statements. Excepttasrvise may be required by law, we undertake rigation to update or revise forward-
looking statements to reflect changed assumptitiespccurrence of unanticipated events or actuataiimg results. Our actual results could
differ materially from those anticipated in thesewiard-looking statements as a result of variogtofa, including, but not limited to, the
following:

* our success depends to a significant extent upoergeeconomic conditions, including disposable@ine levels and changes in
consumer discretionary spendit

» conditions beyond our control could materially affthe cost and/or availability of our specialtpdoproducts and/or interrupt our
distribution network

* our business is a Ic-margin business and our profit margins may be seagb inflationary and deflationary pressur

» group purchasing organizations may become moreeaictiour industry and increase their efforts td adr customers as members of
these organization

* because our foodservice distribution operationsaneentrated in certain culinary markets, we aseaptible to economic and other
developments, including adverse weather conditionthese area:

» damage to our reputation or lack of acceptanceipEpecialty food products and/or the brands weydarexisting and new markets
could materially and adversely impact our businfisancial condition or results of operatiol

» our customers are generally not obligated to comtipurchasing products from 1

» we have experienced losses due to our inabiligotiect accounts receivable in the past and coxgbegence increases in such losses
in the future if our customers are unable to pa&jrttebts to us in a timely manner or at

» product liability claims could have a material acheeeffect on our business, financial conditiomesults of operation:
* increased fuel costs may have a material advefset@n our business, financial condition or resolftoperations

* new information or attitudes regarding diet andlthear adverse opinions about the health effecthefspecialty food products we
distribute could result in changes in consumemeggtiabits, which could have a material adverseceffe our business, financial
condition or results of operatior

» we have significant competition from a variety ofisces, and we may not be able to compete sucdlgs:

 a significant portion of our future growth is degent upon our ability to expand our operationsunexisting markets and to penet
new markets through acquisitior

* our ability to consummate acquisitions is condiédmupon having sufficient availability under ounige secured credit facilities or
alternatively the ability to obtain additional fimeing in amounts necessary to finance the purgbiase for the businesses we may
acquire;

» we may have difficulty managing and facilitatingr duture growth;
» our substantial indebtedness may limit our abtltitynvest in the ongoing needs of our busin

« we may be unable to obtain debt or other finandimguding financing necessary to execute on oquaition strategy, on favorable
terms or at all

+ information technology system failures or breaatfesur network security could interrupt our opevat and adversely affect our
business
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» our recent investments in information technologymat produce the benefits that we anticip

* we may not be able to adequately protect our extglll property, which, in turn, could harm theueabf our brands and adversely
affect our busines:

* our business operations and future developmentidzeikignificantly disrupted if we lose key membefrsur management tea

» our insurance policies may not provide adequatel$enf coverage against all claims and fluctuaiimsgirance requirements and costs
could negatively impact our profitability, and iewail to establish proper reserves and adequattignate future expenses, our self-
insured group medical, workers’ compensation ligbdnd automobile liability plans may adverselfeaf our business, financial
condition or results of operatior

* increases in our labor costs, including as a regu#bor shortages, the price or unavailabilityrefurance and changes in government
regulation, could slow our growth or harm our besy

* we are subject to significant governmental regatg!

» compliance with Section 404 of the Sarba@edey Act of 2002 requires our management to desaotestantial time to new compliar
initiatives, and if our independent registered puhtcounting firm is unable to provide an unquedifattestation report on our internal
controls, our stock price could be adversely affer

+ federal, state and local tax rules may adversepathour business, financial condition or resultegerations
» we do not intend to pay dividends for the foreséefliure and our stock may not appreciate in v

» concentration of ownership among our existing etieewfficers, directors and their affiliates maepent new investors from
influencing significant corporate decisiot

» our issuance of preferred stock could adversebcatiolders of our common stock and discourag&enizer;
 our ability to raise capital in the future may bweited;

« future issuances of equity securities to raisetahpncluding, but not limited to, capital to finee the acquisition of businesses we
identify as acquisition targets, will cause dilutim our then current stockholders; ¢

» some provisions of our charter documents and Detaleav may have anti-takeover effects that coustairage an acquisition of us
by others, even if an acquisition would be benafith our stockholders, and may prevent attemptsunystockholders to replace or
remove our current manageme

This list of risks and uncertainties, however,iéyca summary of some of the most important facémd is not intended to be exhaustive. You
should carefully review the risks that are setifamder the caption “Risk Factors” included in Raltem 1A of this Form 10-K. New factors
that are not currently known to us or of which we eurrently unaware may also emerge from timénte that could materially and adversely
affect us.

Unless this Form 10-K indicates otherwise or thetert otherwise requires, the terms “The Chefs’ &dause,” “we,” “our,” “our Company,”
“the Company” or “us” as used in this Form 10-Kerefo The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its subsekari
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Iltem 1. Business

We are a premier distributor of specialty food pratd in the United States. We are focused on sgithi@ specific needs of chefs who own
and/or operate some of the nation’s leading meivwediindependent restaurants, fine dining estatsléstits, country clubs, hotels, caterers,
culinary schools and specialty food stores. Weebelithat we have a distinct competitive advantageeiving these customers as a result of ol
extensive selection of distinctive and hard-to-fapecialty and center-of-the-plate food produats,oduct knowledge and our customer
service.

We define specialty food products as gourmet faasingredients that are of the highest grade jtguai style as measured by their
uniqueness, exotic origin or particular processimghod. Our product portfolio includes over 20, 88ck-keeping units, or SKUs, and is
comprised primarily of imported and domestic spggimod products, such as artisan charcuteriegiafig cheeses, unique oils and vinegars,
hormone-free protein, truffles, caviar and cho@l@ur center-of-the-plate products include custotrsteaks, seafood and other protein. We
also offer an extensive line of broadline food pratd, including cooking oils, butter, eggs, milldgtour. When marketing our products to our
customers, we focus our efforts on chefs, and vievwethat, by offering a wide selection of botlstdictive and hard-to-find products, togethel
with staple broadline food products, we are abldifferentiate ourselves from larger, traditioned#dline foodservice distributors, while
simultaneously enabling our customers to utilizeasisheir primary foodservice distributor.

Since the formation of our predecessor in 1985haxe expanded our distribution network, producta@n and customer base both
organically and through acquisitions. From Decenier2009 to December 28, 2012, our net revenwsased approximately $209 million
approximately $480 million. During these periodsl &mprior years, our sales to both new and exdstunstomers have increased as a result of
an increase in the breadth and depth of our prgurtfolio, our commitment to customer service, éfitorts of our experienced and
sophisticated sales professionals, the increasedfutechnology in the operations and managemeoaiobusiness and our ongoing
consolidation of the fragmented specialty foodsmrdistribution industry, including acquisitionsSan Francisco, Washington, D.C., Miami,
New York City, Las Vegas, Portland, Columbus ando@inati.

Competitive Strengths

We believe that, during our 28-year history, weénaehieved, developed and/or refined the follovamgngths which provide us with a distinct
competitive position in the foodservice distributimdustry and also the opportunity to achieve sopenargins relative to most large broadl
foodservice distributors:

Leading Distributor of Specialty Food Products imiW of the Key Culinary MarkeiBased on our management’s industry knowledge and
experience, we believe we are the largest distitaft specialty food products in the New York, Wiagjton, D.C., San Francisco and Los
Angeles metropolitan markets as measured by nes.séle believe these markets, along with a numbether markets we serve, including
Vegas, Miami, Philadelphia, Boston, Napa ValleyrtRad, Seattle, Columbus and Cincinnati, creatksai the culinary trends for the rest of
the United States and provide us with valuablegimsinto the latest culinary and menu practicestieumore, we believe our established
relationships with many of the top chefs, culinachools and dining establishments in these keypanfimarkets have benefited us when we
entered into new markets where we believe thatsciiebur potential customers were generally knogéablle of our brand and commitment to
quality and excellence from their experience wogkiim other markets which we serve or through thensonal relationships throughout the
culinary industry.

Expansive Product OfferinWe offer an extensive portfolio of high-quality sg#ty food products, ranging from basic ingredgeand staples,
such as milk and flour, custom cut steaks and selato delicacies and specialty ingredients souficed North America, Europe, Asia and
South America, which we believe helps our custordesnguish their menu items. We carry more th@y@0 SKUs and we constantly
evaluate our portfolio and introduce new productaddress regional trends and preferences andesthairwe are on the leading edge of
broader culinary trends. With our August 2012 asifjoin of Michael's Finer Meats, LLC (“Michael’'s"e increased our offering of center-of-
the-plate products. Through our importing divisiam provide our customers with access to a podfoliexclusive items, including regional
olive oils, truffles and charcuterie from Italy, @p, France and other Mediterranean countriesdditian, and as evidence of our commitment
to aid our customers in creating unique and inriegahenu items, we regularly utilize our sourcietptionships and industry insights to
procure additional products that we do not regulealrry but that our customers specifically requést believe that the breadth and depth of
our product portfolio facilitates our customerslliypto distinguish and enhance their menu offgerand differentiates us from larger
traditional broadline foodservice distributors. Example, we provide a selection of more than Zifierdnt varieties of olive oil, while large
broadline foodservice distributors only carry, aei@ge, 5-10 types of olive oil.
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Critical Route-to-Market for Specialty Food SuppdieNe currently distribute products from more thar0B, different suppliers, with no single
supplier currently representing more than 5% oftotal disbursements. Our suppliers are locateasligiitout North America, Europe, Asia and
South America and include numerous small, familyred entities and artisanal food producers. Weladatrgest customer for many of our
suppliers. As a result, our experienced and sdphtet sales professionals, customer relationsmpsdistribution platform are important to
these suppliers’ route-to-market, which enabletowsffer a wide range of products on an exclusiasis

Expanding Base of Premier Customer RelationslOur breadth and depth of product offerings couplét our highly regarded customer
service has allowed us to develop and retain d mystomer base that is comprised of chefs who ormwork at more than 12,500 of the
nation’s leading menu-driven independent restasrdime dining establishments, country clubs, tetehterers, culinary schools and specialty
food stores. Our focus on product selection, proloowledge and customer service has rewarded thsaviumber of long-term customer
relationships, which often begin when chefs armahiced to us while attending the nation’s leadinlinary schools, including The Culinary
Institute of America and The French Culinary Inggt both of which have been customers of ourgnfmre than six years.

Collaborative Professional and Educational Relaships with our Customer®/e employ a sophisticated and experienced sales fufr
approximately 200 sales professionals, the majofityhom have formal culinary training, degreesha culinary arts or prior experience
working in the culinary industry. Equipped with ahced culinary and industry knowledge, our salefegsionals seek to establish a rapport
with our customers’ chefs so that they can mory fuhderstand and anticipate the needs of and offsteffective food product solutions to
chefs who own or operate these businesses. Wesbdliat the specialized knowledge base of our gatEessionals enables us to take a more
collaborative and educational approach to sellimggmurmet foods and ingredients and to furthdiedéhtiate ourselves from our traditional
broadline competitors.

Expertise in Logistics and DistributioWe have built a first-class, scalable inventory agggment and logistics platform that enables us to
efficiently fill our customers’ orders and to priafdly meet our customers’ needs for varying drapsi high service levels and timely delivery.
Our average distribution service level, or the patage of irstock items ordered by customers that were delivbyethe requested date, wa
excess of 97% in 2012, which we believe is amorgighest rates in the foodservice distributiorustdy. With distribution centers located in
New York, Los Angeles, San Francisco, WashingtoB.PlLas Vegas, Miami, Portland, Columbus and Cimati) we are able to leverage «
geographic footprint and reduce our inbound fremgts. This scale enables us to maintain a partbélmore than 20,700 SKUs through the
operation of our sophisticated information techgglanventory management and logistics systemsghvivie believe allows us to provide our
customers with the highest level of customer seraied responsiveness in our industry.

Experienced and Proven Management TeOur senior management team has demonstrated titg aogrow the business through various
economic environments. With collective experientmore than 60 years at The Chéfgarehouse and its predecessor, our founders aimt
management are experienced operators and are passabout our future. Our senior management tearomprised of our founders as wel
experienced professionals with expertise in a wishgie of functional areas, including finance antbaating, sales and marketing, operations,
information technology, legal and human resources.

Our Growth Strategies

We believe substantial organic growth opportuniéieist in our current markets through increasedepation of our existing customers and the
addition of new customers, and we have identifiee markets that we believe also present opporamitr future expansion. Key elements of
our growth strategy include the following:

Increase Penetration with Existing CustomiVe intend to sell more products to our existing@oeers by increasing the breadth and depth o
our product selection and increasing the efficieoicgur sales professionals, while at the same tiomtinuing to provide excellent customer
service. Our acquisition of Michael's in August 20% an example of our effort to broaden our prodetection. We are a data-driven and
goal-oriented organization, and we are highly fecusn increasing the number of unique productsigteloute to each customer and our
weekly gross profit contribution from each custoniased on our management’s industry experience and
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our relationships and dealings with our customeesbelieve we are the primary distributor of spkgifbod products to the majority of our
customers, and we intend to maintain that positibite adding to the number of customers for whi@hserve as their primary distributor of
specialty food products.

Expand our Customer Base Within our Existing MaskAs of December 28, 2012, we served more than 1Z;68@mer locations in the
United States. We plan to expand our market shmatieel fragmented specialty food distribution indy$ly cultivating new customer
relationships within our existing markets throupk tontinued penetration of independent restaurinésdining establishments, country clt
hotels, caterers, culinary schools and specialtg f&tores. We believe we have the opportunity tdinae to gain market share in our existing
markets by offering an extensive selection of sgigcfood products as well as traditional broadkt&ple food products through our unique,
collaborative and educational sales efforts anidiefit, scalable distribution solution.

Continue to Improve our Operating Margimss we continue to grow, we believe we can improveaperating margins by continuing to
leverage our inventory management and logisticgguta and our general and administrative functitmgield both improved customer service
and profitability. Utilizing our fleet of delivertrucks, we usually fill customer orders within 124ours of order placement. We intend to
continue to offer our customers this high levetastomer service while maintaining our focus orizéa efficiencies and economies of scale
in purchasing, warehousing, distribution and gereamd administrative functions which, when combirméth incremental fixed-cost leverage,
we believe will lead to continued improvements i operating margin.

Pursue Selective AcquisitiorThroughout our 28-year history, we have successidéintified, consummated and integrated multigde/n
market and tuck-in acquisitions. We believe we haygroved the operations and overall profitabibfyeach acquired company by leveraging
our sourcing relationships to provide an expandedumct portfolio, implementing our tested salecéotraining techniques and metrics and
installing improved warehouse management and irdtion systems. We believe we have the opportuaitapitalize on our existing
infrastructure and expertise by continuing to s@tety pursue opportunistic acquisitions in ordeekpand the breadth of our distribution
network, increase our operating efficiency and additional products and capabilities.

Our Markets and the Customers that We Serve

We distribute our specialty food products to ov25D0 distinct customer locations from distributenters located in our nine primary
markets, which include New York, Washington, D.8an Francisco, Los Angeles, Las Vegas, Miami, &adtl Columbus and Cincinnati,
Ohio. We also serve customers in a number of attegkets, including Philadelphia, Boston, Napa faled Seattle. We believe that these
markets collectively set the culinary trends far thst of the United States and provide us withafalke insight into the latest culinary and m
trends. We have the unique ability to service sofrtbe nation’s most demanding chefs through thabdishment of collaborative professional
and educational relationships, which allows usntiicgpate the needs of and offer cost-effectivedfpooduct solutions to our customers while
allowing our customers to locate ingredients thiditemable them to create unique and differentiatehu items. Our target customers include
menu-driven independent restaurants, fine dinit@béishments, country clubs, hotels, caterersnemyi schools and specialty food stores. We
enjoy no meaningful customer concentration as opitén customers accounted for less than 10% aifiet revenue for our 2012 fiscal year.

Set forth below is a breakdown of the geographicketa we serve and the year we entered each market:

MARKET NAME GEOGRAPHIES SERVED YEAR ENTERED
New York Boston to Atlantic City 1985
Washington, D.C Philadelphia to Richmon 1999
Los Angeles Santa Barbara to San Die 2005
San Francisc Napa Valley to Monterey Bz 2005
Las Vegas Las Vegas 2005
Miami Miami 2010
Portland Bend, OR to Seattle, W 2011
Columbus, OF Midwest 2012
Cincinnati, OH Dayton, OH to Lexington, K 2013

Although we believe we are the largest specialbdfdistributor in the majority of our markets, vearain focused on expanding our existing
customer base and increasing the average ordearsizprofitability of our existing customers.
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We extend credit to virtually all of our customersvarying terms with average payment maturitieapgroximately 21 days. We complete a
formal credit assessment of all new customers camCredit and Collections Department regularlyleates credit terms for each individual
customer based upon several factors, includingrdrdguency, average order size, the types of misdourchased and the length of the
relationship. We believe that we are skilled at agang customer credit.

Our Specialty Food Products

We strive to be the primary food source solutiondor customers, and, to this end, we offer outarasrs a comprehensive product portfolio
that ranges from staple broadline products, suchitksand flour, to high-quality, specialty foodguucts and ingredients sourced from North
America, Europe, Asia and South America. We al$erafn increasing array of center-of-the-plate giroitems. We carry more than 20,700
SKUs and we are fully committed to utilizing outuscing relationships and industry insights to precproducts that we do not regularly carry
but that our customers specifically request as #s&k to create unique and innovative menu items.

The sales mix for the principal product categoftgsach of the 2012, 2011 and 2010 fiscal yeass i®llows (dollars in thousands):

December 28, 201 December 30, 201 December 24, 201

Dry Goods $119,75! 25% $106,85¢ 27% $ 86,41 26%
Center of Plat 123,04 26% 77,17¢ 19% 70,65¢ 21%
Cheese! 69,221 14% 61,23¢ 15% 49,28: 15%
Pastries and other

Bakery Product 64,62( 14% 53,85 13% 44 ,25¢ 14%
Oils and Vinegar: 49,86 10% 47,48t 12% 39,06 12%
Dairy Products 42,98: 9% 44 21¢ 11% 33,29( 10%
Kitchen Supplie: 10,80 2% 9,80¢ 3% 715 2%
Total $480,29: 10(% $400,63: 10(% $330,11¢  10(%

We continuously evaluate potential additions to prnaduct portfolio based on both existing and apéted trends in the culinary industry. Our
buyers have numerous contacts with suppliers througNorth America, South America, Europe and Asid are always looking for new and
interesting products that will aid our customersheey seek to keep up with the latest developmieritse culinary industry. Our ability to
successfully distribute a significant portion oé ttotal production of smaller, regional and artedaspecialty food producers allows us the
opportunity to be these producers’ primary routera@rket in our markets without, in most cases, myius to make contractual commitme
regarding guaranteed volume. We are also abldlipeubur size and successful track record of tisting products sourced from outside the
United States to resist efforts from many of ouefgn suppliers to push importing costs off onto us

We seek to differentiate ourselves from our compegiby offering a more extensive depth and breatifipecialty products. We carry a wide
range of high-quality specialty food products, utthg artisan charcuterie, specialty cheeses, emijg and vinegars, hormone-free protein,
truffles, caviar and chocolate across each of cankets, but we also offer a number of items in e#abur respective markets that are tailored
to meet the unique preferences of the individuafeim that market. We regularly rotate our invento identify and bring to market new
products that will continue to support our valuegmsition.

Within our product offerings, we carry numerous igoet brands, and at the same time, we seek to nsjpnoduct contribution through the
sale of our proprietary brands, which we offer imumnber of staple products, including bulk olivg talian grating cheeses and butter. We
believe that our ability to offer simultaneouslghiquality specialty foods and ingredients and niditional broadline staple food products
provides our customers with foodservice distribusolutions that are efficient and cost effective.

Our Sophisticated and Experienced Sales Professidsa

We employ a sophisticated and experienced sales fifrapproximately 200 sales professionals focesesheeting our customers’ goals and
objectives while concurrently educating them regayaur latest products and broader culinary tremdsensure a high level of customer
service, we seek to maintain a ratio of approxifgaiae sales professional for every 65 customeus.dales force is composed of the follow
three distinct groups which are all focused on fliog outstanding service to our customers:
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» Outside Sales Associate Responsible for identifying sales opportunitiedj@ting customers and acting as our public reptagees.
* Inside Sales Associate Responsible for processing customer orders amaahging for delivery and paymel

* Product Specialists Responsible for maintaining specialized producvidedge and educating our outside sales assoeiatesustomers
regarding new products and general developmerss\iaral specific categories, including proteinfeed, pastry and chees

The majority of our sales professionals have foroudihary training, degrees in the culinary artd/an prior experience working in the culing
industry. We strive to harness this culinary knalgle and passion for food and to concurrently premaotentrepreneurial working
environment. Utilizing advanced pricing optimizatisoftware available to them on a real-time basis sales professionals are afforded
flexibility to determine the pricing of individuéiems for our customers within a range of priciqgions. The majority of our sales
professionals are compensated on a commission basigheir performance is measured primarily ugheir gross profit dollars obtained. We
have historically experienced low turnover amongseasoned sales professionals.

Because we are highly focused on collaborating aithcustomers and educating them regarding oestlgproducts and broader culinary
trends, we view the ongoing education and traiihgur sales force as crucial to our continued ssgcTo ensure that our sales professionals
remain on the forefront of new culinary products &ends, we regularly hold “vendor shows” at oistribution centers where our sales force
is able to interact with vendors and learn moreuélite vendors’ latest product offerings and thégsmance of these products relative to
competitive offerings.

Our Suppliers

We are committed to providing our customers withuanvaled portfolio of specialty food productsvasll as a comprehensive broadline
product offering and center-of-the-plate produ€ts fulfill this commitment, we maintain strong seoing relationships with numerous
producers of higlguality artisan and regional specialty food produag well as a wide range of broadline product kenspand protein vendol
Our importing arm also provides us with accessctdusive items such as regional olive oils, trugfeend charcuterie sourced from lItaly, Spain,
France and other Mediterranean countries.

We constantly seek out and evaluate new produdaiedier to satisfy our customers’ desire to be afftinefront of the latest culinary and menu
trends, and, as evidence of our commitment to aiccastomers in creating unique and innovative niemms, we regularly utilize our sourci
relationships and industry insights to procure offreducts that we do not regularly carry but thait customers specifically request.

We currently distribute products from more than0B, different suppliers and no single supplier repnted more than 5% of our total
disbursements for the fiscal year ended Decemhe2@®. We carry multiple products and utilize riplét suppliers in all of our product
categories, thereby eliminating our dependence apgrsingle supplier. Additionally, we seek to limdommodity risk by utilizing
sophisticated forecasting and inventory managemsyestems to minimize the inventory carrying timecommodity-oriented products and by
leveraging the specialized product knowledge ofgroduct specialists to manage purchasing and towgfevels when appropriate.

Our Operations and Distribution Centers

Operating out of eleven distribution centers ofyirag size and providing service six days a weetany areas, we utilize our fleet of delivery
trucks to fill customer orders, usually within 12-Bours of order placement. Our average distribugiervice level, or the percentage oftoek
items ordered by customers that were deliveredhbyaquested date, was in excess of 97% as of fisaaended December 28, 2012, which
our management believes is among the highest ifotddservice distribution industry. To achieve #hbggh service levels, we have invested
significantly in sophisticated warehousing, invegtoontrol and distribution systems as describeghéme detail below.
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We have begun to implement pick-to-voice technolinggach of our distribution facilities which wéhable our warehouse employees to fill
orders with greater speed and accuracy.

Products are delivered to our distribution cenpensarily by contract carriers, the suppliers thetmes and our fleet of trucks. We lease our
trucks from national leasing companies and regifimak that offer competitive services. Customeatess are assembled in our distribution
centers and then sorted, placed on pallets an@dbanto trucks and trailers in delivery sequende ihajority of our trucks and delivery
trailers have multiple, temperature-controlled caniments that ensure all product is delivered ¢octistomer at its optimal temperature.

We employ advanced routing and logistics plannoftsare which maximizes the number of daily deligerthat each of our trucks can make
while also enabling us to make deliveries withioteaustomer’s preferred 2-3 hour time window. Wamalse GPS and vehicle monitoring
technology to regularly evaluate the condition of delivery trucks and monitor the performance af drivers by tracking their progress
relative to their delivery schedule and providingprmation regarding hard braking, idling and fststrts. Our use of this technology allows us
to conduct proactive fleet maintenance, providesljncustomer service and improve our risk managémen

Our Technology Systems

We maintain an advanced information technologyfptat that enables us to manage our operations @oasnine markets as we seek to drive
our growth and profitability and ensure that thedweof our customers are met in an accurate aiieeff manner. We have made significant
investments in distribution, sales, information avatehouse management systems over the last fars,y&nd are in the process of
implementing a fully-integrated warehouse managersgstem in our distribution facilities. Our sys&improvements include the
implementation or enhancement of a web-based psirehand advanced planning system that providearasdd forecasting and planning
tools, vehicle monitoring and route optimizatiorfita@re and pick-to-voice and directed put-away sywst. Over the last three years, we have
also implemented an internally developed, web-baspdrting tool which provides real-time salescimg and profitability analysis for our
management and sales professionals. These improvgeimave been made in an effort to improve ouciefficy as we continue to grow our
business, and we believe that our current systeenscalable and can be leveraged to support ourefgirowth.

Intellectual Property

Except for the Spoleto, Bel Aria, Grand Reservey®ista, Argonaut, Praml, Black Falls, Michael'ddarhe Chefs’ Warehouse trademarks, we
do not own or have the right to use any paterdetrzark, tradename, license, franchise or concegs$ierioss of which would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condibioresults of operations.

Competition

The foodservice distribution industry is highly costitive. We compete with numerous smaller distobsion a local level, as well as with a
limited number of national broadline foodservicstdbutors. Certain of these distributors have fgnefinancial and other resources than we dc
Bidding for contracts or arrangements with custanparticularly larger hotels and caterers, is figlompetitive and distributors may market
their services to a particular customer over a lpagod of time before they are invited to bid. Wédieve that most purchasing decisions in the
foodservice distribution industry are based up@anghality and price of the product distributed émel distributor’s ability to completely and
accurately fill orders and deliver them in a timeignner.

Employees

As of December 28, 2012, we had approximately td@ifne employees. We offer attractive compensatiod benefit packages, and none of
our workforce is represented by a union or covéned collective bargaining agreement. We believerelationship with our employees is
satisfactory.

Regulation

As a distributor of specialty food products and teea seafood in the United States, we are sutmeeigulation by numerous federal, state
local regulatory agencies. For example, at thertddevel, we are subject to the Federal Food, [nugi Cosmetic Act, the Bioterrorism Act ¢
regulations promulgated by the U.S. Food and Drdmihistration, or FDA. The FDA regulates manufaictgrand holding requirements for
foods, specifies the
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standards of identity for certain foods and prémsithe format and content of certain informatieuired to appear on food product labels,
among other responsibilities. For certain prodingtd, we are also subject to the Federal Meat tigpeAct, the Poultry Products Inspection
Act, the Perishable Agricultural Commodities Atte tCountry of Origin Labeling Act and regulationsmulgated thereunder by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, or USDA. The USDA impestandards for product quality and sanitatiorpitiag the inspection and labeling of
meat and poultry products and the grading and cawial@cceptance of produce shipments from vendordanuary 2011, President Obama
signed into law the FDA Food Safety Modernizatioct,Avhich greatly expands the FDsfauthority over food safety, including giving thBA
power to order the recall of unsafe foods, incréaspections at food processing facilities, issegutations regarding the sanitary transporte
of food, enhance tracking and tracing requiremantsorder the detention of food that it has “reasadpelieve” is adulterated or misbranded,
among other provisions. Our suppliers are alsoestihp similar regulatory requirements. We andsuppliers are subject to inspection by the
FDA and the USDA and the failure to comply with Bggible regulatory requirements could result inlav criminal fines or penalties, prodt
recalls, closure of facilities or operations, thed or revocation of existing licenses, permitafgprovals or the failure to obtain additional
licenses, permits or approvals in new jurisdictinere we intend to do business.

We are also subject to state and local regulatioough such measures as the licensing of ourtiasilienforcement by state and local health
agencies of state and local standards for our ptedind facilities and regulation of our trade ficas in connection with the sale of products.
Our facilities are generally inspected at leastuatiy by federal and/or state authorities. Thesdifees are also subject to inspections and
regulations issued pursuant to the Occupationat$ahd Health Act by the U.S. Department of Lakdrich require us to comply with certe
manufacturing, health and safety standards to groter employees from accidents and to establigarddacommunication programs to transmi
information about the hazards of certain chemipadsent in certain products that we distribute.

Our trucking operations are regulated by the Serferansportation Board and the Federal Highway Adstration. In addition, interstate mao
carrier operations are subject to safety requirésngrescribed by the U.S. Department of Transportand other relevant federal and state
agencies. Such matters as weight and dimensioguipment are also subject to federal and statdaBguos. We believe that we are in
compliance with applicable regulatory requiremestating to our motor carrier operations. Our felto comply with the applicable motor
carrier regulations could result in substantiatfiror revocation of our operating permits.

Our operations are subject to a broad range oféédsate and local environmental health and gddésts and regulations, including those
governing discharges to air, soil and water, thedhiag and disposal of hazardous substances andubstigation and remediation of
contamination resulting from releases of petrolguoducts and other hazardous substances.

We believe that we are in material compliance lttiederal, state and local regulations applicableur operations, and management is
unaware of any related issues that may have a isladelverse effect upon our business, financiabi@@nm or results of operations.

Litigation and Insurance
We may be subject to lawsuits, claims and assedsrirethe normal course of business. Our manageduad not believe that there are any
suits, claims or unasserted claims or assessmentsqy which would have a material adverse effeabar operations or financial condition.

We maintain comprehensive insurance packages esibect to our facilities, equipment, product lidildirectors and officers, workers’
compensation and employee matters in amounts whatagement believes to be prudent and customalnyrviite foodservice distribution
industry.

Seasonality

Generally, we do not experience any material sedtgpnHowever, our sales and operating results waay from quarter to quarter due to
factors such as changes in our operating expemsesggement’s ability to execute our operating andvth strategies, personnel changes,
demand for our products, supply shortages, wegiditerns and general economic conditions.
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Inflation

Our profitability is dependent, among other things,our ability to anticipate and react to charigebe costs of key operating resources,
including food and other raw materials, labor, ggeand other supplies and services. Substantied@ses in costs and expenses could impact
our operating results to the extent that such am®e cannot be passed along to our customersirifiaet of inflation on food, labor, energy :
occupancy costs can significantly affect the padiility of our operations.

Available Information

Our principal executive office is located at 10GEaidge Road, Ridgefield, Connecticut 06877, amctelephone number is (203) 894-1345.
Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and mleadments to those reports will be
made available free of charge through the InvaéR@ations section of our website (http://www.chedsghouse.com) as soon as practicable
after such material is electronically filed with, farnished to, the Securities and Exchange Conianig8§SEC”). Material contained on our
website is not incorporated by reference into tport.

The public may also read and copy any materiaksviiedile with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Refee®Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain infation on the operation of the Public ReferencerRby calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet websitedbntains reports, proxy and information stateésiand other information regarding
issuers, including us, that file electronically withe SEC located at http://www.sec.gov.
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Executive Officers

NAME & POSITION AGE
Christopher Pappas 53
President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors
John Pappas 49
Vice Chairman and Director
John Austin 51
Chief Financial Officer &
Assistant Corporate Secretary
Frank O’'Dowd 55

Chief Information Officer

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE
Christopher Pappass our founder and has served as our chief exexofficer since
1985 and has been a director on our board andaardithairman since our initial public
offering (“IPO”), and he also served as a direetod the chairman of the board of our
predecessor company, Chefgarehouse Holdings, LLC. He has been our presisiant
April 11, 2009 and before that was our presidesmfiour formation to January 1, 2007.
Prior to founding our company, Mr. C. Pappas playasketball professionally in Euro
for several years following his graduation from Ade University in 1981 with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Administratidgin. C. Pappas currently oversees all
of our business activities, with a focus on prodarcicurement, sales, marketing, strateg
development, business development and opera

John Pappais a founder of our company and currently servesuavice chairman, a
position he has held since March 1, 2011. Fromfaunding in 1985 to March 1, 2011,
he served as our chief operating officer. Mr. p@a has been a director on our board
since our IPO, and he also served as a directttehoard of our predecessor company
Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, LLC. He has over 25 ye&experience in logistics,

facility management and global procurement and sees our network of distribution
centers nationwide. Mr. J. Pappas is also actithardevelopment of our corporate
strategy

John Austiris our chief financial officer and assistant cogiersecretary, positions he
has held since July 1, 2012. Prior to joining campany he was a founder and chief
financial officer of The Hilb Group, LLC, a regidmaid-market insurance brokerage
firm formed in 2009 which focuses primarily on pesfy and casualty insurance and
employee benefits services. Prior to joining ThibKiroup in 2009, Mr. Austin was
employed by Performance Food Group Company, or RR8¢chmond, Virginia-based
publicly-traded foodservice distributor, from 19@62009. Mr. Austin served his last six
years at PFG as that comp’s chief financial officer. Prior to joining PFG, iMAustin
spent four years as the assistant controller foreGd Medical Corporation, a Richmond,
Virginia-based distributor of medical supplies. &lso spent the first six years of his
career in public accounting, primarily with the Rigond, Virginia office of Deloitte &
Touche.

Frank C'Dowd is our chief information officer, a position he Hasld since February 15,
2007. Mr. ODowd has extensive experience managing informaé&ohnology in rapidh
growing organizations. Prior to joining our compahg was the chief information offic
at GAF Materials Corporation, a North American ingfmanufacturer, from June 1997
to April 2006, where he guided the company’s ITdiion as the organization grew from
a regional supplier to a large multinational cogtimm. Mr. O’'Dowd’s prior professional
experience also includes experiences at Reed Els®&ewsweek Magazine and Wyeth
Pharmaceuticals. Mr. O’Dowd holds a Bachelor ofsAtégree from The University of
Dayton and a Master of Arts degree from Stony Brookversity.
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Patricia Lecouras
Chief Human Resources Officer

Alexandros Aldous
General Counsel & Corporate Secretary

57

32

Patricia Lecourasis our chief human resources officer, a positioa Ishs held since
March 5, 2007. Ms. Lecouras joined our company f@E1Capital Commercial Finance
where she was vice president, human resourcesZéfr to 2007. Prior to her time with
GE Capital Commercial Finance, Ms. Lecouras wah Wihe West Shoes (f/k/a Fischer
Camuto Corporation) and Xerox. Ms. Lecouras’s @ssif@nal experience is
multidisciplinary and includes prior experience kiag in finance and tax-related
functions. She also has earned a six sigma mdsigk belt certification. Ms. Lecouras
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Psychology andie® Work from Skidmore Colleg:

Alexandros Aldouis our general counsel, a position he has helegwoining us in
March 2011, and our corporate secretary, a podit@has held since July 27, 2011. P
to joining our company, he served as a legal céastin London to Barclays Capital,
investment banking division of Barclays Bank PL@nfi November 2009 to December
2010. Mr. Aldous also served as an attorney withsota, Farley & Williams from
August 2008 to September 2009, where he specializettrgers and acquisitions and
capital markets, and as an attorney with Shearm&tegling LLP from October 2005 to
August 2008, where he specialized in mergers aqdisitions. Mr. Aldous received a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Classics and Governrfrent Colby College, a Juris Doctor
and M.A. from American University and an LL.M. frotine London School of
Economics and Political Science. Mr. Aldous istised to practice law in the State of
New York, Washington, D.C. and England and Walabsiarauthorized as house cour
in the State of Connectict
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition and results adrafions are subject to various risks and unceainncluding those described below and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Hastion discusses factors that, individually oth@ aggregate, we think could cause our
actual results to differ materially from our expegtiand historical results. Our business, finarmaldition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected by any of these risks

We note these factors for investors as permittethbyPrivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of9B You should understand that it is not
possible to predict or identify all such factor@nSequently, you should not consider the followtimgpe a complete discussion of all potential
risks or uncertainties applicable to our business.

Our success depends to a significant extent uponeagal economic conditions, including disposable ome levels and changes in consumer
discretionary spending.

Because our target customers include menu-drivéepi@ndent restaurants, fine dining establishmeatsjtry clubs, hotels, caterers and
specialty food stores, our business is exposeddoctions in disposable income levels and disaratipconsumer spending. The continued
uncertain economic environment in the United Statespled with high unemployment rates, reducedéhgalues, increases in home
foreclosures, high gas prices, investment lossasppal bankruptcies, reduced access to creditemhoted consumer confidence, has adve
impacted consumers’ ability and willingness to spdiscretionary dollars. Economic conditions mayaé volatile and may continue to
repress consumer confidence and discretionary spgifat the near term. If the weak economy continfee a prolonged period of time or
worsens, consumers may choose to spend discretido#ars less frequently which could result inexlihe in consumers’ food-away-from-
home purchases, particularly in more expensivauveahts, and, consequently, the businesses olugtoroers by, among other things, redu
the frequency with which our customers’ customéigose to dine out or the amount they spend on médals dining out. If our customers’
sales decrease, our profitability could declingvasspread fixed costs across a lower volume obsdereover, we believe that, if a prolonged
downturn or uncertain outlook in the economy pésdier an extended period of time or becomes meregsive, consumers might ultimately
make long-lasting changes to their discretionagnsiing behavior, including dining out less freqlienh a permanent basis. Accordingly,
adverse changes to consumer preferences or consglisoegtionary spending, each of which could beaé&d by many different factors which
are out of our control, could harm our businesgritial condition or results of operations. Ourtzared success will depend in part upon our
ability to anticipate, identify and respond to cteng economic and other conditions and the imgaatt those conditions may have on
discretionary consumer spending.

Conditions beyond our control could materially affethe cost and/or availability of our specialtydd products and/or interrupt our
distribution network.

Our profitability and operating margins are dependgon, among other things, our ability to anttgand react to any interruptions in our
distribution network and changes to food costsaradlability. We obtain a significant portion of rospecialty food products from local,
regional, national and international third-partpgliers. We generally do not enter into long-tentcacts with our suppliers whereby they
would be committed to provide products to us foy appreciable duration of time. Although our puiging volume can provide leverage when
dealing with suppliers, particularly smaller suppdi for whom we may be their largest customer, lseggpmay not provide or may be unable to
provide the specialty food products we need ingii@ntities and at the times and prices we reqkastre to identify an alternate source of
supply for these items or comparable productsrtiest our customers’ expectations may result inifsggimt cost increases. Additionally,
weather, governmental regulation, water shortages|ability and seasonality may affect our foodtsor cause a disruption in the quantity of
our supply. For example, weather patterns in regeats have resulted in lower than normal levelawffall and snowfall in key agricultural
states such as California, impacting the price atewvand the corresponding prices of food prodgiais/n in states facing drought conditions.
Additionally, the route-to-market for some of th@gucts we sell, such as baking chocolate, depepais the stability of political climates in
developing nations, such as the Ivory Coast. Ith suxintries, political and social unrest may cahseprices for these products to rise to level:
beyond those that our customers are willing to ffafe product is available at all. If we are uleato obtain these products, our customers
seek a different supplier for these or other présludich could negatively impact our business,rial condition or results of operations.

We do not currently use financial instruments tddesour risk exposure to market fluctuations inghiee of food products. Similarly, our
suppliers may also be affected by higher coststiwcg or produce and transport food

15



Table of Contents

products, as well as by other related expensesttagtpass through to their customers, which coesdlt in higher costs for the specialty food
products they supply to us. For instance, our sebf meat and seafood products may be forcgdycigher prices to acquire or raise
livestock or fish and shellfish, including in thase of beef and poultry, as a result of highergsriaf corn and grain. Our inability to anticipate
and react to changing food costs through our sngrand purchasing practices in the future couldefloee negatively impact our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

We are also subject to material supply chain iofgions based upon conditions outside of our chnifiteese interruptions could include work
slowdowns, work interruptions, strikes or other e employment actions taken by employees of mrppkhort-term weather conditions or
more prolonged climate change, crop conditionsgpecbrecalls, water shortages, transportation rimpgions within our distribution channels,
unavailability of fuel or increases in fuel costempetitive demands and natural disasters or a#ttestrophic events, such as food-borne
illnesses or bioterrorism. The efficiency and effegness of our distribution network is dependeaaruour suppliers’ ability to consistently
deliver the specialty food products we need inghentities and at the times and prices we regaesbrdingly, if we are unable to obtain the
specialty food products that comprise a signifigaercentage of our product portfolio in a timelyrmar and in the quantities we request as a
result of any of the foregoing factors or otherwise may be unable to fulfill our obligations tostomers who may, as a result of any such
failure, resort to other distributors for their tbproduct needs.

Our business is a low-margin business and our ptafiargins may be sensitive to inflationary and dafbnary pressures.

We operate within a segment of the foodserviceiligion industry, which is an industry charactedzy a high volume of sales with
relatively low profit margins. Although our profitargins are typically higher than more traditiobadadline foodservice distributors, they are
still relatively low compared to other industrigsbfit margins. Most of our sales are at prices #ta based upon product cost plus a perce
markup. As a result, volatile food costs have aaliimpact upon our profitability. Prolonged pesaaf product cost inflation may have a
negative impact on our profit margins and resultgperations to the extent we are unable to pasdlar a portion of such product cost
increases to our customers. In addition, produst icdlation may negatively impact consumer disorery spending decisions within our
customers’ establishments, which could adversepaithour sales. Conversely, because most of oess sa at prices that are based upon
product cost plus a percentage markup, our pmfitls may be negatively impacted during periodsrofiuct cost deflation even though our
gross profit as a percentage of sales may remkitivedy constant. To compensate for lower grossging, we, in turn, must reduce the
expenses that we incur to service our customeosiionet income may be negatively impacted. Ourilitalo effectively price our specialty
food products, to quickly respond to inflationandadeflationary cost pressures and to reduce quereses could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition or hssof operations.

Group purchasing organizations may become more agetin our industry and increase their efforts to d@ur customers as members of
these organizations.

Some of our customers, including a majority of batel customers, purchase their products from teigh group purchasing organizations.
These organizations have increased their efforégtwegate the purchasing power of smaller, inddgatrrestaurants in an effort to lower the
prices paid by these customers on their foodsenviders, and we have experienced some pricing ymefom these purchasers. If these grou
purchasing organizations are able to add a sigmfioumber of our customers as members, we magrbed to lower the prices we charge
these customers in order to retain the businesshwiould negatively affect our business, financiahdition or results of operations.
Additionally, if we were unable or unwilling to lav the prices we charge for our products to a lthetlwas satisfactory to the group
purchasing organization, we may lose the businkg®ee of our customers that are members of thegizations, which could have a
material adverse impact on our business, finaraatition or results of operations.

Because our foodservice distribution operations a@ncentrated principally in nine culinary marketsye are susceptible to economic a
other developments, including adverse weather ctinds, in these areas.

Our financial condition and results of operations lsighly dependent upon the local economies otthi@ary markets in which we distribute
our specialty food products. In recent years, aedhthese markets have been more negatively itegduny the overall economic crisis,
including experiencing higher unemployment ratesd weaker housing market conditions, than othersapéshe United States. Moreover, s¢
of our specialty products in our
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New York market, which we define as our operationshe East Coast of the United States spannimg Boston to Atlantic City, accountt
for approximately 54% of our net sales in our 284@al year. We are therefore particularly exposedownturns in this regional economy.
Any further deterioration in the economic condigasf these markets generally, or in the local engnof the New York metropolitan area,
specifically, could affect our business, finan@ahdition or results of operations in a materialtiverse manner.

In addition, given our geographic concentratiorteepregional occurrences such as adverse weathditions, terrorist attacks and other
catastrophic events could have a material advéfset ®n our business, financial condition or résolf operations. Adverse weather condition:
can significantly impact our ability to profitab&nd efficiently conduct our operations and, in sex@ses, could result in our trucks being
unable to make deliveries or cause the temporaguct or the destruction of one or more of ourithistion centers. Our operations and/or
distribution centers which are located in (i) Newrl City, Ohio and Washington D.C. are particulalsceptible to significant amounts of
snowfall and ice, (ii) Miami are particularly suptible to hurricanes and (iii) Los Angeles and Eaancisco are particularly susceptible to
earthquakes and mudslides. In addition, our restawustomers, many of which are independently owri¢h operations limited to one or two
markets, may be less able to withstand the impa¢heir business from adverse weather conditioas trational chain restaurants because
are unable to spread the risks of such eventsaargserous locations. In some cases these customagraot be able to re-open their
restaurants, and consequently make payment tar yedducts previously provided, if the weather évamother catastrophic event is severe —
particularly if they lacked sufficient insurancetbeir insurance claims are not processed quickly.

Due to their prominence as, among other charatitsislensely-populated major metropolitan citied as international hubs for intermodal
transportation, a majority of our markets are kn@sriargets for terrorist activity and other catagtic events. If our operations are
significantly disrupted or if any one or more ofralistribution centers is temporarily closed ortd®ged for any of the foregoing reasons, our
business, financial condition or results of operadimay be materially adversely affected. In gpditon of any such adverse weather
conditions, terrorist attacks, mamade disasters or other unforeseen regional ocwese we have implemented a disaster recovery Slaoulc
any of these events occur, if we are unable towdrenur disaster recovery plan, we may experieaibarés or delays in the recovery of critical
data, delayed reporting and compliance with govemtal entities, inability to perform necessary cogte functions and other breakdowns in
normal operating procedures that could have a mhtaiverse effect on our business and create expds administrative and other legal
claims against us.

Damage to our reputation or lack of acceptance afrspecialty food products and/or the brands we rgain existing and new markets cou
materially and adversely impact our business, fir@al condition or results of operations.

We believe that we have built a strong reputatarttie breadth and depth of our product portfolid the brands we carry and that we must
protect and grow their value to be successful inftiture. Any incident that erodes consumer comfigein or affinity for our specialty food
products or brands, whether or not justified, caidghificantly reduce their respective values aachdge our business. If our customers
perceive or experience a reduction in the qualityedection of our products and brands or our eustcservice, or in any way believe that we
failed to deliver a consistently positive experienour business, financial condition or resultspdérations may be affected in a materially
adverse manner.

A specialty foods distribution business such as @an be adversely affected by negative publiaityeavs reports, whether or not accurate,
regarding food quality issues, public health consgillness, safety, injury or government or indu$indings concerning our products or others
across the food distribution industry. Although naese taken steps to mitigate food quality, pubgelth and other foodservice-related risks,
these types of health concerns or negative pupleihnot be completely eliminated or mitigated aray harm our results of operations and
damage the reputation of, or result in a lack akatance of, our products or the brands we carry.

In addition, our ability to successfully penetratav markets may be adversely affected by a lagknafreness or acceptance of our product
portfolio or our brands in these new markets. Todktent we are unable to foster name recognitioinaéfinity for our products and brands in
new markets, we may not be able to penetrate thaskets as anticipated, and, consequently, ourthrovay be significantly delayed or
impaired.
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Our customers are generally not obligated to contenpurchasing products from us.

Most of our customers buy from us pursuant to irtlial purchase orders, as we generally do not émtefong-term agreements with our
customers for the purchase of our products. Becawseustomers are generally not obligated to cometipurchasing products from us, we
cannot assure you that the volume and/or numbeuio€ustomers’ purchase orders will remain constaiicrease or that we will be able to
maintain or add to our existing customer base. ifidgimt decreases in the volume and/or number otastomers’ purchase orders or our
inability to retain or grow our current customesbanay have a material adverse effect on our bssifieancial condition or results of
operations.

We have experienced losses due to our inabilitgdtiect accounts receivable in the past and coukgherience increases in such losses in the
future if our customers are unable to pay their dslio us in a timely manner or at al

Certain of our customers have experienced bankyuptsolvency and/or an inability to pay their deti us as they come due. If our customer
suffer significant financial difficulties or bankptcies, they may be unable to pay their debts o astimely manner or at all. It is possible that
our customers may contest their obligations toymynder bankruptcy laws or otherwise. Even ifaugtomers do not contest their obligations
to pay us, if our customers are unable to pay theits to us in a timely manner, it could advergmlyact our ability to collect accounts
receivable and may require that we take largeripiavs for bad debt expense. Moreover, we may bawnegotiate significant discounts anc
extended financing terms with these customerséh susituation in an attempt to secure paymentditstanding debts. Accordingly, if we are
unable to collect upon our accounts receivablé@g tome due in an efficient and timely manner,lusginess, financial condition or results of
operations may be materially and adversely affeddenling periods of economic weakness, like thosenave been experiencing, small to
medium-sized businesses, like many of our indepa@staurant and fine dining establishment custeymeay be impacted more severely ant
more quickly than larger businesses. Consequehtyability of such businesses to repay their alians to us may deteriorate, and in some
cases this deterioration may occur quickly, whiobilld adversely impact our business, financial cimalior results of operations.

Product liability claims could have a material adwe effect on our business, financial condition cgsults of operations

Like any other distributor of food products, wedam inherent risk of exposure to product liabitilgims if the products we sell cause injury ol
illness. We may be subject to liability, which coide substantial, because of actual or allegedantingtion in products sold by us, including
products sold by companies before we acquired théenhave, and the companies we have acquired taadidiability insurance with respecit
product liability claims. This insurance may nohtioue to be available at a reasonable cost dt, a@ral it may not be adequate to cover
product liability claims against us or against afighe companies we have acquired. We generally seatractual indemnification from
manufacturers or suppliers of the product, butsaugh indemnification is limited, as a practical tegtto the creditworthiness of the
indemnifying party. If we or any of our acquiredgpanies do not have adequate insurance or cordgtactiemnification available, product
liability claims and costs associated with prodectalls, including a loss of business, could haweagerial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Increased fuel costs may have a material adverdeafon our business, financial condition or resslbf operations

Increased fuel costs may have a negative impaotiobusiness, financial condition or results ofragiens. The high cost of diesel fuel can
increase the price we pay for products as welhasbsts we incur to distribute products to outamers. These factors, in turn, may negati
impact our net sales, margins, operating expergsperating results. Although we have been abpa#s along a portion of increased fuel
costs to our customers in the past, there is noagtse we can do so again. In recent months, st dhave increased, and remained higher
than historical levels, as a result of, among othigigs, political turmoil in the Middle East anaith Africa. If fuel costs continue to remain at
elevated levels, like those we are currently exgmaing, or increase in the future, we may expesdaifficulties in passing all or a portion of
these costs along to our customers, which coulé hawnaterial adverse effect on our business, finhoondition or results of operations.
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New information or attitudes regarding diet and higaor adverse opinions about the health effectstbé specialty food products v
distribute could result in changes in consumer eadihabits which could have a material adverse effen our business, financial condition
or results of operations.

Consumer eating habits may impact our businesg@suét of changes in attitudes regarding diettzemlth or new information regarding the
health effects of consuming the specialty food pobsl we distribute. If consumer eating habits cleagignificantly, we may be required to
modify or discontinue sales of certain items in product portfolio, and we may experience highaetgassociated with the implementation of
those changes. Additionally, changes in consumargehabits may result in the enactment of laws i@glilations that impact the ingredients
and nutritional content of our specialty food protuor require us to disclose the nutritional cohtd our specialty food products. Compliance
with these laws and regulations, as well as ottegarding the ingredients and nutritional contdrdwr specialty food products, may be costly
and time-consuming. We cannot make any assuraagesding our ability to effectively respond to cas in consumer health perceptions or
resulting new laws or regulations or to adapt oenmofferings to trends in eating habits.

We have significant competition from a variety afierces, and we may not be able to compete succhgsfu

The foodservice distribution industry is highlydraented and competitive, and our future succeddwilargely dependent upon our ability to
profitably meet our customers’ needs for certainrgtet foods and ingredients, varying drop sizegh Isiervice levels and timely delivery. We
compete with numerous smaller distributors on alltevel as well as with a limited number of largeaditional broadline foodservice
distributors. We cannot assure you that our cummepbtential competitors will not provide spegydibod products and ingredients, protein
items or services that are comparable or superitirdse provided by us or adapt more quickly tharda to evolving culinary trends or
changing market requirements. It is also posshu¢ alliances among competitors may develop andlyaacquire significant market share.
Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will beedo compete effectively against current andrieiompetitors, and increased competitior
may result in price reductions, reduced gross margnd loss of market share, any of which couleteamaterial adverse effect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

A significant portion of our future growth is depetent upon our ability to expand our operations imoexisting markets and to penetra
new markets through acquisitions.

We intend to expand our presence in our existingkata by adding to our existing customer base tjindhe expansion of our product portfc
and the increase in the volume and/or number aftfase orders from our existing customers. We caasgtre you, however, that we will be
able to continue to successfully expand or acauritiEal market presence in our existing markesswa may not successfully market our
specialty food products and brands or may encoulatger and/or more well-established competitotth wubstantially greater financial
resources. Moreover, competitive circumstancescandumer characteristics in new segments of egistiarkets may differ substantially from
those in the segments in which we have substaxf@rience. If we are unable to expand in existiagkets, our ability to increase our
revenues and profitability may be affected in aeriat and adverse manner.

We also regularly evaluate opportunities to acqatheer companies. To the extent our future growttiuides acquisitions, we cannot assure
that we will successfully identify suitable acqtimn candidates, obtain financing for such acquisg, if necessary, consummate such potenti
acquisitions, effectively and efficiently integratey acquired entities or successfully expand metw markets as a result of our acquisitions.
We believe that there are risks related to acqgicwmpanies, including overpaying for acquisitidnsing key employees of acquired
companies and failing to achieve potential synargialditionally, our business could be adversefgaéd if we are unable to integrate the
companies acquired in our acquisitions and mergers.

A significant portion of our past growth has beehiaved through acquisitions of or mergers witheotilistributors of specialty food products.
Our future acquisitions, such as our completed ia@toqpns of Provvista Specialty Foods, Inc. (“Prasta”), Praml International, Ltd. (“Praml”),
Michael's and Queensgate Foodservice (“Queensgatellly, may have a material adverse effect onresults of operations, particularly in
periods immediately following the consummationtafge transactions while the operations of the aeduiusiness are being integrated with
our operations. Achieving the benefits of acquisis depends on timely, efficient and successfut@ien of a number of post-acquisition
events, including successful integration of theudreml entity. Integration requires, among othengjst
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* maintaining the existing customer ba

» optimizing delivery routes

» coordinating administrative, distribution and ficarfunctions; an
 integrating management information systems ancpesd.

The integration process could divert the attentibmanagement, and any difficulties or problemsoeintered in the transition process could
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition or results of operations. In gaar, the integration process may temporarily
redirect resources previously focused on reducinguyxt cost, resulting in lower gross profits itat®n to sales. In addition, the process of
combining companies could cause the interruptiomioé loss of momentum in, the activities of thgpective businesses, which could have a
adverse effect on their combined operations.

In connection with our acquisition of businessethmfuture, if any, we may decide to consolidatdperations of any acquired business with
our existing operations, as we have done with tle@ations of Harry Wils & Co. (“Harry Wils”) and &ml, or make other changes with respec
to the acquired business, which could result itsppeharges or other expenses. Our results ofatipas also may be adversely affected by
expenses we incur in making acquisitions, by arpatittn of acquisition-related intangible assethwliéfinite lives and by additional
depreciation attributable to acquired assets. Arth@businesses we acquire may also have liasilitr adverse operating issues, including
some that we fail to discover before the acquisitand our indemnity for such liabilities typicatyas been limited and may, with respect to
future acquisitions, also be limited. Additionaltyyr ability to make any future acquisitions mayeied upon obtaining additional financing or
the consents of our lenders. We may not be aldétain this additional financing or these consemtsicceptable terms or at all. Moreover, we
may need to finance our acquisition activity whie issuance of equity or debt securities, which heye rights and preferences superior to
those of our common stock and, in the case of comaaity securities, may be issued at such prisdsrasuch amounts as may cause
significant dilution to our then current commoncitioolders. To the extent we seek to acquire othemnliesses in exchange for our common
stock, fluctuations in our stock price could hawaaterial adverse effect on our ability to compkstquisitions.

We may have difficulty managing and facilitating oduture growth.

At times since our inception, we have rapidly exgmthour operations through organic growth, acdaisstor otherwise. This growth has
placed and will continue to place significant deasinpon our administrative, operational and finahesources. This growth, however, may
not continue. To the extent that our customer baskour distribution networks continue to growsthiture growth may be limited by our
inability to acquire new distribution facilities expand our existing distribution facilities, makequisitions, successfully integrate acquired
entities, implement information systems initiatiesadequately manage our personnel.

Moreover, our future growth may be limited in playtthe size and location of our distribution cestéts we near maximum utilization of a
given facility, our operations may be constrainad @efficiencies may be created, which could aselgraffect our results of operations unles:
the facility is expanded, volume is shifted to dmeotfacility or additional processing capacity églad. Conversely, as we add additional
facilities or expand existing operations or fai@ht{ excess capacity may be created. Any excessitgmay also create inefficiencies and
adversely affect our results of operations. We oaassure you that we will be able to successilyand our existing distribution facilities or
open new distribution facilities in new or existinarkets as needed to facilitate growth.

Even if we are able to expand our distribution reatyour ability to compete effectively and to mgaduture growth, if any, will depend on
our ability to continue to implement and improvesggtional, financial and management informationiesys on a timely basis and to expand,
train, motivate and manage our employees. We casstre you that our existing personnel, systermsggures and controls will be adequate
to support the future growth of our operations. édingly, our inability to manage our growth effeely could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition or resultgpérations.

Our substantial indebtedness may limit our ability invest in the ongoing needs of our business.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness. Bgoémber 28, 2012, we had approximately $125oniltif total indebtedness. In
particular, we had approximately $38.0 million &%5.0 million of outstanding indebtedness undersamior secured term loan facility and
senior secured revolving credit facility, respeelyv In addition, at December 28, 2012 we owed @hdillion under a construction loan to bt
out our Bronx, NY distribution facility, and we altad $0.5 million outstanding under capital ledeesomputer equipment and vehicles.
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Our indebtedness could have important consequeagasi. For example our indebtedness:

* requires us to utilize a substantial portion of cash flows from operations to make payments orirm@btedness, reducing the
availability of our cash flows to fund working ctadi capital expenditures, development activity atiter general corporate purpos

 increases our vulnerability to adverse general @con or industry condition:
« limits our flexibility in planning for, or reactintp, changes in our business or the industrieshiiclwwe operate

» makes us more vulnerable to increases in inteaéss ras borrowings under our senior secured wamfhcility and senior secured
revolving credit facility are at variable rate

+ limits our ability to obtain additional financing the future for working capital or other purposas|uding to finance acquisitions; a
» places us at a competitive disadvantage comparedrtcompetitors that have less indebtedr

If our earnings are insufficient to fund our op@as, including our acquisition growth strategy, wil need to raise additional capital or issue
additional debt, including longer term, fixed raibt, to pay our indebtedness as it comes due aurasvailability under our senior secured
revolving credit facility is exhausted. If we aneable to obtain funds necessary to make requirgoheats or if we fail to comply with the
various requirements of our senior secured creditifies we would be in default, which would petittie holders of our indebtedness to
accelerate the maturity of the indebtedness anlll @ause defaults under any indebtedness we may im¢he future. Any default under our
indebtedness would have a material adverse effeouobusiness, operating results and financiatlitimm. If we are unable to refinance or
repay our indebtedness as it becomes due, we ntayreeinsolvent and be unable to continue operations

Although the agreements governing our senior selcenedit facilities contain restrictions on theunence of additional indebtedness, these
restrictions are subject to a number of qualifmasgi and exceptions, and the indebtedness incurreghnpliance with these restrictions coulc
substantial. Also, these restrictions do not préwsrfrom incurring obligations that do not conggtindebtedness.

The agreements governing our senior secured deagilities require us to maintain fixed charge cage ratios and leverage ratios which
become more restrictive over time. Our ability tanply with these ratios in the future may be affedby events beyond our control, and our
inability to comply with the required financial ira$ could result in a default under our senior sedweredit facilities. In the event of any
default, the lenders under our new senior secureitdacilities could elect to terminate lendinghemitments and declare all borrowings
outstanding, together with accrued and unpaid ésteand other fees, to be immediately due and pay&be “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems— Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Our ability to raise capital in the future may bénited.

Our business and operations may consume resoumcksling availability under our senior securedditréacility, faster than we currently
anticipate. In the future, we may need to raisetanl funds through the issuance of new equitusigies, debt, including longer term, fixed
rate debt, or a combination of both. Additionakfiting may not be available on favorable termg aflalf adequate funds are not available or
acceptable terms, we may be unable to fund outalapiuirements or grow our business through aitipms, or otherwise. If we issue new
debt securities, the debt holders would have rigatsor to our common stockholders to make claimeur assets, and the terms of any debt
could restrict our operations, including our akitid pay dividends on our common stock. If we isadditional equity securities, existing
stockholders will experience dilution, and the rexyity securities could have rights senior to thafseur common stock. Because our decisiol
to issue securities in any future offering will @ep upon market conditions and other factors beyamaontrol, we cannot predict or estimate
the amount, timing or nature of our future offeenghus, our stockholders bear the risk of ourrfuecurities offerings reducing the market
price of our common stock and diluting their intdre

We may be unable to obtain debt or other financiog favorable terms or at all.

There are inherent risks in our ability to borrogbticapital. Our lenders, including the lendersipi@ating in our senior secured credit
facilities, may have suffered losses related tir fleading and other financial relationships, esacbecause of the general weakening and
continued uncertainty of the national economy dkerpast four years,increased financial instabdftynany borrowers and the declining value
of their assets. As a
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result, lenders may become insolvent or tighteir teading standards, which could make it moreidiifit for us to borrow under our senior
secured revolving credit facility or term loan fagi refinance our existing indebtedness or obtaimer financing on favorable terms or at all.
Our access to funds under our senior secured demilities is dependent upon the ability of ounders to meet their funding commitments.
Our financial condition and results of operatiormid be adversely affected in a material mannesifvere unable to draw funds under our
new senior secured revolving credit facility be@aoba lender default or if we had to obtain ottest-effective financing.

Longer term disruptions in the capital and credirkets as a result of uncertainty, changing orgased regulation, reduced alternatives or
failures of significant financial institutions cabibdversely affect our access to liquidity neeagdtir business. Any disruption could requirt
to take measures to conserve cash until the mastaigize or until alternative credit arrangemest®ther funding for our business can be
arranged. Such measures could include deferringat@xpenditures (including our entry into new ks, including through acquisitions) and
reducing or eliminating other discretionary usesash.

Information technology system failures or breacheSour network security could interrupt our operaths and adversely affect our busine

We rely upon our computer systems and network $trfai@ture across our operations. Our operationsrd&ppon our ability to protect our
computer equipment and systems against damagepingsical theft, fire, power loss, telecommunicasidailure or other catastrophic events,
as well as from internal and external security bnea, viruses, worms and other disruptive probléing.damage or failure of our computer
systems or network infrastructure that causes tnription in our operations could have a matexidlerse effect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations. Although we é&gboth internal resources and external considtamtonduct auditing and testing for
weaknesses in our systems, controls, firewallseamodyption and intend to maintain and upgrade eausty technology and operational
procedures to prevent such damage, breaches ardishaptive problems, there can be no assuraratdhibse security measures will be
successful.

Our investments in information technology may notqauce the benefits that we anticipate.

In an attempt to reduce our operating expenseszase our operational efficiencies and boost oaraimg margins, we have aggressively
invested in the development and implementationesi mformation technology. We may not be able tplament these technological changes
in the time frame we have planned, and any delay®splementation could negatively impact our bus@dinancial condition or results of
operations. In addition, the costs to make thesmgbs may exceed our estimates and will likely ed@ny benefits that we realize during the
early stages of implementation. Even if we are &blenplement the changes as planned, and withircost estimates, we may not be able
achieve the expected efficiencies and cost safings these investments which could have an adweffeet on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

We may not be able to adequately protect our irgetlial property, which, in turn, could harm the ua of our brands and adversely affect
our business.

Our ability to implement our business plan sucadistlepends in part upon our ability to furtheilddrand recognition, including for our
proprietary products, using our trademarks, semriaeks and other proprietary intellectual properrigluding our names and logos. We have
registered or applied to register a number of mddamarks. We cannot assure you that our tradeapgiications will be approved. Third
parties may also oppose our trademark applicatmmatherwise challenge our use of the trademankihe event that our trademarks are
successfully challenged, we could be forced toamethrour goods and services, which could resuttss bf brand recognition and could require
us to devote resources to advertising and markegmgbrands. If our efforts to register, maintainl @rotect our intellectual property are
inadequate, or if any third party misappropriatBkites or infringes upon our intellectual propettye value of our brands may be harmed,
which could have a material adverse effect on ogirtess, financial condition or results of operadiand might prevent our brands from
achieving or maintaining market acceptance.

We may also face the risk of claims that we haféniged third parties’ intellectual property rightéthird parties claim that we have infringed
or are infringing upon their intellectual properights, our operating profits could be affectedimaterially adverse manner. Any claims of
intellectual property infringement, even those withmerit, could be expensive and time consumindefend, require us to rebrand our
services, if feasible, divert management’s attenéind resources or require us to enter into royalticensing agreements in order to obtain th
right to use a third party’s intellectual propemyny royalty or licensing agreements, if requiredy not be
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available to us on acceptable terms or at all. ésssful claim of infringement against us couldilteis our being required to pay significant
damages, enter into costly license or royalty agesds, or stop the sale of certain products ofigesyany of which could have a negative
impact on our business, financial condition or hssof operations and could harm our future prospec

Our business operations and future development cbhé significantly disrupted if we lose key membefour management team.

The success of our business significantly depepds the continued contributions of our founders ke employees, both individually and as
a group. Our future performance will substantiaipend upon our ability to motivate and retain §bpher Pappas, our chairman, president
and chief executive officer, John Pappas, our gf@@rman, and John Austin, our chief financialadfi as well as certain other senior key
employees. The loss of the services of any of oundiers or key employees could have a materialrae\affect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations. We have noards believe that we will lose the services of afthese individuals in the foreseeable
future; however, we currently have no effectivelaepment for any of these individuals due to tle&perience, reputation in the foodservice
distribution industry and special role in our opnas.

Our insurance policies may not provide adequatedksvof coverage against all claims, and fluctuatimgurance requirements and costs
could negatively impact our profitability. In adddn, if we fail to establish proper reserves andeaglately estimate future expenses, our self:
insured group medical, workers’ compensation liabfland auto liability plans may adversely affeairobusiness, financial condition or
results of operations.

We believe that our insurance coverage is custofiatyusinesses of our size and type. Howevergethes types of losses we may incur that
cannot be insured against or that we believe arearamercially reasonable to insure. These losdesyld they occur, could have a material
and adverse effect on our business, financial ¢cimmdor results of operations. In addition, thetazfavorkers’ compensation insurance, genere
liability insurance and directors’ and officerstility insurance fluctuates based upon our histdrirends, market conditions and availability.
Because our operations principally are centerddrge, metropolitan areas, our insurance costhigter than if our operations and facilities
were based in more rural markets. Additionally,ltieimsurance costs in general have risen sigmiflgaover the past few years and are
expected to continue to increase in 2012. Theseases, as well as recendigacted federal legislation requiring employerprwvide specifie
levels of health insurance to all employees, ctatde a negative impact upon our business, finanomdlition or results of operations, and
there can be no assurance that we will be abledoessfully offset the effect of such increase$ witn modifications and cost control
measures, additional operating efficiencies ompthes-through of such increased costs to our custome

Effective October 1, 2011, we began maintainingl&iasured group medical program. We record ailitgifor medical claims during the
period in which they occur as well as an estimé&ieaurred but not reported claims. Managementrdeitees the adequacy of these accruals
based on a monthly evaluation of our historicainetaexperience and medical cost trends. Projectibfisture loss expenses are inherently
uncertain because of the random nature of insurelag@s occurrences and could be significantlyciéd if future occurrences and claims
differ from these assumptions and historical tretidse suffer a substantial loss that is not cedeby our self- insurance reserves, the loss ar
attendant expenses could harm our business andtmgeresults. We have purchased stop loss covéragethird parties which limits our
exposure above the amounts we have self insured.

Effective August 1, 2012, we are self-insured farkers’ compensation and automobile liability taldetibles or self-insured retentions of
$350,000 for workers compensation and $250,00@dtomobile liability per occurrence. The amountsxaess of our deductibles are fully
insured by third party insurers. Liabilities assdet with this program are estimated in part byst®ring historical claims experience and cos
trends. Projections of future loss expenses arerantily uncertain because of the random naturesefrance claims occurrences and could be
significantly affected if future occurrences andicis differ from these assumptions and historieaids.

Increases in our labor costs, including as a resaftlabor shortages, the unionization of some ofrassociates, the price or unavailability
insurance and changes in government regulation cddlow our growth or harm our business.

We are subject to a wide range of labor costs. Bseaur labor costs are, as a percentage of reselnigher than other industries, we may be
significantly harmed by labor cost increases.
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Our operations are highly dependent upon our egpeeid and sophisticated sales professionals. @@ahlifdividuals have historically been in
short supply and an inability to attract and retaim may limit our ability to expand our operaidn existing markets as well as to penetrate
new markets. We can make no assurances that wbendble to attract and retain qualified individuial the future. Additionally, the cost of
attracting and retaining qualified individuals magy higher than we currently anticipate, and asalt,eour profitability could decline. We are
subject to the risk of employment-related litigatit both the state and federal levels, includiagres styled as class action lawsuits, which ar
more costly to defend. Also, some employment-rdlataims in the area of wage and hour disputesatrensurable risks.

Despite our efforts to control costs while stilbpiding competitive health care benefits to ouffsteembers, significant increases in health «
costs continue to occur, and we can provide norassa that our cost containment efforts in thimavél be effective. Moreover, we are
continuing to assess the impact of recently adofstderal health care legislation on our health temefit costs, and significant increases in
such costs could adversely impact our operatingiteesThere is no assurance that we will be abjeais through the costs of such legislatic
a manner that will not adversely impact our opegatesults.

In addition, many of our delivery and warehousespenel are hourly workers subject to various minimusage requirements. Mandated
increases in minimum wage levels have recently la@eihcontinue to be proposed and implemented atfbderal and state government levels
Minimum wage increases may increase our labor costs

We are also subject to the regulations of the Giizenship and Immigration Services and U.S. Qustand Immigration Enforcement. Our
failure to comply with federal and state labor laav&l regulations, or our employees’ failure to nfederal citizenship or residency
requirements, could result in a disruption in owrkvforce, sanctions or fines against us and advauslicity.

As we increase our employee base and broaden stubdtion operations to new geographic marketduiling as a result of acquisitions, we
may experience increased or expanded union-organéfforts or acquire businesses with unionizeddiooces. Although we have not
experienced a work stoppage to date, if employess 0 unionize or we acquired businesses withniméal employees, we could be subjec
work stoppages and increases in labor costs, ethehich could have a material adverse effect onbwsiness, financial condition or result
operations.

Moreover, potential changes in labor legislatiorcjuding the Employee Free Choice Act, or EFCA ldaasult in portions of our workforce,
such as our delivery personnel, being subjectepdater organized labor influence. The EFCA comddact the nature of labor relations in the
United States and how union elections and contregbtiations are conducted. The EFCA aims to fatdliunionization, and employers of
unionized employees may face mandatory, bindingration of labor scheduling, costs and standardiéch could increase the costs of doing
business. EFCA or similar labor legislation coudtvd an adverse effect on our business, financradition or results of operations by impos
requirements that could potentially increase castsreduce our operating flexibility.

We are subject to significant governmental regutai

Our business is highly regulated at the federatesind local levels, and our specialty food prégluneat and seafood products and distribt
operations require various licenses, permits apdoyals. For example:

* the products we distribute in the United Statessaf#ect to regulation and inspection by the FDA #re USDA,;

» our warehouse, distribution facilities and openagialso are subject to regulation and inspectiothby~DA, the USDA and state
health authorities; an

» our U.S. trucking operations are regulated by tie. Department of Transportation and the U.S. Rg¢ddighway Administration

Our suppliers are also subject to similar reguiatequirements and oversight. The failure to comly applicable regulatory requirements
could result in civil or criminal fines or penakieproduct recalls, closure of facilities or openas, the loss or revocation of any existing
licenses, permits or approvals or the failure ttawbadditional licenses, permits or approvalsawurisdictions where we intend to do
business, any of which could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition @uits of operations.
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In addition, as a distributor of specialty food gweots and meat and seafood products, we are subjexireasing governmental scrutiny of and
public awareness regarding food safety and the gatkaging and marketing of natural and orgamcipcts. Compliance with these laws may
impose a significant burden upon our operationsiefwere to distribute foods that are or are pgezkto be contaminated, or otherwise not in
compliance with applicable laws, any resulting pretdrecalls could have a material adverse effeciwrbusiness, financial condition or res

of operations. In January 2011, President Obanredignto law the FDA Food Safety Modernization Aghich greatly expands the FDA’s
authority over food safety, including giving the APower to order the recall of unsafe foods, insesmspections at food processing facilities,
issue regulations regarding the sanitary transpontaf food, enhance tracking and tracing requeeta and order the detention of food that it
has “reason to believé$ adulterated or misbranded, among other prowssibfriunding for this legislation is appropriatede cannot assure y
that it will not impact our industry, including spigers of the products we sell, many of whom aralsiscale producers who may be unable or
unwilling to bear the expected increases in cost®mpliance and as a result cease operationséirtegass along these costs to us.

Additionally, concern over climate change, incluglthe impact of global warming, has led to sigmifitU.S. and international legislative and
regulatory efforts to limit greenhouse gas, or Gléissions. Increased regulation regarding GHG ®anis, especially diesel engine
emissions, could impose substantial costs upofmhese costs include an increase in the cost dii#leand other energy we purchase and
capital costs associated with updating or replaoimgvehicles prematurely.

Until the timing, scope and extent of such regalathecomes known, we cannot predict its effectumbaisiness, financial condition or results
of operations. It is reasonably possible, howethat such regulation could impose material costaswhich we may be unable to pass on to
our customers.

We incur increased cost obligations as a resultefing a public company.

Prior to our IPO, as a privately held company, vezewnot required to comply with certain corporatgeynance and financial reporting
practices and policies required of a publicly tchdempany. New and changing laws, regulations gmtlards relating to corporate govern:
and public disclosure, including the Dodd-Frank Mgateet Reform and Consumer Protection Act andles and regulations promulgated
and to be promulgated thereunder, as well as uhdeBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended (thib&as-Oxley Act”), and the rules and
regulations of the SEC and the Nasdaq Global Shacket, have created uncertainty for public conigsmand increased our costs and time
that our board of directors and management musitdde complying with these rules and regulatidis. expect these rules and regulations tc
increase our legal and financial compliance costslead to a diversion of management time and tdtrefrom revenue generating activities.

Furthermore, the need to establish the corporétasimucture demanded of a public company may tivanagement’s attention from
implementing our growth strategy, which could prevas from improving our business, results of ofiena and financial condition. We have
made, and will continue to make, changes to oeriiratl controls and procedures for financial repgriind accounting systems to meet our
reporting obligations as a publicly traded compathgwever, the measures we take may not be suffitdesatisfy our obligations as a publicly
traded company.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires anmanagement assessments of the effectiveness ofternal control over financial
reporting and requires a report by our independagistered public accounting firm on the effectiess of our internal control over financial
reporting. While we have concluded that our inteooatrol over financial reporting as of Decemb8r 2012 was effective, there is no
guarantee that such internal control over finangpbrting will remain effective in future yearsikire to achieve and maintain an effective
internal control environment could have a mataihlerse effect on our business and share priceand limit our ability to report our
financial results accurately and timely.

Federal, state and local tax rules may adverselypant our business, financial condition or result$ operations.

We are subject to federal, state and local taxéisarnited States. Although we believe that ourestimates are reasonable, if the Internal
Revenue Service, or IRS, or any other taxing aitthdisagrees with the positions we have takenuntax returns, we could face additional
tax liability, including interest and penaltiesntfaterial, payment of such additional amounts upwai adjudication of any disputes could have
a material impact on our business, financial coowlior results of operations. In addition, comptyimith new tax rules, laws or regulations
could impact our business, financial conditionesuits of operations, and increases to federahte statutory tax rates and other changes in
tax laws, rules or regulations may increase owrcdiffe tax rate. Any increase in our effective tate could have a material impact on our
business, financial condition or results of operadi
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We do not intend to pay dividends for the foreseledinture and our stock may not appreciate in value

We currently intend to retain our future earnirigany, to finance the operation and growth of business and do not expect to pay any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. As a reshiét,quccess of an investment in shares of our constock will depend upon any future
appreciation in its value. There is no guaranteé ghares of our common stock will appreciate lnear that the price at which our
stockholders have purchased their shares will betatbe maintained.

Concentration of ownership among our existing exése officers, directors and their affiliates maygvent new investors from influencing
significant corporate decisions

As of March 5, 2013, our executive officers, dioestand their affiliates beneficially owned, in gggregate, approximately 34.4% of our
outstanding shares of common stock. In partic@arjstopher Pappas, our president and chief execofficer, and John Pappas, our vice
chairman, beneficially owned approximately 32.3%of outstanding shares of common stock as of May@®913. As a result of their
significant individual ownership levels, these &toalders will be able to exercise a significantdlesf control over all matters requiring
stockholder approval, including the election okdiors, amendment of our certificate of incorparatind approval of significant corporate
transactions. This control could have the effeaedfying or preventing a change of control of cmpany or changes in management anc
make the approval of certain transactions diffionlimpossible without the support of these stoddiéics.

Our issuance of preferred stock could adverselyeatfholders of our common stock and discourage ke@ver.

Our board of directors is authorized to issue up,8®0,000 shares of preferred stock without atipaon the part of our stockholders. Our
board of directors also has the power, withoutldtolder approval, to set the terms of any serigweferred stock that may be issued, inclu
voting rights, dividend rights, preferences over common stock with respect to dividends or ingkient of a dissolution, liquidation or
winding up and other terms. In the event that waespreferred stock in the future that has preter@ver our common stock with respect to
payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dlgfon or winding up, or if we issue preferred dtauith voting rights that dilute the voting
power of our common stock, the rights of the haddd#rour common stock or the market price of ounemwn stock could be adversely affec

In addition, the ability of our board of directdesissue shares of preferred stock without anyaaiin the part of our stockholders may impede
a takeover of us and prevent a transaction faverabbur stockholders.

Some provisions of our charter documents and Delagviaw may have an-takeover effects that could discourage an acqudsitof us by
others, even if an acquisition would be benefictalour stockholders, and may prevent attempts by steckholders to replace or remove c
current management.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation amdaws as well as provisions of the Delaware Gdr@oaporation Law, or DGCL, could make
it more difficult for a third party to acquire us imcrease the cost of acquiring us, even if d@ogvould benefit our stockholders, including
transactions in which stockholders might otherwesseive a premium for their shares. These provisinadude:

 authorizing the issuance of “blank check” preferstatk, the terms of which may be established &ades of which may be issued
without stockholder approve

» prohibiting stockholder action by written consehgreby requiring all stockholder actions to beetakt a meeting of our stockholde
 eliminating the ability of stockholders to call gesial meeting of stockholders; a

 establishing advance notice requirements for notioing for election to the board of directors or fooposing matters that can be a
upon at stockholder meeting
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ltem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES
The following table sets forth the location, pupasd approximate size of our distribution and omafe facilities as of March 5, 2013:

Name/Location Owned/Lease! Purpose Approximate Size (Sg. Fee
Ridgefield, Connecticut Leasec Corporate Headquarte 20,00(
Bronx, New York #1 Leasec Distribution Cente 120,00(
Bronx, New York #z Leasec Distribution Cente 138,50(
Columbus, Ohio Leased Processing

Facility/Distribution Cente 60,00(
Cincinnati, Ohic Owned Distribution Cente 66,50(
Hanover, Marylanc Leasec Distribution Cente 55,20(
Miami, Florida Leasec Distribution Cente 27,00(
Los Angeles, Californii Leasec Distribution Cente 80,00(
Hayward, Californie Leasec Distribution Cente 40,00(
Las Vegas, Nevac Leasec Distribution Cente 29,80(
Seattle, Washingto Leasec Distribution Cente 10,50(
Portland, Orego Leasec Distribution Cente 46,50(
Total Square Fet 694,00(

We consider our properties to be in good condijenerally and believe our facilities are adequatetir operations and provide sufficient
capacity to meet our anticipated requirements.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to various lggateedings that arise from the normal course sin@ss activities. If an unfavorable ruling
were to occur, there exists the possibility of aarial adverse impact on our results of operatipnsspects, cash flows, financial position and
brand. We are not currently aware of any pendinipaatened legal proceeding against us that duald a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results or financial condition.

ltem 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Common Stock

Our common stock is publicly traded under the syiiB&IEF”. From July 28, 2011 through December 30, 2011, ooraon stock was trads
on the NASDAQ Global Market. Since January 3, 2@i2,common stock has been trading on the NASDAGb@&ISelect Market. The
following table sets forth the high and low salees for our common stock for the fiscal period$iéated as reported by the Nasdaq Stock
Market during the indicated quarters.

Common Stock Price

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2012

First Quarte! $23.7¢ $16.5¢
Second Quarte $27.2¢ $16.0:
Third Quartel $18.8¢ $12.5¢
Fourth Quarte $17.17 $13.8¢
Fiscal Year Ended December 30, 2011

Third Quartel $18.5( $12.57
Fourth Quarte $18.02 $11.32

On March 5, 2013, the closing price of our commimtls on the Nasdaq Global Select Market was $18e2%hare. As of March 5, 2013, th
were 26 holders of record of our common stock. Tleies not include the number of persons whose s$doknominee or “street” name
accounts through brokers.

We have never paid a cash dividend on our comnamk stnd do not anticipate paying any cash dividemdsur common stock in the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, we are prohilfit@u paying cash dividends under the terms of eni® secured credit facilities without the
consent of the lenders thereunder.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock during thegakefrom July 28, 2011 (the first day
our stock began trading on the NASDAQ Stock Marketpugh December 28, 2012 with the cumulativel tetturn on the NASDAQ
Composite and the S&P Smallcap Food Distributoeind’he comparison assumes that $100 was investddly 28, 2011 in our common
stock and in each of the foregoing indices andrassueinvestment of dividends, if any.

The following performance graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall confirmation be ipocated by reference into any future filing undlee Securities Act of 1933 or t
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedpefor the extent that we specifically incorgerauch information by reference into s
filing.
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COMPARISON OF 1 YEAR 5 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETUR N
AMONG THE CHEFS' WAREHOUSE, INC.
NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX AND THE S&P SMALLCAP FOOD DI STRIBUTOR INDEX
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+— CHEF & NASDAQ Composite s— S&P Smallcap Food Distributor Index

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JULY 28, 2011

July 28, 201: December 30, 201 December 28, 201
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. $ 100.0( $ 102.0¢ $ 88.0(
NASDAQ Composite Index $ 100.0( $ 102.1: $ 103.7:
S&P Smaller Fund Distributed Index $ 100.0( $ 96.4: $ 110.3(

We made no repurchases of our equity securitiehéoguarter ended December 28, 2012.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
See Part lll, Item 12 for information regarding weties authorized for issuance under our equitpgensation plans.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data presdretuiv as of the end of each of the fiscal yeathénfive-year period ended December 28,
2012 have been derived from our or our predecessopany’s audited consolidated financial statemé&rite data set forth below is qualified
by reference to, and should be read in conjundiiidm our consolidated financial statements andrtheies and “ManagementDiscussion an
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems” included elsewhere in this Annual Reporfanm 10K. Our consolidated stateme
of operations for the year ended December 30, 20hfained a 58 week while all other years presetbethined 52 weeks.

On July 27, 2011, we converted our company fromekWare limited liability company (Chefs’ Warehoudeldings, LLC) to a Delaware
corporation (The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.). For addél information regarding the conversion, seeeNbto the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report on FoBrK1The selected consolidated financial data preegkbelow relate to Chefs’ Warehouse
Holdings, LLC and its consolidated subsidiariesgeriods prior to the conversion and to The Chéfarehouse, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries for periods following the conversion.

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
(Amounts presented in thousands, except for peesdraounts)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED

December 2€ December 3(C December 24 December 2E December 2€
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Statement of Operations Data
Net revenue $ 480,29. $ 400,63: $ 330,11 $ 271,07. $ 281,70:
Cost of sale: 355,28 294,69¢ 244,341 199,76 211,38
Gross profit 125,00« 105,93« 85,77¢ 71,30¢ 70,31¢
Operating expenst 96,23 78,13¢ 64,20¢ 57,97 60,31/
Operating profit 28,767 27,79¢ 21,57: 13,33 10,00:
Interest expens 3,674 14,57( 4,041 2,81¢ 3,23¢
(Gain)/loss on fluctuation of interest rate sv 0 (81) (910 (658) 1,11¢
Loss on sale of asse 18 6 — — —
Income from operations before ta> 25,07t 13,30: 18,44: 11,17¢ 5,64¢
Provision for income taxe 10,56¢ 5,60:% 2,567 2,21 3,45(
Net income $ 1451 $ 7,69¢ $ 15,87 $ 8,961 $  2,19¢
Deemed dividend accretion on Class A men” units — — (4,129 (6,207) (3,000
Deemed dividend paid to Class A meml’ units — — (22,429 — —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhi $ 1451 $ 7,69¢ $ (1067) $ 2,754 $ (804)
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Basic net income (loss) per share
Diluted net income (loss) per sh:
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic

Diluted

Balance Sheet Data (at end of perioc
Cash and cash equivalel

Working capital

Total asset

Long-term debt, net of current portic
Total liabilities

Redeemable Class A memlt’ units
Total stockholders equity (defici

December 2¢

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED
December 3C December 24 December 2&

December 2€

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$§ 07 $ 04 $§ (050 $ 01z $ (009
$ 066 $ 04 $ (050 $ 011 $ (0.09

20,61 17,59: 21,33: 22,90 22,55¢

20,92¢ 18,03: 21,33: 24,08t 22,55¢
$ 11€ $ 203 $ 197¢ $ 87F $ 1,59
$ 57,80 $ 29,76¢ $ 12206 $ 22,47¢ $ 22,10:
$ 210,13  $ 107,87 $ 8267: $ 65937 $ 64,50
$ 119,35, $ 3959 $ 8258 $ 29,92¢ $ 37,32
$ 170,85, $ 84,30¢ $ 131,48 $ 60,601 $ 67,72
$ — $ — $ — $ 41,69¢ $ 3549;
$ 3928 $ 2357 $ (4881) $ (36,36) $ (38,709
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjigrctvith information included in Item 8 of this req. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms
“Company”, “Chefs’ Warehouse”, “we”, “us”, and “durefer to The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its sdibsies for the periods from and after
July 27, 2011 and our predecessor company, Chedselbuse Holdings, LLC and its subsidiaries, pioahat date. All dollar amounts are in

thousands.

Overview and Recent Developments
Overview

We are a premier distributor of specialty foodgight of the leading culinary markets in the Unigtdtes. We offer more than 20,700 SKUs,
ranging from high-quality specialty foods and irdjests to basic ingredients and staples. We seore than 12,500 customer locations,
primarily located in our eight geographic marketsoas the United States, and the majority of ostamuers are independent restaurants and
fine dining establishments.

We believe several key differentiating factors of business model have enabled us to execute@begy consistently and profitably across
our expanding customer base. These factors cafsasportfolio of distinctive and hard-to-find sty food products, a highly trained and
motivated sales force, strong sourcing capabilifsilly integrated warehouse management systdnghdy sophisticated distribution and
logistics platform and a focused, seasoned manageesm.

In recent years, our sales to existing and newoowsts have increased through the continued growdeimand for specialty food products in
general; increased market share driven by our lpegeentage of sophisticated and experienced padésssionals, our high-quality customer
service and our extensive breadth and depth ofustanfferings, including, as a result of our acdioa of Michael's in August 2012, meat,
seafood and other center-of-the-plate productsatiogisition of other specialty food distributatse expansion of our existing distribution
centers; the construction of a new distributionteerand the import and sale of our proprietaryndg Through these efforts, we believe that
we have been able to expand our customer basen@nhad diversify our product selections, broadergeographic penetration and increase
our market share. We believe that as a resultesdettefforts, we have increased sales from approeiyn$281,703 in 2008 to approximately
$480,292 in 2012.

Reorganization Transactiol

On July 27, 2011, we completed a transaction irctviare converted Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, LLC ifite Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Specifically, our predecessor, Chefs’ Warehousalidgbk, LLC, a Delaware limited liability companyroverted into The Chefs’ Warehouse,
Inc., a Delaware corporation, and the members ef<harehouse Holdings, LLC received shares ofammmon stock in exchange for their
membership interests in Chefs’ Warehouse Holdihp§..

We issued 16,000,000 shares of common stock imemuganization transaction and each of the holdeosir Class B units and Class C units
received approximately 0.2942 shares of our comstock for each unit of membership interest in Chéfarehouse Holdings, LLC owned by
them at the time of the conversion. Of the totahber of shares we issued in the reorganizatiors#ietion, 445,056 shares were restricted
shares of our common stock issued upon convergionrdClass C units that had not vested as ofithe of the conversion.

On August 2, 2011, we completed our initial puldftering (“IPO”) of shares of our common stock. We issued 4,666s6867es in the offering
and certain existing stockholders sold an additi6i&83,333 shares, including 1,350,000 sharestsdlde underwriters to cover over-
allotments. We received net proceeds from the ioffesf approximately $63,300 (after the paymentimlerwriter discounts and commissions
and offering expenses) that have been used, tageitieborrowings under our new senior secureditfedilities, to repay all of our loans
outstanding under our former senior secured cfadilities and senior subordinated notes, including accrued and unpaid interest, call
premiums and unamortized original issue discoudt").
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Refinancing Transactions

In connection with our redemption of all of our stainding Class A units in October 2010, we entereda $100,000 senior secured credit
facility with a syndicate of lenders. The seniocwed credit facility provided for (i) a $75,000rteloan facility and (ii) a revolving credit
facility under which we may borrow up to $25,000e\lso issued $15,000 of our senior subordinatéesrdue 2014.

In connection with our IPO, we entered into a seaexured credit facility with JPMorgan Chase Bawi4. This senior secured credit facility
provided for (i) a four year, $30,000 term loanilffgcmaturing in 2015, and (ii) a four year, $50®revolving credit facility maturing in 2015.
We used the net proceeds of the IPO, togetherayitbrtion of borrowings under this senior secunediit facility, to repay all of our loans
outstanding under our former senior secured cfadilities in place prior to our IPO and redeemddlbur outstanding senior subordinated
notes due 2014.

On April 25, 2012 we entered into a new senior segteredit facility with JPMorgan Chase Bank, NGur new senior secured credit facility
provides for a (i) a four year, $40,000 term loacilfty maturing in 2017, and (ii) a five year $1000 revolving credit facility maturing in
2017. The agreement provided us with the optioma®asing the amount of the revolving credit fiacihy up to $40,000. We exercised this
option on September 28, 2012 and as a result, itgpeer the revolving credit facility increasexd%140,000.

Recent Acquisitions

Subsequent to our fiscal year end, on Decembe2@i12, the Company closed on its acquisition of @agate, a foodservice distributor based
in Cincinnati, OH. Queensgate strengthens the Cagipdoothold in the Ohio Valley and provides atfilam on which to leverage the
Michael's acquisition completed earlier in 2012 €Thitial purchase price for Queensgate was appratély $21,900 (subject to customary
post-closing working capital adjustments) and wasléd with borrowings under our revolving credtifity. Additionally, the purchase price
may be increased by up to $2,400 based upon thievachent of certain performance milestones overaayear period following the closing.

On August 10, 2012, the Company acquired 100%eEtjuity securities of Michael’s, a specialty pio@istributor based in Columbus, Ohio.
Michael's distributes an extensive portfolio of tama cut beef, seafood and other center-ofglage products to many of the leading restaur
country clubs, hotels and casinos in Ohio, Indidlfiapis, Tennessee, Michigan, Kentucky, West Vfilg and western Pennsylvania. The total
purchase price for the business was approxima&3y589 and was funded with borrowings under ouolreng credit facility that we entered
into in April 2012.

On April 27, 2012, we acquired 100% of the outsbag@ommon stock of Praml, a Nevada corporatiore ptirchase price paid to acquire
Praml was approximately $19,500. We financed threlmse price paid for the outstanding common stdéé&kraml with borrowings under our
revolving credit facility that we entered into irpAl 2012. Praml is a leading specialty foods imippand wholesale distributor located in Las
Vegas, Nevada which services the Las Vegas and Rankets.

On November 7, 2011, we purchased substantialthalassets of Provvista, including Provvista'sauoner list, inventory and certain
intellectual property. Provvista is a leading spégifoods importer and wholesale distributor l@chin Portland, Oregon, which services the
Portland, Oregon and Seattle, Washington metr@polireas. The purchase price paid to Provvisteapaoximately $8,800. We financed the
purchase price with borrowings under our credillitées that we entered into in connection with dB0. We expect Provvista to continue to
operate under the Provvista name in these new tsdideethe foreseeable future.

On June 24, 2011, we purchased certain of thesagsetarry Wils including certain of its inventoayd certain intangible assets, including its
customer list and certain intellectual propertyridaVils was a specialty foodservice distributiampany headquartered in the New York City
metropolitan area. The purchase price paid to Hafifg was approximately $8,900. We financed thechase price for these assets with
borrowings under our senior secured credit faesiin place prior to the consummation of our IPO.
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On June 18, 2010, we acquired the assets of Mor@igde, Inc., doing business as Culinaire Specigltwyds, for cash consideration of
approximately $3,700, which provided us with an ietiate platform for growth in the south Florida ketr

Our Growth Strategies and Outlook

We continue to invest in our people, facilities aachnology to achieve the following objectives amaintain our premier position within the
specialty foodservice distribution market:

» sales and service territory expansi

» operational excellence and high customer servigelde

» expanded purchasing programs and improved buyingp:

» product innovation and new product category intcdidun;

 operational efficiencies through system enhancesnanio

» operating expense reduction through the centrédizatf general and administrative functio

Our continued profitable growth has allowed ustpriove upon our organization’s infrastructure, open new distribution facilities and
pursue selective acquisitions. This improved irtftagure has allowed us to maintain our operatimggims in an increasingly competitive
environment. Over the last several years, we hasreased our distribution capacity to approxima@als,000 square feet in eleven facilities.

Key Factors Affecting Our Performanc

Due to our focus on menu-driven independent reatdsy fine dining establishments, country clubselso caterers and specialty food stores,
our results of operations are materially impactgdhe success of the “food-away-from-honrgdustry in the United States, which is materi
impacted by general economic conditions, discretipispending levels and consumer confidence. Whenanic conditions deteriorate, our
customers’ businesses are negatively impactednas fgeople eat away-from-home and those that dadsiess money. As economic
conditions begin to improve, our customers’ bussesshistorically have likewise improved, which ¢imttes to improvements in our business

Food price costs also significantly impact our tessof operations. Food price inflation, like thvelich we have experienced throughout 2011
and portions of 2012, may increase the dollar vafusur sales because many of our products areasaldr cost plus a percentage markup.
When the rate of inflation declines or we experedeflation, as we experienced during portions0df22 the dollar value of our sales may fall
despite our unit sales remaining constant or grgwhor those of our products that we price on edifee-per-case basis, our gross profit
margins may be negatively affected in an inflatigrenvironment, even though our gross revenuesheayositively impacted. While we
cannot predict whether inflation will continue atrent levels, prolonged periods of inflation leaglto cost increases above levels that we are
able to pass along to our customers, either overati certain product categories, may have a megahpact on us and our customers, as
elevated food costs can reduce consumer spendihg fimod-away-from-home market and may negatiiralyact our sales, gross margins and
earnings.

Given our wide selection of product categoriesyalt as the continuous introduction of new produets can experience shifts in product sale
mix that have an impact on net sales grabks profit margins. This mix shift is most sigedintly impacted by the introduction of new categs

of products in markets that we have more recemtigred, the shift in product mix resulting from asifions, as well as the continued growth
in item penetration on higher velocity items sustdairy products

The foodservice distribution industry is fragmenged consolidating. Over the past five years, wetspplemented our internal growth
through selective strategic acquisitions. We belithat the consolidation trends in the foodserdistribution industry will continue to present
acquisition opportunities for us, which may allos/to grow our business at a faster pace than wédvadhierwise be able to grow the business
organically.

Performance Indicators

In addition to evaluating our income from operasioour management team analyzes our performanee lbbassales growth, gross profit and
gross profit margin.
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» Net salesOur net sales growth is driven principally by chesign volume and, to a lesser degree, changescm n@lated to the impact
of inflation in commaodity prices and product mir. particular, product cost inflation and deflatiorpacts our results of operations
and, depending on the amount of inflation or daftgtsuch impact may be material. For exampleatidth may increase the dollar
value of our sales, and when the rate of inflatlenlines, the dollar value of our sales may fadipi® our unit sales remaining const
or growing.

» Gross profit and gross profit margi@ur gross profit and gross profit as a percentdgesales, or gross profit margin, are driven
principally by changes in volume and fluctuationgaod and commodity prices and our ability to paissany price increases to our
customers in an inflationary environment and mainta increase gross profit margin when our costdide. Our gross profit margin
is also a function of the product mix of our ndesan any period. Given our wide selection of proidcategories, as well as the
continuous introduction of new products, we canegignce shifts in product sales mix that have goaithon net sales and gross profit
margins. This mix shift is most significantly imged by the introduction of new categories of praduic markets that we have more
recently entered; impact of product mix from acdigns, as well as the continued growth in itemetestion on higher velocity items
such as dairy product

Key Financial Definitions

* Net salesNet sales consist primarily of sales of specialtgt ather food products to independently-owned teatats and other high-
end foodservice customers, which we report needfam group discounts and customer sales incen

» Cost of salesCost of sales include the net purchase price maigrbducts sold, plus the cost of transportatiecessary to bring the
product to our distribution facilities. Our costsales may not be comparable to other similar comegawithin our industry that
include all costs related to their distributionwetk in their costs of sales rather than as opegatkpense:

» Operating expenseQur operating expenses include warehousing andadison expenses (which include salaries and wages
employee benefits, facility and distribution fleental costs and other expenses related to waritwgpasd delivery) and selling,
general and administrative expenses (which inchadléng, insurance, administrative, wage and béeefienses and will also include
shar-based compensation expen:

* Interest expensinterest expense consists primarily of interesbonoutstanding indebtedness and, as applicaldeytite off of
deferred financing fee

» (Gain) loss on fluctuation of interest rate swaf83ain) loss on fluctuation of interest rate swapgsists solely of the change in
valuation on an interest rate swap not eligiblehfedge accounting

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial steglts requires us to make estimates and judgnteattaffect the reported amounts of assets
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and relatadodisre of contingent assets and liabilities. TR€ $ias defined critical accounting policies as
those that are both most important to the portrafalur financial condition and results and requive most difficult, complex or subjective
judgments or estimates. Based on this definitiompelieve our critical accounting policies inclutie following: (i) determining our allowant
for doubtful accounts, (ii) inventory valuation,tviregard to determining our reserve for excessodistlete inventory, (iii) valuing goodwill
and intangible assets, (iv) vendor rebates and giteenotional incentives, (v) self-insurance ressnand (vi) accounting for income taxes. Fo
all financial statement periods presented, thewe lb@en no material modifications to the applicatbthese critical accounting policies.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We analyze customer creditworthiness, accountsvadale balances, payment history, payment termshéstdrical bad debt levels when
evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for daula€counts. In instances where a reserve hasreeerded for a particular customer, future
sales to the customer are either conducted ussigaa-delivery terms or the account is closely nwed so that agreed-upon payments are
received prior to orders being released. A faitorpay results in held or cancelled orders. Begigrim the fourth quarter of 2008 and
continuing through the first three quarters of 20@9experienced a reduction in year-over-year regatiiven by poor overall economic
conditions. During this period of time, we projettnd experienced a higher rate of defaults ortrade accounts receivable. As such, we
increased our estimated allowance for doubtful aot®requirements in line with
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then current economic conditions. During the fouytiarter of 2009 and throughout each of the lasktfiscal years, we noticed an
improvement in overall general economic conditiasieen compared to 2007 and 2008. This improvemeniterl in higher revenue and also
resulted in a lower default rate on our trade ant®receivable. As such, in 2010 and 2011 we lowvete estimated allowance for doubtful
accounts reserve requirement in line with thenemtreconomic conditions which resulted in a lowavjsion expense for our allowance for
doubtful accounts in fiscal 2010 than we incurre@009. The provision expense for our allowancedfarbtful accounts in fiscal 2012 was in
line with those incurred during fiscal 2011 anaték2010. Our accounts receivable balance was $8&6d $42,876, net of the allowance for
doubtful accounts of $3,440 and $2,900, as of Déeza8, 2012 and December 30, 2011, respectively.

Inventory Valuation

We maintain reserves for slow-moving and obsoletemtories. These reserves are primarily based invemtory age plus specifically
identified inventory items and overall economic ditions. A sudden and unexpected change in conspraé&rences or change in overall
economic conditions could result in a significahéwege in the reserve balance and could requirerasponding charge to earnings. We
actively manage our inventory levels as we seakitomize the risk of loss and have consistentlyiedd a relatively high level of inventory
turnover.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We are required to test goodwill for impairmentestst annually and between annual tests if evestisrar circumstances change that would
more likely than not reduce the fair value of aoripg unit below its carrying amount. We have &ddo perform our annual tests for
indications of goodwill impairment during the folurquarter of each fiscal year. We test for goodimifbairment at the consolidated level, as
have only a single reporting unit, based on theketarapitalization approach. The goodwill impairmanalysis is a two-step test. The first
step, used to identify potential impairment, inas\comparing our estimated fair value to our cagyalue, including goodwill. If our
estimated fair value exceeds our carrying valuedgdll is considered not to be impaired. If thergarg value exceeds estimated fair value,
there is an indication of potential impairment dnel second step is performed to measure the ambimpairment. If required, the second ¢
involves calculating an implied fair value of owagiwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is detained in a manner similar to the amount of
goodwill calculated in a business combination, lasuring the excess of the estimated fair valudetssmined in the first step, over the
aggregate estimated fair values of the individsakss, liabilities and identifiable intangiblesfase were being acquired in a business
combination. If the implied fair value of our gooitivexceeds the carrying value of our goodwill, tés no impairment. If the carrying value
our goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of gaodwill, an impairment charge is recorded foréReess.

In accordance with the aggregation criteria of AZBD-10-5011, we evaluate our goodwill on a consolidateddasing a market capitalizati
approach. Under this approach fair value is catedldased on the market price of common stock pliglti by the number of outstanding
shares. Any material adverse change in our busoresgerations could have a negative effect orvaluation and thus cause an impairment o
our goodwill. As of December 28, 2012, our annisaessment indicated that we are not at risk ahéastep one of the goodwill impairment
test and no impairment of goodwill existed, asfairrvalue exceeded our carrying value. Total goitidws of December 28, 2012 and
December 30, 2011 was $45,359, and $20,590, régplgct

Intangible assets with finite lives are testedifigpairment whenever events or changes in circurneimdicate that the carrying value may
be recoverable. Cash flows expected to be genebgtdtk related assets are estimated over thesaaseful lives based on updated
projections. If the evaluation indicates that therging amount of the asset may not be recover#iidepotential impairment is measured basec
on a projected discounted cash flow model. Theve th@en no events or changes in circumstancesgd20h2 or 2011 indicating that the
carrying value of our finite-lived intangible assare not recoverable. Total finite-lived intangiblssets as of December 28, 2012 and
December 30, 2011 were $35,708 and $5,115, respbcti

The assessment of the recoverability of intangaisigets will be impacted if estimated future castvdlare not achieved.
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Vendor Rebates and Other Promotional Incentives

We participate in various rebate and promotionegittives with our suppliers, including volume amadvgth rebates, annual incentives and
promotional programs. In accounting for vendor tebawe follow the guidance in ASC 605-50 (Emerdsspes Task Force, or EITF, No. 02-
16, Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller)Gertain Consideration Received from a Vendod EITF No. 03-10Application of
Issue No. 0-16 by Resellers to Sales Incentives Offered tcs@mers by Manufacturers)

We generally record consideration received undesdhincentives as a reduction of cost of goods kolMtever, in certain circumstances, we
record marketing-related consideration as a rednaf marketing costs incurred. We may receive icianation in the form of cash and/or
invoice deductions.

We record consideration that we receive for volamé growth rebates and annual incentives as atieduaf cost of goods sold. We
systematically and rationally allocate the consatien for those incentives to each of the undegyilansactions that results in progress by us
toward earning the incentives. If the incentives rot probable and reasonably estimable, we raberthcentives as the underlying objectives
or milestones are achieved. We record annual ingentvhen we earn them, generally over the agreepeiod. We record consideration
received to promote and sell the suppliers’ praglasta reduction of our costs, as the considerggitypically a reimbursement of costs
incurred by us. If we received consideration frdva suppliers in excess of our costs, we recordeangss as a reduction of cost of goods sold

Self-Insurance Reserves

Effective October 1, 2011, we began maintainingl&iasured group medical program. The program aimstindividual as well as aggregate
stop loss thresholds. The amount in excess ofdliénsured levels are fully insured by third paittigurers. Liabilities associated with this
program are estimated in part by considering hisbclaims experience and medical cost trendgeBtions of future loss expenses are
inherently uncertain because of the random natliressarance claims occurrences and could be sigifly affected if future occurrences and
claims differ from these assumptions and histotticaids.

Effective August 1, 2012, we are self-insured farkers’ compensation and automobile liability taldetibles or self-insured retentions of
$350 for workers compensation and $250 for autoladiaibility per occurrence. The amounts in exaefssur deductibles are fully insured by
third party insurers. Liabilities associated witiistprogram are estimated in part by consideristphical claims experience and cost trends.
Projections of future loss expenses are inheremtertain because of the random nature of insurelag®s occurrences and could be
significantly affected if future occurrences andieis differ from these assumptions and historieaids.

Income Taxes

The determination of our provision for income tareguires significant judgment, the use of estimated the interpretation and application of
complex tax laws. Our provision for income taxesnarily reflects a combination of income earned &mdd in the various U.S. federal and
state jurisdictions. Jurisdictional tax law changdeereases or decreases in permanent differerte®én book and tax items, accruals or
adjustments of accruals for unrecognized tax bemefnd our change in the mix of earnings fromettaging jurisdictions all affect the overall
effective tax rate.

Management has discussed the development andiseletthese critical accounting policies with dugard of directors, and the board of
directors has reviewed the above disclosure. Onsal@ated financial statements contain other itdmsrequire estimation, but are not as
critical as those discussed above. These othesiteciude our calculations for bonus accruals, éeption and amortization. Changes in
estimates and assumptions used in these and tghes ¢ould have an effect on our consolidated @irzustatements.

Results of Operations
The following table presents, for the periods iadla, certain income and expense items expressegersentage of sales:

37



Table of Contents

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

December 2¢ December 3( December 2:
2012 2011 2010

Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 74.(% 73.6% 74.(%
Gross profit 26.(% 26.4% 26.(%
Operating expense¢ 20.(% 19.5% 19.4%
Operating incom: 6.C% 6.S% 6.€%
Other expense (income

Interest expens 0.8% 3.€% 1.2%
Gain on fluctuation of interest rate sw 0.C% (0.0)% (0.9)%
Total other expens 0.8% 3.6% 0.£%
Income before income tax 5.2% 3.2% 5.7%
Provision for income taxe 2.2% 1.4% 0.8%
Net income 3.(% 1.€% 4.%

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2012 compared to E&d Year Ended December 30, 2011

Net Sales

Net sales for the 52 weeks ended December 28, iB8iased approximately 19.9% to $480,292 from $&®for the 53 weeks end
December 30, 2011. The increase in net sales wa®#ult of organic sales growth and the acquisstiaf Michael's and Praml in 2012 and
Provvista, which was acquired late in 2011. Thespisitions accounted for approximately $76,106wf sales growth in 2012. Our net sales
growth was negatively impacted by Hurricane Samdyé fourth quarter of 2012 by approximately $8,@dd the prior year impact of an extra
week in our 2011 fiscal year which was approxima®#,600. Deflation for the year was approximaB.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased approximately 18.0% to $1@4 for the 52 weeks ended December 28, 2012 fitdb,934 for the 53 weeks ended
December 30, 2011. Gross profit margin decreasptbapmately 41 basis points to 26.0% in fiscal 2@tiin 26.4% in the year earlier period.
The decrease in gross profit margin was due tdntipact on our sales mix resulting from the Michaehd Praml| acquistions and the impac
Hurricane Sandy.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by approxima®&B% to $96,237 for the 52 weeks ended Decenthe2®@ 2 from $78,138 for the 53
weeks ended December 30, 2011. As a percentags eles, operating expenses increased 54 basis pwi20.0% for fiscal 2012 from
19.5% for 2011. The increase in total operatingeese was primarily due to the growth in net satedyding through acquisitions. The
increase in total operating expenses as a percenfatet sales was primarily due to higher insueacwsts, higher amortization expense relate
to the company’s acquisitions, duplicate rent an@ompany’s Bronx, NY facility, as well as the inspaf Hurricane Sandy, partially offset by
lower incentive and stock compensation.

Operating Income

Operating income increased approximately 3.5% & &7 for the 52 weeks ended December 28, 2012 amdpo $27,796 for the 53 weeks
ended December 30, 2011. As a percentage of rest, sglerating income was 6.0% in 2012 compared®8» @ 2011. The increase in
operating income was due to increased sales vobifset in part by the increase in operating expemkgcussed above.
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Other Expense

Total other expense decreased $10,803 to $3,69Rdarear ended December 28, 2012, from $14,49héyear ended December 30, 2011.
This decrease in total other expense is attribettibthe decrease in interest expense for thegreted December 28, 2012 to $3,674 from
$14,570 in the year ended December 30, 2011. Ttreadse in interest expense was offset in part dlyeniaverage borrowings in 2012 when
compared to 2011. The increased interest exper&@lih was the result of a significant increaseahtdevels during the fourth quarter of fis
2010 as we financed the redemption of all of oustanding Class A units which were held by BGCP/DLC and another former investor of
ours with borrowings under our then existing créaldlities and senior notes. In addition we inegrexpenses of approximately $5,400 for
premiums and the write-off of deferred financingdeand unamortized original issue discount (“Ol@Nen we refinanced our pre-IPO
indebtedness upon completion of our IPO.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our effective income tax rate was 42.13% and 42.1®%he years ended December 28, 2012 and Dece3@h@011, respectively. Based
upon current enacted tax rates, which could chamgesxpect our effective tax rate for fiscal 206 Zpproximate 41.5%.

Net Income

Reflecting the factors described in more detaiv@hoet income increased $6,813 to $14,511 foyéae ended December 28, 2012, compare
to $7,698 for the year ended December 30, 2011.

Fiscal Year Ended December 30, 2011 compared to E& Year Ended December 24, 2010
Net Sales

Our net sales for the fiscal year ended Decembe2@0L increased approximately 21.4%, or $70,514400,632 from $330,118 for the year
ended December 24, 2010. This increase was priyvaue to organic growth (sales growth excludingithpact of acquisitions) of $37,700.
Our organic growth was due primarily to increagedhi penetration to existing customers, as welhassticcess of our customer acquisition
strategy. Other sources of net sales growth wegaisitions, consisting of $18,900 and inflationfpuat mix of $7,300. In addition, fiscal 2011
had a 53¢ week (compared to 52 weeks in fiscal 20003h contributed an additional $6,600 of net safet of acquisition revenue.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit increased approximately 23.5%%21,156, to $105,934 for the year ended Decemhe2@®0L, from $85,778 for the year
ended December 24, 2010. Our gross profit margs 26a4% for the year ended December 30, 2011, &uid®for the year ended

December 24, 2010. The increase in gross profigimas primarily due to the change in the mix of sales during the year as well as the
impact from our price optimization initiative whietas fully implemented for the fourth quarter ofl201n fiscal 2011 we also recorded $400
in refunds from U.S. Customs related to prior yéh#ties paid on imported products. These refunde weftected as a reduction of cost of sales
and contributed to the increase in gross profitgimar

Operating Expenses

Our total operating expenses increased approxignafiel %, or $13,900, to $78,100 for the year erldecember 30, 2011, from $64,200 for
the year ended December 24, 2010. As a percenfag sales, total operating expenses increasappmximately 19.5% for the year ended
December 30, 2011, from approximately 19.4% forytbar ended December 24, 2010. The increase inojpdating expense was primarily
due to the growth in net sales, including througfuésitions. As a percent of net sales, operatkpgpses increased primarily due to increasec
fuel costs and stock compensation expenses, difjsietproved facilities utilization and reduced intige compensation.

39



Table of Contents

Operating Income

Operating income increased 28.9% to $27,800 foafi2011 from $21,572 in fiscal 2010, and as agreage of net sales increased to 6.9%
from 6.6%. This increase in operating income wasgrily due to increased sales volume and incregsestk profit percentage, as discussed
above. The addition of a 38 week to fiscal yearl2€dntributed approximately $800 of the increasegarating income.

Other Expense

Total other expense increased $11,364 to $14,4%¢oyear ended December 30, 2011, from $3,13théoyear ended December 24, 2010.
This increase in total other expense is attribetablthe increase in interest expense for the ¢ieded December 30, 2011 to $14,570 from
$4,041 in the year ended December 24, 2010, whashthe result of a significant increase in deb¢lleduring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010
as we financed the redemption of all of our outditagn Class A units which were held by BGCP/DL, La@d another former investor of ours
with borrowings under our then existing credit Rieis and senior notes. In addition we incurregenses totaling approximately $5,400 for
call premiums and write-off of deferred financireg$ and unamortized OID when we refinanced outR@indebtedness upon completion of
our IPO. We also recognized a gain of $910 on ot@rést rate swap in 2010. This instrument exgimetinuary 2011 and we recorded a gain
of only $81 in 2011.

Provision for Income Taxe:!

Our effective income tax rate was 42.1% and 13.884he years ended December 30, 2011 and Decemb2020, respectively. Our 2010
effective tax rate was significantly impacted bg tecording of deferred tax assets generated esuét of our predecessor company and ea
its operating subsidiaries that were limited lispitompanies electing to be taxed as corporatsdaging in October of 2010. This election was
performed in anticipation of the redemption ofaflbur outstanding Class A units.

Net Income

Reflecting the factors described in more detaivahmet income decreased $8,176 to $7,698 forehe gnded December 30, 2011, compared
to $15,874 for the year ended December 24, 2010.

Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Stockhold

Net income available to common stockholders wa3&for fiscal year 2011 as compared to a netd6$¢10,678) for fiscal year 2010. T
net loss in fiscal 2010 primarily resulted from22$29 deemed dividend paid to our Class A unidléad at the time of the redemption of our
Class A units.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

We finance our day-to-day operations and growtmarily with cash flows from operations, borrowingsder our senior secured credit
facilities, operating leases, trade payables an#t badebtedness. We believe that our cash on hathdwailable credit through our existing
revolving credit facility as discussed below isfmiént for our operations and planned capital exjiteires over the next twelve months.
Depending on our acquisition pipeline and relatggartunities, we may need to obtain additional aele#quity financing, which may include
longer term, fixed rate debt, in order to comptéese acquisitions.

On April 25, 2012, Dairyland USA Corporation, Thadfs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Fool&C, The Chefs’ Warehouse
West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaCl{each a “Borrower” and collectively, the “Borrevs”), the Company and Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC (together with the Comparg/,'Guarantors”) entered into a senior secureditcfadlity (the “New Credit
Agreement”) with the lenders from time to time pattereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (“Chase"pdinistrative agent, and the other
parties thereto. On August 29, 2012, Michael’'s FMeats Holdings, LLC and Michael’'s Finer Meats,@ lwere each added as a Guarantor
under the New Credit Agreement. On January 24, 2088 Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC was added @saantor under the New Credit
Agreement

The New Credit Agreement provides for a senior sstterm loan facility (the “New Term Loan Facilixyn the aggregate amount of up to
$40,000 (the loans thereunder, the “New Term Logast]! a senior secured revolving
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loan facility (the “New Revolving Credit Facilitydnd, together with the New Term Loan Facility, tNew Credit Facilities”) of up to an
aggregate amount of $100,000 (the loans thereutitefNew Revolving Credit Loans”), of which up$5,000 is available for letters of credit
and up to $3,000 is available for short-term boings on a swingline basis. The New Credit Agreenaést provides that the Borrowers may,
at their option, increase the aggregate amounittodreborrowings under the New Revolving Creditilgcor the New Term Loan Facility in
an aggregate amount up to $40,000 (but in notthess $10,000 increments) (the “Accordion”) withdlseé consent of any lenders not
participating in such increase, subject to certaistomary conditions and lenders committing to evhe increase in funding. On
September 28, 2012, the Borrowers under the NewitCAgreement exercised the Accordion in full tanease the aggregate commitments
under the New Revolving Credit Facility portiontbeé New Credit Agreement by $40,000. As a resuthefBorrowers’ exercise of the
Accordion, borrowing capacity under the New RewvudyCredit Loans increased from $100,000 to $140,80®ther terms of the New Credit
Agreement remain unchanged. Unutilized commitmanter the New Revolving Credit Facility portiontbé New Credit Agreement are
subject to a per annum fee of 0.40%. A frontingd€®.25% per annum is payable on the face amdugdch letter of credit issued under the
New Credit Facilities

On April 25, 2012, the Borrowers incurred $40,00@orrowings under the New Term Loan Facility af thew Credit Agreement to repay
existing borrowings under the credit facilitiestthgere put in place in connection with the IPO. Tinal maturity of the New Term Loans is
April 25, 2017. Subject to adjustment for prepayteewe are required to make quarterly principalrpegts on the New Term Loans on
June 30, September 30, December 31 and March 81th first four quarterly payments equal to $0,80d the last sixteen quarterly
payments equal to $1,500, with the remaining baahe upon maturity.

On April 25, 2012, the Borrowers incurred approxieia$3,000 in borrowings under the New Revolvingdit Facility portion of the New
Credit Agreement to repay borrowings under theitfedilities that were put in place in connectioith the IPO. Borrowings under the New
Revolving Credit Facility portion of the New Credigreement have been used, and are expected webefor capital expenditures, permitted
acquisitions, working capital and general corpopatiposes of the Borrowers. The commitments urfteNew Revolving Credit Facility
expire on April 25, 2017 and any New Revolving Grédans then outstanding will be payable in fultlzat time. As of December 28, 2012,
we had $63,180 of availability under the New ReirgCredit Facility portion of the New Credit Agraent. Subsequent to the end of the
2012 fiscal year, we borrowed $21,900 to finaneephrchase price of our acquisition of certain @ssEQueensgate.

Borrowings under the New Credit Facilities beaeiast at the Comparsyoption of either (i) the alternate base rateréegnting the greatest
(1) Chase’s prime rate, (2) the federal funds éffeaate for overnight borrowings plus 1/2 of 1%d43) the Adjusted LIBO Rate for one
month plus 2.50%) plus in each case the applicallein of 0.50% for New Revolving Credit Loans a@WTerm Loans or (ii), in the case of
Eurodollar Borrowings (as defined in the New Crédjiteement), the Adjusted LIBO Rate plus the agflie margin of 3.0% for New
Revolving Credit Loans or New Term Loans. The LIB@te is the rate for eurodollar deposits for aqueequal to one, two, three, six or nine
months (as selected by the Borrowers) appearirigauters Screen LIBORO1 Page (or any successombstitsie page of such service), at
approximately 11:00 a.m. London time, two busirgssgs prior to the commencement of the applicalikrést period.

The New Credit Agreement includes financial covesalmat require (i) the ratio of our consolidatdBIEDA (as defined in the New Credit
Agreement) minus the unfinanced portion of captgdenditures to our consolidated fixed charges wailing twelve month basis as of the ¢
of each of our fiscal quarters to be not less th@b to 1.00 and (ii) the ratio of the Company’ssalidated total indebtedness to our
consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the New Credirédement) for the then trailing twelve months tabegreater than (A) 3.50 to 1.00 for
any fiscal quarter ending in our 2012 and 2013figears, (B) 3.25 to 1.00 for any fiscal quartediag in our 2014 and 2015 fiscal years and
(C) 3.00 to 1.00 for any of our fiscal quartersiagdhereatfter.

On April 26, 2012, Dairyland HP LLC (“DHP”), an iirdctly wholly-owned subsidiary of ours, enteretbia financing arrangement under the
New Markets Tax Credi“NMTC") program under the Internal Revenue Codd 886, as amended (the “Code”), pursuant to which
Commercial Lending Il LLC (“CLII"), a community delopment entity and a subsidiary of JPMorgan Cisas®, N.A., provided to DHP an
$11,000 construction loan (the “NMTC Loan”) to hélmd DHP’s expansion and build-out of our BronxeviNYork facility and the rail shed
located at that facility, which construction is uégd under the facility lease agreement.

Under the NMTC Loan, DHP is obligated to pay Cli)Irionthly interest payments on the principal ba&athen outstanding and (ii) the entire
unpaid principal balance then due and owing on &t 2017. So long as DHP is not in default, iestaccrues on borrowings at 1.00% per
annum. We may prepay the NMTC Loan, in whole grart, in $100 increments, after March 15, 2014.
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Borrowings under the NMTC Loan are secured bys firiority secured lien on DHP’s leasehold inteme®ur Bronx, New York facility,
including all improvements made on the premisesyalbas, among other things, a lien on all fixginecorporated into the project
improvements.

For more information regarding the NMTC Loan, sesea\l1 to the condensed consolidated financiastants appearing elsewhere in this
report.

Our capital expenditures, excluding cash paid éguésitions, for fiscal 2012 were approximatelyXE%. We believe that our capital
expenditures, excluding cash paid for acquisitidmsfiscal 2013 will be approximately $25,000,vafiich $11,000 will be funded with the
restricted cash from the NMTC loan. The significemtrease in projected capital expenditures in 281#ing driven by the renovation and
expansion of our newly leased Bronx, New York disttion facility which we expect will run approxirtedy $21,000 for the year. Recurring
capital expenditures will be financed with cashegated from operations and borrowings under our Rewolving Credit Facility. Our
planned capital projects will provide both new axganded facilities and improvements to our teatgythat we believe will produce
increased efficiency and the capacity to contimusupport the growth of our customer base. Futwestments and acquisitions will be
financed through either internally generated césh,fborrowings under our senior secured credilifes in place at the time of the potential
acquisition or issuance of equity or debt secugitiecluding, but not limited to, longer term, fikeate debt securities and shares of our corr
stock.

Net cash provided by operations was $8,391 forfig012, a decrease of $8,329 from the $16,720iged\by operations for fiscal 2011. T
primary reasons for the decrease in cash provigiezbbrations were $6,813 of increased net incorfeebby a decrease of $5,506 of non-cast
items, a $9,335 increase in the use of cash frorking capital and a $301 net increase in a usasi clue to changes in long-term assets. Th
decrease in non-cash charges were due to the follostharges which were incurred in fiscal 2011 didtnot recur in fiscal 2012: $2,127 of
OID amortization, $1,825 of non-cash interest expeand $2,860 of write-offs of deferred financiegd, in each case associated with the
refinancing of our debt obligations in connectioitwour IPO. In addition, there was $549 less otktcompensation, which was offset by an
increase in cash provided by deferred credits 82$Fhese were offset by increases in depreciatimhamortization of $2,210 and provision
for bad debt of $245. The $9,335 increase in usmsii from working capital was primarily due t0131%1 increase in cash used for inventory
a $2,305 increase in cash used for prepaids amd otinrent assets and a $5,163 decrease in cagbdgudrom accounts payable. Net cash
provided by operations was $16,720 for fiscal 2@iiincrease of $3,196 from the $13,524 providedgsrations for fiscal 2010. The primary
reasons for the increase in cash provided by dpesain 2011 when compared to 2010 were $8,176itesst income offset by an increase of
$13,254 of non-cash items, a $2,481 increase ingkeof cash from working capital and a $599 neteatese in a use of cash due to changes it
long-term assets. The increase in non-cash chaayessted of $2,004 of OID amortization, $1,32%0f-cash interest expense and $2,860 of
write-offs of deferred financing fees, in each cassociated with the refinancing of our debt oliiayes in connection with our IPO. In addition
there was a non-cash charge of $2,097 for stoclpeasation, a net decrease of $3,634 in deferredssats, a net increase of $334 in
depreciation and amortization, a net increaseawipion for allowance for doubtful accounts of $14% well as a $829 decrease in mark to
market gains on derivative contracts. The $2,48femse in working capital was primarily due to ¢6%8 increase in cash used for inventory
and a $1,390 increase in cash used for receivaiffsst by a $1,525 increase in cash provided lop@ats payable.

Net cash used in investing activities was $75,0t4iscal 2012, an increase of $55,881 from the, &39 used in investing activities for fist
2011. The increase was due to the acquisition aiPand Michael's at cash purchase prices totdlif®y521 during fiscal 2012 versus the
acquisitions of Harry Wils and Provvista Specid&ityods, Inc. at cash purchase prices totaling $¥7Jusing fiscal 2011. In addition, capital
expenditures were $1,105 higher in fiscal 2012.¢dsh used in investing activities was $19,833ifmal 2011, an increase of $14,962 from
the $4,871 used in investing activities for fis2@IL0. The increase was due to the acquisition ofyH&/ils and Provvista. at cash purchase
prices totaling $17,757 during fiscal 2011 verdwesdcquisition of Monique & Me, Inc. at a cash pase price of $3,738 during fiscal 2010. In
addition, capital expenditures were $948 highdisical 2011.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $68,#for fiscal 2012, an increase of $62,240 from$Bg 68 provided by financing activiti
for fiscal 2011. This increase resulted from praseef our New Term Loan Facility, borrowings under New Revolving Credit Facility, net
of payments made to pay off borrowings under
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our senior secured credit facilities in place pt@our April 2012 refinancing. Net cash providegdfimancing activities was $3,168 for fiscal
2011, an increase of $10,718 from the $7,550 uséidancing activities for fiscal 2010. This incsearesulted from proceeds of our IPO,
borrowings under our new senior secured creditifiachet of payments made to pay off borrowingsl@nour senior secured credit facilities in
place prior to our IPO and our senior subordinaietes.

Commitments and Significant Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions and commercial commitments at Decembe?@B?.

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

LESS THAN
13 35
TOTAL ONE YEAR YEARS YEARS THEREAFTER
(In thousands)

Inventory purchase commitmer $ 10,38¢ $ 10,38¢ $ — $ — $ —
Indebtednes $124,47 $ 511C $12,22( $107,14° $ —
Capital lease obligatior $ 561 $ 191 $ 23C $ 137 $ 3
Long-term nol-capitalized lease $ 53,23 $ 9,18¢ $14,18: $ 9,668 $ 20,208
Total $188,65¢ $ 24,87 $26,63: $116,94 $ 20,20¢

The indebtedness for our revolver and term loanvshabove exclude interest payments due because ifgtsuments have floating rate debt.
A portion of the indebtedness obligations showiermfthe expiration of our senior secured creditlitg, not necessarily the underlying
individual borrowings. In addition, cash to be padincome taxes is excluded from the table above.

One of our subsidiaries, Dairyland USA Corporationpairyland, subleases one of its distributiontees from an entity controlled by our
founders, The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co., LL& Thefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co., LLC leases theildlision center from the New York
City Industrial Development Agency. In connectioithithis sublease arrangement, Dairyland and twouofother subsidiaries are required to
act as conditional guarantors of The Chefs’ Warsbdieasing Co., LLC’s mortgage obligation on trerdution center. The mortgage payoff
date is December 2029 and the potential obligatiater this conditional guarantee totaled $10,5Metember 28, 2012. On July 1, 2005,
these subsidiary guarantors entered into a coasehtelease agreement with the mortgagee in whelkentity guarantors were conditionally
released from their respective obligations. The gamy and the entity guarantors continue to be mptmnce with the specified conditions.
The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co., LLC has thetghdiopt out of its lease agreement with the NewvkYCity Industrial Development
Agency by giving 60 days’ notice. This action woaklise the concurrent reduction in the term obth#ease with Dairyland to December
2014.

We had outstanding letters of credit of approxifya$d,820 and $120 at December 28, 2012 and Dece®ihe01l, respectively.

Substantially all of our assets are pledged asiswhl to secure our borrowings under our senicureg credit facilities.

Seasonality

Generally, we do not experience any material sedtgpnHowever, our sales and operating results waay from quarter to quarter due to
factors such as changes in our operating expemsesggement’s ability to execute our operating aondvth strategies, personnel changes,
demand for our products, supply shortages and geaeonomic conditions.

Inflation

Our profitability is dependent, among other things,our ability to anticipate and react to chanigee costs of key operating resources,
including food and other raw materials, labor, ggeand other supplies and services. Substantied@ses in costs and expenses could impact
our operating results to the extent that such asme cannot be passed along to our customersmpiaet of inflation on food, labor, energy
occupancy costs can significantly affect the padiility of our operations.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 28, 2012, we did not have any oféifize sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 3@3(@#) of Regulation S-K.
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ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

On April 25, 2012, the Borrowers and the Guaranémtered into the New Credit Agreement with thelins from time to time party thereto,
Chase, as Administrative Agent, and the other gattiereto described in more detail above undezagpton “Liquidity and Capital Resources”
in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of Operations.” Our priynavarket risks are related to
fluctuations in interest rates related to borrowgingder our current credit facilities.

As of December 28, 2012, we had an aggregdtt3,000 of indebtedness outstanding under the NewelRing Credit Facility and New Term
Loan Facility that bore interest at variable rae4.00 basis point increase in market interestrateuld decrease our after tax earnings by
approximately$ 654 per annum, holding other variables constant.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. as of Deee8, 2012 and December 30,
2011 and the related consolidated statements oatipes, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows facteof the three fiscal years in the period
ended December 28, 2012. These financial stateraemthe responsibility of the Company’s managem@ut responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our auditwigle a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of The Chefs'
Warehouse, Inc. at December 28, 2012 and Decenth@031, and the results of its operations andagh flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended December 28, Z, in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc.'s internal control over financipaerting as of December 28, 2012, based on criéstiblished imnternal Control —
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repated
March 13, 2013 expressed an unqualified opiniorethre

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Melville, NY
March 13, 2013
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THE CHEFS' WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,4400t02 and $2,900 in 201
Inventories, ne
Deferred taxes, nt
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Restricted cas
Equipment and leasehold improvements,
Software costs, nt
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Deferred taxes, nt
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensatic
Current portion of lon-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Deferred taxes, nt
Other liabilities and deferred cred
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder equity:

Preferred Stock—$0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shargmazed, no shares issued and outstanding at
December 28, 2012 and December 30, 2

Common Stock—@.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized88M%3 and 20,840,590 shares iss
and outstanding at December 28, 2012 and Decenih@031, respectivel

Additional paid in capita

Retained earning

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde' equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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December 28
2012

December 30
2011

(In thousands, except share date

$ 11¢ $ 2,03¢
56,69« 42,87¢
40,40: 23,87
2,83¢ 1,44¢
5,452 3,36¢
105,50¢ 73,59¢
11,00¢ —
9,36t 5,37¢

32¢ 35¢
45,35¢ 20,59(
35,70¢ 5,11¢
— 1,401
2,861 1,44+

$ 210,13 $ 107,87¢
$ 33,71¢ $ 30,37
5,291 3,83¢
3,51¢ 3,50¢
5,17¢ 6,107
47,70 43,82¢
119,35; 39,59(
2,552 —
1,24t 89<
170,85: 84,30¢
21C 20¢
21,00¢ 19,80¢
18,061 3,55¢
39,28 23,57(

$ 210,13 $ 107,87¢
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharereunts)

December 28

Fiscal Year Ended

December 30

December 24

2012 2011 2010

Net revenue $ 480,29: $ 400,63: $ 330,11
Cost of sale: 355,28t 294,69t 244,34

Gross profit 125,00« 105,93« 85,77¢
Operating expenst 96,237 78,13¢ 64,20¢

Operating incom: 28,76, 27,79t 21,57:
Interest expens 3,67¢ 14,57( 4,041
Gain on fluctuation of interest rate sw — (82) (910
Loss on sale of asse 18 6 —
Income before income tax 25,07¢ 13,30: 18,44:
Provision for income taxe 10,56¢ 5,60:% 2,561
Net income $ 1451 $ 7,69¢ $ 15,87
Deemed dividend accretion on Class A men” units — — (4,129
Deemed dividend paid to Class A meml units — — (22,429
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhi $ 1451 $ 7,69¢ $ (10,679
Net income (loss) per share attributable to comstookholders

Basic $ 0.7C $ 0.44 (0.50

Diluted $ 0.6¢ $ 0.4: (0.50)
Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic 20,612,40 17,591,37 21,331,64

Diluted 20,926,36 18,031,65 21,331,64

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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THE CHEFS' WAREHOUSE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 28, 2012, December 2011 and December 24, 2010
(Amounts in thousands, except unit/share amounts)

Balance December 25, 20C

Accretion of Class A Units to liquidation
value

Redemption of Class A uni

Purchase of Class C un

Forfeiture of Class C uni

Distribution to member

Net income

Balance December 24, 201

Net income- pre-conversior

Conversion to C Corporatic

Net proceeds from IP!

Net income- post conversiol

Stock compensatic

Shares surrendered to pay withholding t¢

Balance December 30, 201

Net income

Stock compensatic

Shares surrendered to pay withholding t¢

Balance December 28, 201

Class A Common Stock
Additional
Memberg’ Retainec
Class B Class C Paid in
Units Amount Units Units Deficit Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total
25,000,00 $41,69¢ 50,000,00 4,927,000 $ (36,369 — $ — $ — $ — $(36,36¢)
— 4,12: — — (4,127) — — — — (4,127)
(25,000,00) (45,82} — — (22,429 — — — — (22,429
— — — (552,000 179 — — — — (173)
— — — — (1,597 — — — — (1,599
— — — — 15,87 — — — — 15,87
— — 50,000,00 4,375,000 $ (48,81) — $ — $ — $ — $(48,817)
— — — — 4,142 — — — — 4,14:
(50,000,00) (4,375,00i) 44,67( 16,000,00 16C (44,83() — —

— — — — — 4,666,66 47 63,23: — 63,27¢
— — — — — — — — 3,55¢ 3,55¢
— — — — — 212,31¢ 2 2,09t — 2,097
— — — — — (38,399 (1) (691) — (692)
— — — — $ — 20,84059 $ 20¢ $ 19,80¢ $ 3,55¢ $23,57(
— — — — — — — 14,51: 14,51:
— — — — — 171,23 2 1,54¢ — 1,547
— — — — — (23,750 — (34€) — (34€)
0 3 0 0 0 $ 0 20,98807 $ 21C $ 21,00¢ $ 18,060 $39,28:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 28, 2012, December 2011, and December 24, 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

December 2¢ December 3C December 24
2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 14,51 $ 7,69¢ $ 15,87
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,93 1,72 1,38¢
Provision for allowance for doubtful accoul 1,43¢ 1,18¢ 1,04z
Original issue discount amortizatis — 2,127 12z
Deferred credit: 302 (290) (302)
Deferred taxe (83 1,16¢ (2,470
Unrealized gain on interest rate sv — (81) (910
Accrual of paid in kind intere: — 1,82¢ 50C
Amortization of deferred financing fe: 44¢€ 721 71t
Write off of deferred financing fee 237 2,86( —
Stock compensatia 1,54 2,097 —
Loss on asset dispos 18 6 —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisiti
Accounts receivabl (7,739 (7,039 (5,647
Inventories (5,130 (3,969 (450
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (2,060 24E (65¢)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 1,35( 6,51z 4,98¢
Other asset (379 (74) (86%)
Receivable from related pat — — 19C
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,391 16,72( 13,52«
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure (3,186 (2,08)) (1,139
Cash paid for acquisitior (72,527 (17,757 (3,739
Interest on restricted ca @) — —
Proceeds from asset dispos — 5 —
Net cash used in investing activitie (75,719 (19,839 (4,870
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash paid for Class C shal — — (179
Redemption of Class A shar — — (68,250
Net proceeds from IP! — 63,27¢ —
Proceeds from new senior secured | 40,00( 30,00( —
Borrowing of deb — 97,50(
Payment of debt and capital lease obligati (30,13) (93,285 (20,400
Borrowing under revolving credit lir 248,25¢ 399,87 325,81(
Payments under revolving credit li (190,64 (394,719 (334,08)
Payment of deferred financing fe (1,739 (1,299 (5,967
Surrender of shares to pay withholding ta (34€) (692) —
Distributions to stockholdel — — (1,599
Other — — (399
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie 65,40¢ 3,16¢ (7,550
Net change in cash and cash equival (1,91 55 1,102
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 2,03: 1,97¢ 87&
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $ 11¢ $ 2,03 $ 1,97¢

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for income tax $ 12,29 $ 2,641 $ 5,78¢

Cash paid for intere: $ 2,781 $ 7,35t $ 3,53¢
Noncash investing activity

Capital least $ 342 $ 342 $ —
Noncash financing activity

Accretion of Class A shart $ — $ — $ 4,12

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharereunts)

Note 1—Operations and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business and Basis of Presentati

The financial statements include the consolidatedants of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. (the “Comflamand its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
The Company’s quarterly periods end on the thitte&niday of each quarter. Every six to seven ydasCompany will add a fourteenth week
to its fourth quarter to more closely align its yead to the calendar year. In 2011, this resutted53-week year ending December 30, 2011.
The Company operates in one segment, food prodstcibdition, which is concentrated on the East Wbt Coasts of the United States. The
Company’s customer base consists primarily of mgsinen independent restaurants, fine dining esthbiients, country clubs, hotels, caterers
culinary schools and specialty food stores.

On July 27, 2011, the Company completed a reorgéinizin which the predecessor to the Company, £hgarehouse Holdings, LLC, was
converted into the Company (the “Conversion”). &stwf the Conversion the Company issued 16,000s6@8es of common stock. Each
holder of the Company’s Class B and Class C uaiteived approximately 0.2942 shares of common dtwakach unit of membership interest
in Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, LLC owned by therthattime of the Conversion. Of the total numbesitdres issued in the Conversion,
445,056 shares were restricted shares of the Corigpemmmon stock issued upon conversion of the Gomjs Class C units that had not
vested as of the date the Company consummatedatme@sion. The effects of this reorganization an@wmpany’s earnings per share have
been reflected for all periods presented retroaftiv

On August 2, 2011, the Company completed the Irptidlic offering (“IPO”) of shares of its commotosk. The Company issued 4,666,667
shares in the offering, and certain existing stoddtérs sold an additional 5,683,333 shares, inolydi,350,000 shares sold to the underwriters
to cover over-allotments. The Company receivedonateeds from the offering of approximately $63,2afer the payment of underwriter
discounts and commissions and offering expensas)tbre used, together with borrowings under then@any’s then-existing senior secured
credit facilities, to repay all of the Company’aits outstanding under its former senior secureditdeilities and senior subordinated notes,
including any accrued and unpaid interest andpraliniums.

Consolidation of Ownership

On October 22, 2010, Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ké@2emed all of its authorized and outstanding<Runits of limited liability

company membership interests for a redemption @i&68,250. The redemption price consisted of &5 of principal and accreted interest,
as well as $22,429 of deemed equity value. Themgtien price was calculated in line with Chefs’ Waouse Holdings, LLG limited liability
company agreement then in effect and was mutughgea upon by all participating parties. The redéonpresulted in the Class B and Class C
unit holders of ChefsiWarehouse Holdings, LLC increasing their ownershiprests from 68.5% to 100%. The Class A unitsewetired at th
time of redemption.

Consolidation

The Company’s direct and indirect wholly-owned @tierg companies include the following: DairylandAJ8orporation (“Dairyland”)a New
York corporation engaged in business as a distitnitdairy, meat, and specialty foods; Bel Camods, LLC, a New York limited liability
company engaged in the business of importing pilynEirediterranean style food products; Dairyland HEC, a New York limited liability
company (“DHP”) engaged in the business of rentésaj estate; The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, | laMelaware limited liability
company engaged in a business similar to Dairylpricharily in Maryland and the District of Columbi@he Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company engag®@dai business similar to Dairyland, primarily in @ahia, Nevada, Oregon and Washing
Michael's Finer Meats, LLC, a Delaware limited liitly company engaged in the distribution of mes#tafood and other center-of-the-plate
products, primarily in Ohio, Indiana, lllinois, Tieessee, Michigan, Kentucky, West Virginia and wesEennsylvania; The Chefs’ Warehouse
Midwest, LLC, a Delaware limited liability compamygaged in a business similar to Dairyland, primami Ohio, Kentucky and Indiana; and
The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, a Delawangtied liability company engaged in a business sintib Dairyland,
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primarily in southern Florida. In addition to theggerating companies, the Company also owns 100@hefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company which owns 10@%The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, The C&iefVarehouse West Coast, LLC,
The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC and Michaé&fiser Meats Holdings, LLC. Dairyland owns 100% @l Eanto Foods, LLC and
Dairyland HP LLC. Michael’s Finer Meats Holdingd,C owns 100% of Michael's Finer Meats, LLC. All sificant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated fir@rstatements in conformity with generally acegpaccounting principles requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect repanedints of assets, liabilities, revenues, expesseslisclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Estimates are used in determining, agiother items, the allowance for doubtful accourgserves for inventories, self-insurance
reserves for group medical insurance, workers’ camsption insurance, and automobile liability insgeg future cash flows associated with
impairment testing for intangible assets and Iangd assets, useful lives for intangible asset&ksbased compensation and tax reserves.
Actual results could differ from estimates.

Current Year Acquisitions
The Company’s acquisition of Praml Internationat].L(“Praml”) in the second quarter of fiscal 2042s not material and, accordingly, pro
forma financial information giving effect to thecagsition of Praml are not required to be includethese financial statements.

The Company’s acquisition of Michael's Finer MeadtsC (“Michael’s”) in the third quarter of fiscal®.2 was deemed to be material and,
accordingly, pro forma financial information givimgfect to the acquisition of Michael's is includedthese financial statements (See Note 6).

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recoghnitio

Revenue from the sale of a product is recognizékeapoint at which the product is delivered to ¢hstomer. The Company grants certain
customers sales incentives such as rebates owudiscand treats these as a reduction of saleg &tk the sale is recognized. Sales tax billed
to customers is not included in revenue but ratbeorded as a liability owed to the respectivertgyduthorities at the time the sale is
recognized.

Cost of Goods Sold (COGS)

The Company records COGS based upon the net perphiae paid for a product, including applicableight charges incurred to deliver the
product to the Company’s warehouse.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include the costs of facilipesduct handling and replenishment, protein prsiogscosts, delivering, selling and general
administrative activities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmausith an original maturity of less than three manth be cash equivalents. The Company
periodically maintains balances at financial ingittns which may exceed Federal Deposit Insurarmpdation (“FDIC”) insured limits. The
Company has not experienced any losses in sucluaiscand believes it is not exposed to any siganificisks on its cash in bank accounts.

Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable consist of trade receivables fcustomers and are recorded net of an allowanwadolibtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is determined based upon a nuoftsgecific criteria, such as whether a
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customer has filed for or been placed into bankwyptas had accounts referred to outside partresoltections or has had accounts
significantly past due. The allowance also covaratspaid invoices the Company deems to be undaliée as well as a portion of trade
accounts receivable balances projected to becormleatable based upon historic patterns.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of finished goodspdicand related food products held for resale aadralued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-
out method) or market. The Company maintains resefor slow-moving and obsolete inventories.

Purchase Incentive:

The Company receives consideration and productpsgeccredits from certain vendors that the Compangunts for as a reduction of COGS.
There are several types of cash considerationvegdiom vendors. The purchase incentive is priparithe form of a specified amount per
pound or per case. For the years ended Decemb2028, December 30, 2011, and December 24, 20&0etiorded purchase incentives
totaled approximately $5,134, $4,820, and $3,98¢pectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risks

Financial instruments that subject the Companytwentrations of credit risk consist of cash, terapocash investments, trade receivables,
and short-term and long-term debt. The Compspylicy is to deposit its cash and temporary éasbstments with major financial institutio
The Company distributes its food and related prtslteca customer base that consists primarily strgants, country clubs, catering halls,
hotels and other institutions. To reduce credi, rike Company performs ongoing credit evaluatimiiss customers’ financial conditions. The
Company generally does not require collateral. Hergthe Company, in certain instances, has oldgieesonal guarantees from certain
customers. There is no significant balance withiadywidual customer.

Equipment and Leasehold Improvemer

The Company records equipment and leasehold imprerts at cost. Equipment that has been financeddhrcapital leases is recorded at
present value of the minimum lease payments, wégroximates cost. Equipment and leasehold impremsnincluding capital lease assets,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis based egtimated useful life.

Software Cost:

The Company capitalizes certain computer softwiaenses and software implementation costs thahaheded in software costs in its
consolidated balance sheets. These costs weraeddarconnection with developing or obtaining cangp software for internal use if it has a
useful life in excess of one year, in accordandé viccounting Standards Codification (ASC) 350-4@érnal-Use Software”. Subsequent
additions, modifications or upgrades to internad-asftware are capitalized only to the extent they allow the software to perform a task that
it previously did not perform. Internal use softeé amortized on a straight-line basis over agthoeseven year period. Capitalized costs
include direct acquisitions as well as software switivare development acquired under capitalizadds. Capitalized software purchases and
related development costs, net of accumulated &atan, were $328 at December 28, 2012 and $3B®aember 30, 2011.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, other than goodwill, are revigia impairment in accordance with ASC 360-10-F-1mpairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets' that only requires testing whenever events or ceafigcircumstances indicate that the carrying arhofithe assets may not be
recoverable. If any indicators are present, a re@hility test is performed by comparing the cargyamount of the asset to the net
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generatedtiie asset. If the net undiscounted cash flowsad@xceed the carrying amount (i.e., the
asset is not recoverable), an additional stepripeed that determines the fair value of the aasdtthe Company records an impairment, if
any.
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Debt Issuance Cost

Certain costs associated with the issuance ofidststments are capitalized and included in nomenurassets in the consolidated balance
sheets. The Company had unamortized debt issuasteaf $2,435 and $1,061 as of December 28, 20dDacember 30, 2011, respectively.
These costs are amortized over the terms of thgeetebt instruments on a straight-line basis. Meatdion of debt issuance costs was $446
for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2012, $@R1hk fiscal year ended December 30, 2011, an8 8#1the fiscal year ended

December 24, 2010. In addition, we wrote off debtiance costs totaling $237 and $2,860 in fisch? 20d fiscal 2011, respectively, in
connection with the refinancing of our senior seducredit facilities.

Intangible Asset:

The intangible assets recorded by the Company stoofscustomer relationships, covenants not to @aispnd trademarks which are amortize
over their useful lives on a schedule that apprexés the pattern in which economic benefits ofiikengible assets are consumed. Intangible
assets with finite lives are tested for impairmwhenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Undiscounted cash flows expected geberated by the related assets are estimatedr@vassets’ useful lives based on update
projections. If the evaluation indicates that therging amount of the asset may not be recover#iidepotential impairment is measured basec
on a projected discounted cash flow model. Thewve li@en no events or changes in circumstancesgd2@ib2 or 2011 indicating that the
carrying value of our finite-lived intangible assete not recoverable.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost wfihesses over the fair value of identifiable resets acquired in accordance with ASC 350,
“Intangibles-Goodwill and Other”. Impairment tegjifor goodwill is performed at least annually andrenfrequently if indicators of
impairment exist. Impairment testing for goodwtias a two-step approach, which is performed atdhsolidated level, as the Company has :
single reporting unit. Stage one compares thevidire of the Company (using the market capitalatipproach) with its carrying value. If the
carrying value exceeds the fair value, there istamgial impairment and step two must be perforn®dge two compares the carrying value of
the entity’s goodwill to its implied fair value €i., fair value of the entity less the fair valuetod entity’s assets and liabilities, including
identifiable intangible assets). If the carryindueaof goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, tecess is required to be recorded as
impairment. There have been no events or changascimmstances during 2012, 2011 or 2010 indicattiag goodwill may be impaired.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are carried as assets or liabilitietheir fair values in accordance with ASC 820 “Féilue Measurements”. The Company’s
derivative was comprised of an interest rate swapmitment entered into with a financial institutitmhedge the risk associated with the
Company'’s variable rate debt. The swap expireditudry 2011 and therefore had no value as of Deee&®) 2012 or December 30, 2011.
Prior to its expiration, the financial instrumeid diot qualify for hedge accounting and was caraethir value with the changes in fair value
recorded in earnings.

Employee Benefit Program

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plarergeg substantially all full-time employees (th&01(k) Plan”). Beginning in fiscal 2011,
the Company elected to make matching contributiorike 401(k) Plan at 50 percent of employee cbuations to a maximum of three percent
of an employee’s salary. The Company recognizeemsgtotaling $337 and $300, respectively, foiytsrs ended December 28, 2012 and
December 30, 2011.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740, “Income Taxes”. Deferred tax assetkabilities are recorded to reflect
the future tax consequences of temporary differebetween the financial reporting basis of asseddiabilities and their tax basis at each
yearend. These amounts are adjusted, as appropoatefléct enacted changes in tax rates expectbd to effect when the temporary
differences reverse. The Company follows certadovigions of ASC 740, “Income Taxes” (previously oejed as Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — ateipretation of FASB Statement No. 109) which dihbd a single model to address
accounting for uncertain tax
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positions and clarifies the accounting for incorests by prescribing a minimum recognition threshb#t a tax position is required to meet
before being recognized in the financial statemertie Company evaluates uncertain tax positioremyf by determining if it is more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination by thaushorities. The Company records uncertain tasitipms when they are estimable and
probable that such liabilities have been incurfidgte Company, when required, will accrue interest p@nalties related to income tax matte!
income tax expense.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is subject to various claims and cgsticies related to lawsuits, taxes and environrheratters, as well as commitments undel
contractual and other commercial obligations. Tlhen@any recognizes liabilities for contingencies anthmitments when a loss is probable
and can be reasonably estimated.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures stock-based compensatioa gtaht date based on the fair value of the avRedtricted stock awards are valued
based on the fair value of the stock on the grate dnd the related compensation expense is remmmjaver the service period. Similarly, for
time-based restricted stock awards subject to gradsting, the Company ensures that the compensatjpense recognized is at least equal t
the vested portion of the award.

SelfInsurance Reserves

Effective October 1, 2011, the Company began miaiintg a self-insured group medical program. Thegpam contains individual as well as
aggregate stop loss thresholds. The amount in exddke self-insured levels is fully insured birdhparty insurers. Liabilities associated with
this program are estimated in part by consideristphical claims experience and medical cost treRdsjections of future loss expenses are
inherently uncertain because of the random natliressarance claims occurrences and could be sigifly affected if future occurrences and
claims differ from these assumptions and histotticaids.

Effective August 1, 2012, the Company became sslfiied for workers’ compensation and automobilaillig to deductibles or self-insured
retentions of $350 for workers compensation and$2abautomobile liability per occurrence. The amtsuin excess of the Company’s
deductibles are fully insured by third party ingsrd.iabilities associated with this program argneated in part by considering historical cla
experience and cost trends. Projections of fulnse &xpenses are inherently uncertain because adtilom nature of insurance claims
occurrences and could be significantly affectefdtifire occurrences and claims differ from thesemggions and historical trends.

Fair Value Measurements

The carrying values of the Company’s assets ahditias approximate the fair values except for thie value of the Company’s debt, which
are based on prevailing interest rates and marieagfor debt of similar terms and maturities.gkecember 28, 2012, the Company had no
financial instruments required to be measurediavéue.

Note 3 — Net Income (Loss) per Share
The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings (loss) per unit/share:
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Fiscal Year Ende

December 28, December 30, December 24,
2012 2011 2010

Net income $ 14,51 $ 7,69¢ $ 15,87¢
Deemed dividend accretion on Class A men” units — — (4,127
Deemed dividend paid to Class A meml" units — — (22,429
Net income (loss) attributable to comrr

shares/membe’ units $ 1451 $ 7,69¢ $ (10,679
Net income (loss) per share/unit attributable tmeowmn

stockholders/members
Basic $ 0.7 $ 0.44 $ (0.50)
Diluted $ 0.6¢ $ 0.45 $ (0.50)
Weighted average common shares/units outstandjn
Basic 20,612,40 17,591,37 21,331,64
Diluted 20,926,36 18,031,65 21,331,64

(1) Adjusted to reflect effect of reorganizatioartsaction completed on July 27, 2011 in which Ch#&rehouse Holdings, LLC was
converted into The Che Warehouse, Inc. (See Note

Reconciliation of earnings (loss) per common shauig/

Fiscal Year Ende

December 28, December 30, December 24,
2012 2011 2010

Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to comrr

stockholders/membe $ 1451 $ 7,69¢ $ (10,679
Denominator :
Weighted average basic common shares/units

outstanding 20,612,40 17,591,37 21,331,64
Dilutive effect of unvested common shares/u 313,95¢ 440,27! —
Weighted average diluted common shares/units

outstanding 20,926,36 18,031,65 21,331,64

For fiscal 2010, a weighted average of 741,682 sit@¢eshares/units was not included in fully dilusédres/units outstanding because they
would have been anti-dilutive.

Note 4 — Derivatives

Derivatives are carried as assets or liabilitietheir fair values in accordance with ASC 820, tR#ilue Measurements”. During portions of
the periods covered by these financial statemémdsCompany had entered into two derivative cotdrawither of which qualified for hedge
accounting. The gains and losses on these insttgrder to changes in fair value were recognizédenCompany’s consolidated statements ¢
operations.
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The Company is exposed to certain risks relatingstongoing business operations. During fiscall2@te primary risks the Company mans
using derivative instruments were foreign curreegghange rate risk and variable interest rate risk.

The Company previously entered into an interest satap agreement to hedge the exposure on ithlarate debt. This agreement expired in
January 2011.

In January 2011, the Company entered into a forexgmange collar contract to hedge its exposuvatiability in the Euro/US Dollar
exchange rate. This agreement expired in Decenldel. 2As part of its business, the Company reguianfyorts products from Europe that
require payment in Euros. This contract required@ompany to purchase and sell Euros throughouwteheto pay for forecasted imports.
During fiscal 2011 the collar was used to purct4é million Euros.

In February 2012, the Company purchased an otiteoftoney Brent Crude Option as a hedge againstiiaitgeo-political disruptions in the
Middle East. This option expired on June 11, 2012.

Financial Statement Presentation

The effect of the Company’s derivative instrumenridts consolidated statements of operations fefittal years ended December 28,
2012, December 30, 2011, and December 24, 201@svadlows:

Fiscal Year Ende

Decembe Decembe December 2:
28, 30,
2012 2011 2010
Location of income (expense)
recognized on derivativ
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instrument:
Foreign currency collars gain (los Cost of sale: $ — $ (46 $ —
Brent crude oil optiol Operating expenst $ (17 $ — $ —
Interest rate swaps Gain on fluctuation of interest
rate sway $ — $ 81 $ 91C

Note 5 — Fair Value Measurements

The Company accounts for certain assets and tiakifat fair value. The Company categorizes eadts ¢ir value measurements in one of the
following three levels based on the lowest leveliinthat is significant to the fair value measuraete its entirety:

Level 1—Inputs to the valuation methodology aredjusted quoted prices in active markets for idettissets.
Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted pricegtive markets for identical assets and liab#iinclude the following:

58



Table of Contents

a) guoted prices for similar assets in active mark

b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets &ctive markets

C) inputs other than quoted prices that are obsenfabkhe asset; an

d) inputs that are derived principally from or corrofted by observable market data by correlationttogromeans

If the asset has a specified (contractual) term#vel 2 input must be observable for substagtthl full term of the asset.

Level 3—Inputs to the valuation methodology arehs®svable (i.e., supported by little or no marlativity) and significant to the fair
value measure.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Valt
As of December 28, 2012 and December 30, 2011Ctimepany had no assets or liabilities required tonbasured at fair value.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the Company’s aliaeted balance sheets for accounts receivabl@aeomilnts payable approximate fair
value due to the immediate to short-term maturitthese financial instruments. The fair valueshaf turrent and former revolving credit
facilities and term loans, as applicable, approx@daheir book values as of December 28, 2012 awkidber 30, 2011, as these instruments
had variable interest rates that reflected cunmeanket rates.

Note 6 — Acquisitions

The Company accounts for acquisitions in accordaitte ASC 805 “Business Combinations”. Assets arefiand liabilities assumed are
recorded in the accompanying consolidated balaneetst their estimated fair values as of the aitipm date. Results of operations are
included in the Company’s financial statements ftomdate of acquisition. For the acquisitions ddielow, the Company used the income
approach to determine the fair value of the Levat&ets.

On August 10, 2012, the Company acquired 100%ebtltstanding equity interests of Michael's, anddtorporation, for approximately
$52,973 net of $536 of cash. Michael’s distribitasextensive portfolio of custom cut beef, seafaod other center-of-the-plate products to
many of the leading restaurants, country clubsgle@nd casinos in Ohio, Indiana, Illinois, TeneesMichigan, Kentucky, West Virginia and
western Pennsylvania. The Company financed thehpsecprice with borrowings under its New Creditiltas (as defined below). During tt
third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company experg®fl of legal fees in operating expenses relatéde@cquisition. The Company completed &
formal valuation of the intangible and certain tétgyassets of Michael's. The financial statemeetiect the results of the valuation of the
goodwill, intangible assets and fixed assets weliaed in the transaction. These assets were vatfdr value using Level 3 inputs. Other
intangible assets consist of customer relationshvpgch will be amortized over 10 years, two tradeks, which will be amortized over 12-20
years, and covenants not to compete, which wiiinertized over 5 years. Goodwill for the Micl’s acquisition will be amortized for tax
purposes over a period of 15 years. For the figeat ended December 28, 2012 the Company earnedlestand income before taxes totaling
$35,771 and $2,546, respectively, for Michael’s.

On April 27, 2012, the Company acquired 100% ofdbistanding common stock of Praml, a Nevada catfor, for approximately $19,548
cash. Praml is a leading specialty foodservice @mhat has serviced the Las Vegas and Reno rsddketdver 20 years. The Company
financed the purchase price with borrowings untéeeNew Credit Facilities. During the second quasteiiscal 2012, the Company expensed
$23 of legal fees in operating expenses relatédet@cquisition. Pro forma financial informationthviespect to the acquisition of Praml is not
required to be included in these financial statasesince the effects of the acquisition are naemn to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. The Company has completed a valudtithe dangible and intangible assets of Praml. €lessets were valued at fair value using
Level 3 inputs. Other intangible assets consistustomer relationships which will be amortized o¥gryears, covenants not to compete, whic
will be amortized over 6 years, and two trademanitsch will be amortized over 1-20 years. Goodyioll the Praml acquisition is not
deductible for tax purposes.
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On November 7, 2011, the Company purchased sulzdhaiatl the assets of Provvista Specialty Fodds, (“Provvista”), including Provvista’
customer list, inventory and certain intellectuadgerty. Prowvista is a leading specialty foodsamgr and wholesale distributor located in
Portland, Oregon, which services the Portland, Gmeand Seattle, Washington metropolitan areas plinehase price paid to Provvista was
approximately $8,800. The Company financed thelmse price with borrowings under its senior secoegdlving credit facility existing at
that time. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 201He Company expensed $20 of legal fees in operatipenses related to the acquisition. Prc
forma financial information with respect to the aisition of Provvista’s assets is not required ¢arcluded in these financial statements, sinc
the effects of the acquisition are not materiah® Companys consolidated financial statements. The Compasycbmpleted a valuation of 1
tangible and intangible assets of Provvista. Thasets were valued at fair value using Level 3tsygBoodwill for the Provvista acquisition
will be amortized for tax purposes over a period ®fyears. Other intangible assets consist of ousteelationships, which will be amortized
over 13 years and trademarks, which will be amedtiaver 2 years. The Company expects to operater tinel Provvista name in these new
markets for the foreseeable future.

On June 24, 2011, the Company completed its a¢quisif certain assets of Harry Wils & Co. (“Hawils”), a specialty foodservice
distribution company headquartered in the New Yoitly metropolitan area. The operations of HarrydMiere immediately combined with 1
Company’s existing New York operations. The purehaisce paid to Harry Wils was approximately $8,9008e Company financed the
purchase price for these assets with borrowingsuitslthen-existing senior secured credit faeitiDuring the second quarter of fiscal 2011,
the Company expensed $55 of legal fees in operatipgnses related to the acquisition. Pro formenfiral information with respect to the
acquisition of Harry Wils is not required to belunted in these financial statements, since thectffef the acquisition are not material to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. The@oy has completed a valuation of the intangibtets of Harry Wils. These assets wert
valued at fair value using Level 3 inputs. Goodfal the Harry Wils acquisition will be amortizedrftax purposes over a period of 15 years.
Other intangible assets consist of customer relaliips, which will be amortized over 10.5 years.

The table below details the assets and liabildaeguired as part of the acquisitions of Michae$o8August 10, 2012, Praml as of April 27,
2012, Provvista as of November 7, 2011 and Harrg 48 of June 24, 2011 and the allocation of threl@ase price paid in connection with
these acquisitions.

Michae's Praml Provviste Harry Wils
Current assets $16,16: $ 3,31¢ $3,107 $ 1,18i
Customer relationshir 12,43: 4,18 1,707 2,75z
Trademark: 12,72+ 1,36¢ 30C —
Goodwill 11,90 12,86¢ 4,14z 4,96¢
Non-compete agreeme 477 1,254 — —
Fixed asset 2,871 — 10C —
Deferred tax asse 28 — — —
Deferred tax liability — (2,67€) — —
Capital lease (343) — — —
Current liabilities (2,74%) (767) (50¢) —
Purchase pric $53,50¢ $19,54¢ $8,84¢ $ 8,90¢

The table below presents pro forma consolidatednrestatement information as if Michael's had bieetuded in the Compang’consolidate
results for the entire periods reflected. The jpronfa information has been prepared using the paechreethod of accounting, giving effect to
the Michael’s acquisition as if the acquisition Heen completed on December 25, 2010. The pro farfoanation is not necessarily
indicative of the Company’s results of operatioad khe acquisition of Michael’s been completedhenabove date, nor is it necessarily
indicative of the Company’s future
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results. The pro forma information does not reflaty cost savings from operating efficiencies aresgies that could result from the
acquisition, and also does not reflect additioraiEnue opportunities following the acquisition. Tme forma information reflects amortization
and depreciation of the assets of Michaelf their respective fair values based on availatibrmation and to give effect to the financiiog fhe
acquisition and related transactions. The purcpase allocations for the assets acquired andliieds assumed are based on a formal
valuation.

For the Years Ende

December 2¢ December 3

2012 2011
Net sales $ 533,73: $ 481,96t
Income before provision for income tay 25,70¢ 15,09¢

Pro forma net sales reflect the combined reventideedCompany and Michael’s. Pro forma income befmovision for income taxes reflects
the Company’s and Michael's combined income befwowision for income taxes with the following prarina adjustments: 1) depreciation of
equipment was adjusted for the fair market adjustroéthe equipment acquired in the Michael’s asijiain, 2) interest expense was adjusted
to reflect interest on the borrowings under the N&redit Facilities which were used to finance thguasition of Michael’s, 3) the intangible
assets acquired in the Michael’'s acquisition wenerdized over their estimated useful lives, 4) phigate equity management fees of Michael’
that were charged by certain of Michael’s prior enmwere eliminated, 5) the closing costs of them@any and Michael’'s were eliminated and
6) the transaction bonuses paid by Michael's wénairated.

Note 7 — Inventory

Inventory consists of finished product and is reearon a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory ifl@éeted net of reserves for shrinkage and
obsolescence totaling $650 and $575 at Decemb&028, and December 30, 2011, respectively.

Note 8 — Restricted Cash

On April 26, 2012, DHP entered into a financingagagement under the New Markets Tax Credit (“NMT@9gram under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)upatso which Commercial Lending Il LLC (“CLII"), eommunity development entity
and a subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,igea/to DHP an $11,000 construction loan (the “NMOd@&n") to help fund DHP’s
expansion and build-out of the Company’s new BrawX,distribution facility. The proceeds from the NI@ Loan are reflected as restricted
cash on the balance sheet. For more informaticth@NMTC Loan see Note 11.

Note 9 — Equipment and Leasehold Improvements
Plant, equipment and leasehold improvements cakadtthe following:
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As of

Useful Lives December 28, 20: December 30, 20:

Machinery and equipment 5-10 year $ 6,26¢ $ 5,59¢
Computers, data processing and other equip 3-7 year: 5,152 3,941
Leasehold improvemen 7-15 year 8,51¢ 5,622
Furniture and fixture 7 year: 617 557
Vehicles 5-7 year: 83¢ 49€
Other 7 year: 8t 85
Constructiorin-process 1,55¢ 95€
23,03¢ 17,25¢

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (13,669 (11,876
Equipment and leasehold improvements, $ 9,36¢ $ 5,37¢

Construction-in-process at December 28, 2012 =fatienarily to the build out of our new distributidacility in Bronx, NY. The Company
expects to spend approximately $21,000 to comghetduild out and move into this facility duringdal 2014. Construction-in-process at
December 30, 2011 relates primarily to the buildafwour new distribution facility in Miami, Floril The Company moved into this facility
during the first quarter of fiscal 2012. The tatakt of the build out was not materially differémm the costs incurred as of December 30,
2011.

As of December 28, 2012, the Company had $342 mfpeter equipment and $337 of vehicles financedapjtal leases. As of December 30,
2011 only the $342 of computer equipment was undpital lease. During 2012, the Company recordgdedéation of $114 on the computer
equipment and $18 on the vehicles. The Companydedadepreciation of $28 on computer equipmentndu?011. The Company had no
assets under capital lease during 2010.

Depreciation expense on equipment and leaseholbirements was $1,730, $1,197, and $1,078 for Hualfyears ended December 28,
2012, December 30, 2011, and December 24, 201fksctgely.

Capitalized software is recorded net of accumulatedrtization of $1,286 and $1,065 for the fisasdus ended December 28, 2012 and
December 30, 2011, respectively. Depreciation es@@m software was $221, $182 and $234 for thalfissars ended December 28,
2012, December 30, 2011, and December 24, 201fsctgely.

Note 10 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillesented as follows:

Carrying amount as of December 24, 2! $11,47¢
Goodwill acquired during the ye 9,117
Carrying amount as of December 30, 2! 20,59(
Goodwill acquired during the ye 24,76¢
Carrying amount as of December 28, 2! $45,35¢

Other intangible assets consist of customer relaliips being amortized over a period ranging frontcsthirteen years, trademarks being
amortized over a period of one to twenty years, mnticompete agreements being amortized over five tgesxs. Other intangible assets w
comprised of the following at December 28, 2012 Bedember 30, 2011:
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Weighted-Average Gross Accumlate:
Remaining Carrying

Amortization Perio Amount Amortizatior Net Amoun
December 28, 201
Customer Relationshiy 117 months $21,84¢ $ (1,60 $ 20,24¢
Non-compete agreemer 62 months $ 1,731 $ (179 $ 1,55¢
Trademark: 233 month: $14,39: $ (489 $ 13,90¢
Total 160 months $37,97: $ (2,269 $ 35,70¢
December 30, 201
Customer Relationshiy 127 months $ 5,231 $ (39) $ 4,84(
Trademark: 22 months $ 30C $ (25) $ 27t
Total 121 months $ 5,531 $ (419 $ 5,11t

Amortization expense for other intangibles was 92,8280 and $76 for the years ended December@2, December 30, 2011 and
December 24, 2010, respectively.

As of December 28, 2012, estimated amortizatioreagp for other intangible assets for each of tixéfie years and thereafter is as follows:

2013 $ 3,251
2014 3,107
2015 3,10t
2016 3,09¢
2017 3,06:
Thereaftel 20,08:
Total $35,70¢

Note 11 — Debt Obligations
Debt obligations as of December 28, 2012 and Deee®®, 2011 consisted of the following:

December 28, 20: December 30, 20:
Revolving credit facility $ 75,00( $ 17,38
Term loan 38,00( 28,00(
New Markets Tax Credit Loa 11,00( —
Capital lease 527 31E
Total debt obligation 124,52 45,69
Less: current installmen (5,179 (6,107)
Total debt obligations excluding current installrtse $ 119,35: $ 39,59(

On August 2, 2011, Dairyland, The Chefs’ Warehddg#Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chef&/arehouse West Coast, LLC,
The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC (each a “Bomed’ and collectively, the “Borrowers”), the Compaand Chefs’ Warehouse Parent,
LLC (together with the Company, the “Guarantorsijezed into a senior secured credit facility (tRzedit Agreement”) with the lenders from
time to time party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, RIChase”), as administrative agent, and the ofaties thereto.

The Credit Agreement provided for a senior secteett loan facility (the “Term Loan Facility”) in ¢haggregate amount of up to $30,000 (the
loans thereunder, the “Term Loans”) and a seniourgel revolving loan facility (the “Revolving Crediacility” and, together with the Term
Loan Facility, the “Credit Facilities”) of up to aggregate amount of $50,000.
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On August 2, 2011, the Company incurred $30,008bmowings under the Term Loan Facility of the Grégyreement and $14,000 under the
Revolving Credit Facility to repay existing indethtess that certain Borrowers and Guarantors wéreaneing in connection with the
Company’s IPO.

On April 25, 2012, Dairyland, The Chefs’ Warehoiid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Che##/arehouse West Coast, LLC, T
Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, (each a “Borrotand collectively, the “Borrowers”), the CompanydaChefs’ Warehouse, Parent, LLC
(together with the Company, the “Guarantors”) ezdento a senior secured credit facility (the “Néwedit Agreement”) with the lenders from
time to time party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, KChase”), as Administrative Agent, and the atparties thereto. The New Credit
Agreement replaced the Credit Agreement. On Aug8sR012, Michael's Finer Meats Holdings, LLC anéchael’s Finer Meats, LLC each
were added as a Borrower under the New Credit Agee.

The New Credit Agreement provides for a senior sstterm loan facility (the “New Term Loan Facilityn the aggregate amount of up to
$40,000 (the loans thereunder, the “New Term Laeast] a senior secured revolving loan facility (tNew Revolving Credit Facility” and,
together with the New Term Loan Facility, the “N&redit Facilities”) of up to an aggregate amoun$d90,000 (the loans thereunder, the
“New Revolving Credit Loans”). The New Credit Agreent also provides that the Borrowers may, at thgiion, increase the aggregate
amount of either borrowings under the New Revolv@irgdit Facility or the New Term Loan Facility in aggregate amount up to $40,000
in not less than $10,000 increments) (the “Accariovithout the consent of any lenders not pargipg in such increase, subject to certain
customary conditions and lenders committing to fm@vhe increase in funding. The final maturitytteé New Term Loans and New Revolving
Credit Facility is April 25, 2017. Subject to adjunent for prepayments, the Company is requiredakenguarterly principal payments on the
New Term Loans on June 30, September 30, Decemban@ March 31, with the first four quarterly payrteeequal to $1,000 per quarter,
the last sixteen quarterly payments equal to $1ge@Quarter, with the remaining balance due upaturity.

The New Credit Facilities are secured by substliyndl the assets of the Borrowers and the Guaranwith the exception of equity interests
and assets of DHP. Borrowings under the New Credtitlities bear interest at the Company’s optioritifer (i) the alternate base rate
(representing the greatest of (1) Chase’s prines (8) the federal funds effective rate for ovehtigorrowings plus 1/2 of 1% and (3) the
Adjusted LIBO Rate for one month plus 2.50%) plugach case the applicable margin of 0.50% for Rewolving Credit Loans or New Te
Loans or (ii), in the case of Eurodollar Borrowir(@s defined in the New Credit Agreement), the Atd LIBO Rate plus the applicable
margin of 3.0% for New Revolving Credit Loans oniN€erm Loans. The New Credit Agreement also incufitsancial covenants that require
the Company to meet targeted leverage and fixedjelratios.

Upon entering into the New Credit Agreement, thenpany wrote off deferred financing fees of appraxiety $237 related to a portion of the
Credit Agreement, as this part of the transactias wonsidered an extinguishment of existing detiie. lEmaining deferred financing fees from
the Company’s previous credit facility of approxiels $773 will be amortized over the life of thew€redit Agreement as this was
considered a modification of existing debt.

On September 28, 2012, the Company under the NeditGkgreement exercised the Accordion in fulliorease the aggregate commitments
under the New Revolving Credit Facility by $40,088.a result of the borrowerskercise of the Accordion, borrowing capacity unither New
Revolving Credit Loans increased from $100,0001405000. All other terms of the New Credit Agreetn@are unchanged.

On April 26, 2012, DHP entered into a financinggagement under the New Markets Tax Credit (“NMT@9gram under the Code, pursuant
to which CLII provided to DHP the NMTC Loan to hdlmnd DHP’s expansion and build-out of its new BtoNY facility, which construction
is required under the lease agreement relatedctofagility. The NMTC Loan is evidenced by a MomgaNote, dated as of April 26, 2012 (the
“Mortgage Note”), between DHP, as maker, and Caslpayee. Under the Mortgage Note DHP is obligatguhy CLII (i) monthly interest
payments on the principal balance then outstanalimf(ii) the entire unpaid principal balance thee dnd owing on April 26, 2017. Interest
accrues under the Mortgage Note at 1.00% per ariouas long as DHP is not in default thereundeiictvinterest shall be calculated on the
basis of the actual number of days elapsed oveaagf 360 days.

As of December 28, 2012, the Company and Guaranters in compliance with all debt covenants unterew Credit Agreement, DHP w
in compliance with all debt covenants under the NOMIJoan and the Company had reserved $1,820 of #ve Revolving Credit Facility for
the issuance of letters of credit. As of Decemi& 2012, funds totaling $63,180 were availablebfmmrowing under the New Revolving Credit
Facility.
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Note 12 — Stockholders’ Equity

On July 27, 2011, the Company completed a reorgéioizin which Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, LLC waswerted into The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Cesiga”). As part of the Conversion, the Companyéss16,000,000 shares of common
stock, and each holder of the Company’s Class BGlags C units received approximately 0.2942 shairesmmon stock for each unit of
membership interest in Chefs’ Warehouse Holding€; bwned by them at the time of the Conversionth@ftotal number of shares issued in
the Conversion, 445,056 shares were restricteagsluithe Company’s common stock issued upon cseioreof the Company’s Class C units
that had not vested as of the date the Companyoanated the Conversion.

On August 2, 2011, the Company completed the Irptidlic offering of shares of the Company’s comnstock. The Company issued
4,666,667 shares in the offering, and existingldioltlers sold an additional 5,683,333 shares, diofu1,350,000 shares sold to the
underwriters to cover over-allotments. The Compagived net proceeds from the offering of appratety $63,279 (after the payment of
underwriter discounts and commissions and offegeixgenses) that were used, together with borrowinger the Credit Agreement, to repay
all of the Company’s loans outstanding under thm@any’s previous debt instruments, including angraed and unpaid interest, call
premiums and unamortized OID.

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted the 2011 Omnibus Equigntive Plan (the “Equity Plan”). The purpose of Bwity Plan is to promote the
interests of the Company and its stockholders ogt(iacting and retaining key officers, employard directors; (ii) motivating such
individuals by means of performance related ine@stito achieve long-range performance goals;giigbling such individuals to participate in
the long-term growth and financial success of thenany; (iv) encouraging ownership of stock in @mmpany by such individuals; and

(v) linking their compensation to the long-termeirgsts of the Company and its stockholders.

The Equity Plan is administered by the Compensaiommittee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Dirext and allows for the issuance of
stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs8stricted share awards (“RSAS”), restricted shauits, performance awards, or other stock-
based awards. Stock option exercise prices ard iydhe Committee but shall not be less thandivenfiarket value of a common share on the
date of the grant of the option, except in the adsmibstitute awards. Similarly, the grant pri€ee SAR may not be less than the fair market
value of a common share on the date of the grdr&.Jommittee will determine the expiration dateath stock option and SAR, but in no
case shall the stock option or SAR be exercisdlde the expiration of ten years from the datehef grant. The Company plans to issue new
shares upon exercise of any stock options. Thet§{&lan provided 1,750,000 shares available fontyiaf which no more than 1,000,000
could be for Incentive Stock Options. As of Decenmibfe, 2012 there were 1,355,867 shares availablgrémt.

On August 2, 2011, the Company granted RSAs tadb6,666 shares to two employees. The awardswadued at $18.01 per share,
representing the closing price of the Company’s mam stock on August 2, 2011. Fifty percent of thewals (103,333 shares) vested
immediately resulting in a compensation chargelg861 and the remainder of the awards, a totaD8f333 shares, were scheduled to vest in
equal amounts on each of the next four anniverdargs of the grant of which $193 was recognizetbagpensation expense during fiscal
2011. During 2012, the Company recognized expestaéirtg $1,055 on these RSAs. This included a eh&g$713 related to the accelerated
vesting of 41,334 RSAs issued to the Company’s ésrahief operating officer as part of his separafiom the Company. RSAs totaling
20,665 were forfeited during fiscal 2012.

On November 2, 2011, the Company granted RSAdngtal652 shares to its four independent direatdrieh vest on the date of the first
annual stockholders’ meeting. These shares weredalt $14.30 each (the closing price of our comsatock on November 2, 2011). The
Company recognized $38 and $43 of expense relatétbse grants in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011, eetyely.

During fiscal 2012, we issued 216,865 RSAs to aopleyees at a weighted average grant date faiewafli$17.56 each. Of these awards,
34,783 RSAs were performance-based grants. We memfjno expense on the performance-based grafiseah 2012 because we did not
achieve the fully diluted earnings per share tarfmt2012. The remaining awards were time-basadtgmwhich will vest over 4-5 years.
During fiscal 2012 we recognized expense totali@g3on the time-based grants. During 2012, 24,94Fe0RSAs granted in 2012 to the
Company’s employees were forfeited.

65



Table of Contents

During fiscal 2012, we issued 12,166 RSAs to odependent directors which will vest on the datewf2013 annual stockholders meeting.
These shares were valued at a weighted averagedztnfair value of $18.91 each. We recognizecrsp totaling $81 on these RSAs in
fiscal 2012. During 2012, 3,604 of the RSAs graritethe Company’s independent directors were faadei

During fiscal 2012, 8,582 RSAs, which were issugdrgo the Company’s IPO, were forfeited.
At December 28, 2012 the Company had 215,979 uedd®EAs outstanding.

The Company has not issued any type of equity aatirer than RSAs under the Equity Plan.

Note 13 — Leases

The Company leases various warehouse and offidéiéscand certain vehicles and equipment undegerm operating lease agreements th:
expire at various dates, with related parties aitld @thers. See Note 16 for additional discussibretated party transactions. The Company
records operating lease costs, including any détedste rent increases, on a straight-line basis theelease term. As of December 28, 2012,
the Company is obligated under non-cancelable tipgreease agreements to make future minimum Ipagments as follows:

Related Party Third Party Third Third Party
Party
Real Estate Real Estate Vehicles Other Total
2013 $ 1,72¢ $ 3,23t $2,91: $ 1,31 $ 9,18¢
2014 1,66: 3,67 2,43¢ 1,05(C 8,82¢
2015 — 2,85( 1,757 75C 5,357
2016 — 3,15¢ 1,461 715 5,33:
2017 — 2,40( 1,22: 707 4,33(
Thereaftel — 18,99¢ 19z 1,01 20,20«
Total minimum lease paymer $ 3,39¢ $ 34,31t $9,98¢ $ 5,54¢ $53,23"

Total rent expense for operating leases for thesyeaded December 28, 2012, December 30, 2011 aceniber 24, 2010 was $10,172, $8
and $7,241, respectively. One of the Company’sidigsges, Dairyland USA Corporation, subleases ohi¢és distribution centers from an
entity controlled by the Company’s founders, ThefShWarehouse Leasing Co., LLC. The Chefs’ WareedLeasing Co., LLC leases the
distribution center from the New York City IndustrDevelopment Agency. In connection with this galsle arrangement, Dairyland USA
Corporation and two of the Company’s other subsieléaare required to act as guarantors of The CWédsehouse Leasing Co., LLC's
mortgage obligation on the distribution center. Ti@rtgage payoff date is December 2029 and thenfiat®bligation under this guarantee
totaled $10,572 at December 28, 2012. The ChefseWuse Leasing Co., LLC has the ability to optatlits lease agreement with the New
York City Industrial Development Agency by giving @ays’ notice. This action would cause the coremtrreduction in the term of the
sublease with Dairyland USA Corporation to Decen#tiEr4. On July 1, 2005, the Company'’s subsidiai@sred into a Consent and
Conditional Release Agreement releasing the esfiit@m their respective guarantee obligations utldeentity guarantees. As of
December 28, 2012, the Company’s subsidiaries imptiance with the conditions of the release.

Note 14 — Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes consists of theolwihg for the years ended December 28, 2012, Deeef3th 2011, and December 24, 2010:
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Current income tax expense

Federa
State

Total current income tax expen
Deferred income tax expense (bene

Federa
State

Total deferred income tax expense (ben
Total income tax expen:

December 3!

2011
$
3,39:
1,047
4,43¢

871

281

1,16¢

$ 5,60:

December 2:

2010

$

4,03t
1,00z
5,037
(1,982
(487)
(2,470
$ 2,560

The income tax expense differed from the totalstay income tax expense as computed by applyiegtatutory federal income tax rate to
income before taxes. The reasons for the differefamethe years ended December 28, 2012, Decendh@031, and December 24, 2010 ar

forth and quantified as follows:

Statutory U.S. Federal tax

Differences due tc

Non-taxable operating resul

Other permanent differenc

State and local taxes, net of federal ber
Change to -Corp statu

Change in prior year tax estimi

Other, ne

December 2!

2012
$ 8,77¢

21t
1,52¢

147
(99)
$ 10,56

Decembe
30,
2011

$ 4,52

111
88C

9
$ 5,608

(@]

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at Decembef@82 and December 30, 2011 consist of the follgwin

December 2:

2010
$ 6,27(

(1,799
114
54¢

(2,744)
411

(240)
$ 2567
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December 2! December 3(
2012 2011

Current deferred tax asse
Receivables and invento $ 3,157 $ 1,83
Paid time off accrue 5C 274
Self-insurance reserve 56& —
Other 89 54
Current deferred tax asst 3,861 2,16(
Current deferred tax liabilitie:
Deduction of prepaid expens (1,022 (702)
Other — (10
Current deferred taxes, r $ 2,83¢ $ 1,44¢
Non-current deferred tax assets and liabilit
Goodwill $ 744 $ 1,42«
Rent accrua 60€ 48t
Stock compensatia 20z —
Deferred acquisition cos 6C —
Other 8 4
Non-current deferred tax ass 1,62( 1,912
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie:
Property & equipmer (484) (512
Intangible asset (3,665 —
Other (23 —
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie (4,172) (512
Non-current deferred tax (liabilities) assets, $ (2,559 $ 1,401

The deferred tax provision results from the effedtaet changes during the year in deferred tagtasmnd liabilities arising from temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assetdiabilities for financial reporting purposesiaghe amounts used for income tax purpa
The Company files income tax returns in the U.Sldfal and various state and local jurisdictions. Federal income tax purposes, the 2009
through 2012 tax years remain open for examindiiothe tax authorities under the normal three-gtaute of limitations and the fact that we
have not yet filed our tax return for 2012. Fotetax purposes, the 2008 through 2012 tax yearaireopen for examination by the tax
authorities under a four-year statute of limitaioihe Company records interest and penaltiesyifia income tax expense.

At December 28, 2012 and December 30, 2011, thep@oynhad no uncertain tax positions.

Note 15 — Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Tax-Deferred Savings Plan

The Company offers the 401(k) Plan to all full-tiemployees that provides for tax-deferred saladudgons for eligible employees.
Employees may choose to make voluntary contribatifitheir annual compensation to the 401(k) Riamted to an annual maximum amount
as set periodically by the Internal Revenue SenBeginning in 2011, the Company provided discrediy matching contributions equal to 50
percent of the employee’s contribution amount,aip thaximum of six percent of the employee’s ansakdry. Matching contributions begin
vesting after two years and are fully vested afberyears. Employee contributions are fully vestden made. Under the 401(k) Plan there is
no option available to the employee to receivewrcipase the Company’s common stock. Matching dmrtions under the 401(k) Plan were
$337 for fiscal 2012, $300 for fiscal 2011 and §0ffscal 2010.

Note 16 — Related Parties

The Company leases two warehouse facilities frdated parties. These facilities are owned by estibwned 100% by Christopher Pappas,
the Company'’s chairman, president and chief exeeuwtificer, John Pappas, the Company’s vice
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chairman and one of its directors, and Dean Fa@atagormer non-employee director of the Compang the brother-in-law of Messrs. C.
Pappas and J. Pappas, and are deemed to beedfiiahese individuals. Expense related to theeakacilities was $1,537 for each of the
years ended December 28, 2012, December 30, 268d December 24, 201

One of our non-employee directors, Stephen Harisdahe President and a 50% owner of a New York-8#tged multi-concept restaurant
operator holding company. Certain subsidiarieisf holding company are customers of the Companitarsubsidiaries that purchased an
aggregate of approximately $3,200 and $2,800 adycts from us during fiscal 2012 and fiscal 20EEpectively. Terms provided to these
customers were determined in the ordinary courdrisiness, at arm’s length and materially consistéth those of other customers with
similar volumes and purchasing patterns. Mr. Hangas not affiliated with the Company prior to jaigithe board in 2011.

Each of Christopher Pappas, John Pappas and Deats€&ls owns 8.33% of a New York City-based restatucustomer of the Company and
its subsidiaries that purchased an aggregate obzippately $213, $238 and $188 of products frondusng fiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal
2010, respectively. Messrs. C. Pappas, J. PapplBSanatselis have no other interest in the restaother than these equal interests and ar
involved in the day-to-day operation or managenoéilis restaurant. Terms provided to this customere determined in the ordinary course
of business, at arm’s length and materially coaatstvith those of other customers with similar vo&s and purchasing patterns.

John Pappas’s brother-in-law, Constantine Papaterosie of our employees. We paid him approxinya$d40, $182 and $185 in total
compensation during fiscal 2012, fiscal 2011 anddi 2010, respectively.

Note 17 — Product Information

The Company offers a full line of products to itstomers. The sales mix for the principal prodat¢egories for each of the 2012, 2011 and
2010 fiscal years is as follows:

December 2! December 3l December 2:
2012 2011 2010

Dry Goods $ 119,75 $ 106,85¢ $ 86,41:
Center of Plati 123,04 77,17" 70,65¢
Cheese: 69,22: 61,23¢ 49,28
Pastries and other Bakery Prodt 64,62( 53,85 44,25¢
Qils and Vinegar: 49,86’ 47,48¢ 39,06¢
Dairy Products 42,98:. 44,21 33,29(
Kitchen Supplie: 10,80( 9,80¢ 7,158
Total $ 480,29. $ 400,63. $ 330,11¢

Note 18 — Valuation Reserves
A summary of the activity in the accounts receieaddlowance for doubtful accounts appears below:

December 2i December 3 December 2:

2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 2,90( $ 2,40( $ 2,15(C
Charged to costs and expen 1,43¢ 1,18¢ 1,04z
Customer accounts written off, net of recove (899 (68¢9) (792)
Balance at end of peric $  3,44( $  2,90( $  2,40(

A summary of activity in the inventory valuatiorsegve appears below:
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Note 19 — Quarterly Results (unaudited)

Balance at beginning of period
Charged to costs and expen

Inventory written oft
Balance at end of peric

2012
57t

December 2!

1,94¢

(1,879
65C

December 3(
2011

$ 57C

1,46(

(1,455

$ 57

The quarterly results of the Company for the yesmded December 28, 2012 and December 30, 2015 fodaws:

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Income before income tax
Net income

Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Income (loss) before income tay
Net income (loss

Basic net income (loss) per shi
Diluted net income (loss) per sh:

March 30, 201
$ 98,06¢
26,04¢
5,05¢
4,50¢
2,632

0.1z

0.1z

March 25, 201
$ 83,18
22,03t
5,05¢

1,687

1,02(

0.07

0.0€

June 29, 2012(

$

114,82!
30,47
8,511
7,62z
4,45¢
0.22
0.21

June 24, 201

$

99,25t
26,25¢
7,70<
4,361
2,65:¢
0.17
0.17

Sept. 28, 2012(
$ 124,80

32,37%
7,32¢
6,31
3,81¢

0.1¢
0.1¢

Sept. 23, 2011(:
$ 101,68:
26,63(
5,34(
(1,909)
(1,187

(0.06)

(0.06)

Beginning in the second quarter of 2012 the Comyagan to reflect the results of the Praml acqdaisi
Beginning in the third quarter of 2012 the Comphagan to reflect the results of the Micl’s acquisition
During the third quarter of 2011 the Company betgareflect the results of the Harry Wils acquigitidn addition, during the third quar
of 2011 the Company incurred approximately $5,40€harges relating to refinancing the Company’sosesecured debt upon

completion of the Compa’s IPO.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2011 the Comphagan to reflect the results of the Provvista eitijon.

Note 20 — Subsequent Event

On December 31, 2012, the Company closed on itsisitign of Queensgate Foodservice (“Queensgatefdpdservice distributor based in
Cincinnati, OH. The initial purchase price for Quegate was approximately $21,900 (subject to custpmost-closing working capital
adjustments) which the Company financed with bomogw under the New Revolving Credit Facility. Additally, the purchase price may be
increased by up to $2,400 based upon the achievesheartain performance milestones over a two yeaiod following the closing.

70

December 2:

2010
$ 52t
1,191

(1,146
$  57C

Dec. 28, 201:
$ 142,59
36,107
7,861

6,63:

3,60¢

0.17

0.17

Dec. 30, 2011(-
$ 116,51
31,01«
9,69¢

9,16t

5,21(

0.2t

0.2t
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ltem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the participation of our cleeécutive officer and chief financial officer, éwated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-1Bnthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ame(tiedExchange Act”) as of the end of
the period covered by this Annual Report on ForrK10

Based on that evaluation, our chief executive effiend chief financial officer concluded that oisatbsure controls and procedures were
effective, as of the end of the period coveredHiy teport, to provide reasonable assurance tf@niation we are required to disclose in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchangeigrecorded, processed, summarized and repeitkih the time periods specified in SEC
rules and forms, and that such information is aadated and communicated to our management, inadualim chief executive officer and ch
financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfi and maintaining adequate internal controt éwancial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a—-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange e Company'’s internal control over financigboeting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaincial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with GAAP. The Company’s internal cdrdke@r financial reporting includes those policasl procedures that: (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detlrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the Company;
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the @ are being made only in accordance with authtions of management and directors
of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assmtgaegarding prevention or timely detection ofutharized acquisition, use or disposition
of the Company’s assets that could have a magffizdt on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Under the supervision of our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, our management asshe effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 28, 2012. In making this assessment, managersed the criteria set forth internal
Control—Integrated Framewoiiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (“COSQ”). In conducting
the evaluation of the effectiveness of its intetitrol over financial reporting as of Decembey 2812, the Company has excluded the
acquisition of Michael's which was completed by @@mpany on August 10, 2012. At the acquisitioreadtMichael’s, total assets of
Michael’s totaled $56.6 million. Further informaticoncerning the acquisition of Michael's appearBlote 6, Acquisitions, to the
accompanying audited consolidated financial stateésand in the section of this Annual Report omi@0-K titled “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operations.” Based on this assessmenmanagement has concluded that the
Company’s internal control over financial reportings effective as of December 28, 2012.

The Company’s financial statements included in #énisual report on Form 10-K have been audited b@RISA, LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as indicatethia report appearing on page 47 of this Form 18BO USA, LLP has also provided an
attestation report on the Company’s internal cdraver financial reporting.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There have been no changes in our internal coowen financial reporting during the most recentdisquarter that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, ourimtal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We have audited The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. intexoatrol over financial reporting as of December 2812, based on criteria established in
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. managemergsponsible for maintaining effective internal tohover financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomyag “ltem 9A, Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reportir@ur responsibility is to express an opinion ba tompany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxe@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (&ajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettfansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjet to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying “Item 9A, ManagatiseeAnnual Report on Internal Control over FinadReporting”, management’s
assessment of and conclusion on the effectiverfaateonal control over financial reporting did riatlude the internal controls of Michael's
Finer Meats, LLC, which was acquired on August2@ 2, and which is included in the consolidatedbed sheets of The Chefs’ Warehouse
Inc. as of December 28, 2012, and the related didiased statements of operations, stockholdersitegand cash flows for the year then
ended. At acquisition date, Michael's Finer MeatsC had total assets of $56.6 million. Managemedtrobt assess the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of Michae~iner Meats, LLC because of the timing of tlegaisition which was completed on
August 10, 2012. Our audit of internal control ofieancial reporting of The Chefs’ Warehouse, lalso did not include an evaluation of the
internal control over financial reporting of Michae-iner Meats, LLC.

In our opinion, The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. mairgdinn all material respects, effective internaitcol over financial reporting as of
December 28, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Beoémber 28, 2012 and December 30, 2011, and ltitedeconsolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, asth §aws for each of the three years in the peeinded December 28, 2012 and our report
dated March 13, 2013 expressed an unqualified opittiereon.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Melville, NY
March 13, 2013

Iltem 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information set forth under the captions “Cogbe Governance,” “Proposal 1—Election of Direct@sd “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitiveoly Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stualklers to be held on May 17, 2013,
which we intend to file within 120 days after oigchl year-end, is incorporated herein by refereAseprovided in General Instruction G(3) to
Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Remidn S-K, information regarding executive officefsour Company is provided in Part | of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the captf@xecutive Officers.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information set forth under the caption “Ex@éeiCompensation” in our definitive Proxy Statemfamtour 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on May 17, 2013, whichnterid to file within 120 days after our fiscal yead, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information set forth under the captions “St@knership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managetthin our definitive Proxy
Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockhdde be held on May 17, 2013, which we intendlevithin 120 days after our fiscal
yearend, is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table provides certain informationtivrespect to equity awards under our equity corsaigmn plans as of December 28, 2012:

Number of securities

remaining
available for future
Number of securities tc issuance
under equity
be issued upon exercis Weighted-average compensation
exercise price of plans (excluding securitie
of outstanding options outstanding
options, reflected in the second
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights column)
Plans approved by
stockholder: — — 1,357,86
Plans not approved by
stockholder: — — —
Total — — 1,357,86

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information set forth under the captions “Cogbe Governance — Director Independence” and “Qatpdsovernance — Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in oumitefe Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meetaigtockholders to be held on May 17,
2013, which we intend to file within 120 days after fiscal year-end, is incorporated herein beresfice.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information set forth under the captions “Pgl@ — Ratification of Independent Registered ieubtcounting Firm — Fees Paid to BDO
USA, LLP” and “Proposal 2 — Ratification of Indegemt Registered Public Accounting Firm — Policyfardit Committee Pre-Approval of
Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services” in oufiditive Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meetiof Stockholders to be held on
May 17, 2013, which we intend to file within 120ydaafter our fiscal year-end, is incorporated hebsi reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
The following documents are filed as part of tiEpart:
1. Financial Statemen- See Index to Consolidated Financial Statement®at 8 of this Annual Report on Form-K.

2.  Financial Statement Schedules — Supplementabsits are not provided because of the absenamndftions under which they are
required or because the required information iggiwn the financial statements or notes thel

3. Exhibits— The following exhibits are filed as part of, or arporated by reference into, this Annual ReporForm 1(-K.

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 27228fhong The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC atelh®id Putze
and Rudolf Putze (incorporated by reference to EkRi1 to the Company’s Formi{iled on April 30, 2012) (Pursuant
Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedules extaibits to this agreement are omitted, but wélldgsovided
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon request

2.2 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Augu&Qil2, among Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Tref<CWarehous
Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Michael's Finer Meats, LLC anti¢ other parties party thereto (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 2.1
to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 13, 20(R)yrsuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, skkhedules and
exhibits to this agreement are omitted, but wilpbevided supplementally to the Securities and Brge Commission
upon request’

2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@032, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Qiidg,
Inc., Queensgate Food Group, LLC, Mullaghan Progert LC, SP Beverage Co., LLC and the other papgety thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to therpany’s Form 8-K filed on January 2, 2013) (Purstaritem 601(b)(2)
of Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits i® alyreement are omitted, but will be provided $eqmentally to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon reqt

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dassdof July 27, 2011 (incorporated by referencexoiliit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Form {-K filed on August 2, 2011

3.2 Bylaws of the Company, dated as of July 27, 20ddafiporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Canys Form 8-K
filed on August 2, 2011

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated &ference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Comp’s $-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

10.1 Agreement of Lease, dated as of April 26, 2012ybeh the City of New York, as Landlord, and DaindeHP LLC, as
Tenant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 108.the Compar’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

10.2 Mortgage Note, dated as of April 26, 2012, betwBairyland HP LLC, as Maker, and Commercial LendingLC, as

Payee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.théoCompan’'s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

10.3 Leasehold Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assigt of Leases and Rents, dated as of April 262 20etween
Dairyland HP LLC, as Mortgagor, and Commercial Liegdl LLC, as Mortgagee (incorporated by refereta&xhibit
10.3 to the Compar's Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)
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Exhibit No.
10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16* 1
10.17* 1
10.18*

10.19*

Description

Joint and Several Guaranty of Payment, dated apiof26, 2012, among The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inbef€ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chéfgarehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’
Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chéfarehouse of Florida, LLC (incorporated by refeetw Exhibit 10.4 to th
Compan’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Lease between The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co.,diidDairyland USA Corporation, dated as of Decami2Be 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tlmmpanys Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Sublease Agreement between The Chefs’ Warehousénge@o., LLC and Dairyland USA Corporation, dasesdof
December 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference tolktxh0.20 to the Compa’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011]

Employment Agreement between Christopher Pappa3hedhefs\Warehouse, Inc., together with its subsidiarieted
as of August 2, 2011 (incorporated by referendexoibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Form K filed on August 2, 2011

Employment Agreement between John Pappas and Téifs'GMarehouse, Inc., together with its subsidgraated as of
August 2, 2011 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi2 to the Compar's Form K filed on August 2, 2011

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betws#enBappas and The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., togeftierts
subsidiaries, dated as of January 12, 2012 (incated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compafgen 8-K filed on
January 19, 2012

Offer letter between The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. dotth D. Austin, dated May 29, 2012 (incorporatgddference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Compa’s Form K filed on May 30, 2012)

Employment Agreement between The Chefs’ Warehduseand Kenneth Clark, dated May 29, 2012 (incoapexd by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form &K filed on May 30, 2012)

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ James Wagner, dated as of April 8, 2011 (pwated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Comp’s Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Amended offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse higlsli LLC and James Wagner, dated as of June 28, 201
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to@wmpan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Separation Agreement and General Release betwee@dfs’ Warehouse, Inc. and James Wagner, datgdsAGO0,
2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1thieo Compan’s Form K filed on August 31, 2012

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ Frank O’Dowd, dated as of January 28, 20Q(porated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Comp’s Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Offer letter between Che Warehouse Holdings, LLC and Patricia Lecouras,dlateof January 31, 20C
Offer letter between Che Warehouse Holdings, LLC and Alexandros Aldous, dia® of February 18, 201

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2011 Omnibus Equityitige Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhibitlB0to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2012 Cash Incentive gheorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to @@mpany’s Form
8-K filed on January 19, 201z
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Exhibit No.

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31

10.32

Description

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2013 Cash Incentive @tmorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s Form 8-K
filed on January 24, 2013

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Oéfis and Employees) (incorporated by reference tohiix10.14 to the
Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011’

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Dias) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45He Company’s
Form $-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement (Blioes) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10td6he Company’s
Form &-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (OffiGard Employees) (incorporated by reference to Exiibil7 to the
Compan’s Form 1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (Diregt@rsorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 te @ompany’s Form
S-1/A filed on July 1, 2011}

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Compaifgen S-1/A filed
onJuly 1, 2011)

Form of Performance Restricted Share Award Agre¢if@fficers and Employees) (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit
10.3 to the Compar's Form &K filed on January 19, 2012

Credit Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2011, anigaigyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ WarehouseMtlantic,

LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse WW&sast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaC, as
Borrowers, the other Loan Parties thereto, the eengarty thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.Aadasnistrative agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmrpany’s Form K filed on August 8, 2011

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of Augudd?1, among Dairyland USA Corporation, The Ch#fsirehouse Mid-
Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Véapbuse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouséafla, LLC,
as Borrowers, the other Loan Parties thereto, trakrs party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Bisfadministrative
agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompan’s Form K filed on August 8, 2011’

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2012, ambagyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ WarehouselMilantic,

LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse WW&sast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaC, as
Borrowers, The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and ChefstaWause Parent, LLC, as Guarantors, the Lendety ihareto,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agant| the other Loan Parties party thereto (incaigar by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Compa’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of August 9, 2012, tdCttealit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2012, aghbDairyland USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst; LLC,

and The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Boersythe financial institutions party thereto, dRiMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent and Issuing Bank @nmorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comy’s Form 108 filed
on November 13, 2012

Waiver and Amendment No. 2, dated as of AugusPR32, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of AprjlZBL2, among
Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mitantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The CheW&arehouse We:
Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaCl.Bs Borrowers, the financial institutions pattgreto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent and IsgiBank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company’s
Form 1(-Q filed on November 13, 201z
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10.33¢t Amendment No. 3, dated as of November 30, 201thadredit Agreement, dated April 25, 2012, amomdgryand USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst; LLC, and
The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrow#hs, financial institutions party thereto, and JP§tm Chase Bank, N.A.,
as Administrative Agen

10.34+ Pledge and Security Agreement, dated April 25, 20¥2and among Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chéfarehouse Mid-
Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Véapbuse West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse ofdapLLC, The
Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parernt, land the other Subsidiaries of The Chefs’ Warsbplnc. that become
party thereto after the date thereof, as Guararaois JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administratigent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Comp’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

10.35 Building Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2pti@tween Commercial Lending Il LLC, as Lender, &airyland HP LLC
as Borrower (incorporated by reference to Exhibiblto the Compar's Form +K/A filed on May 1, 2012)

10.36+ Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2012, amoa@yband HP LLC, as Borrower, The Chefs’ Warehouse,, Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporatiome Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantoos, LLC, The
Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefg'éM@use of Florida, LLC, as Guarantors, and Comialecending Il
LLC, as Lender (incorporated by reference to ExHibi6 to the Compars Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

10.37* Form of Indemnification Agreement by and betweer Thefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its directors andgiex officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to@wnpan’s Form -1/A filed on July 14, 2011’

10.38t Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated as of R6ri2012, between the City of New York, as Landlemid Dairyland HP
LLC, as Tenant, dated February 27, 2C

21t Subsidiaries of the Compar

23.1t Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31.1t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INSt XBRL Instance Documet

101.SCH- XBRL Schema Documel

101.CALt XBRL Calculation Linkbase Docume

101.LABY XBRL Label Linkbase Documel

101.PRE- XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume
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Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Ariziegé
Filed herewitt

+ Certain confidential portions of this exhibit wesmitted by means of redacting a portion of thxé tEhis exhibit has been filed separately
with the Securities and Exchange Commission accaregday a confidential treatment request pursuafule 24b-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on March 13, 2013.

THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.

March 13, 2013 /s/ Christopher Pappi
Christopher Papp:
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Capacity Date

/sl Christopher Pappas Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer March 13, 2013
Christopher Pappe (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ John D. Austin Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accounting aneh&ncial March 13, 2013
John D. Austir Officer)

/s/ John Pappas Director and Vice Chairman March 13, 2013
John Pappa

/s/ Alan Guarino Director March 13, 2013
Alan Guarina
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Signature

/s/ John A. Couri

John A. Cour

/s/ Dominick C. Cerbone

Dominick C. Cerboni

/sl Joseph Cugine

Joseph Cugin

/s/ Stephen Hanson

Stephen Hansc

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 13, 2013

March 13, 2013

March 13, 2013

March 13, 2013
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Exhibit No.
2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Description

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 27228fhong The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC atelh®id Putze
and Rudolf Putze (incorporated by reference to EkBi1 to the Company’s Formi8{iled on April 30, 2012) (Pursuant
Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedules @xtuibits to this agreement are omitted, but wélljsovided
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon reques!

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Augu&Qil2, among Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Tref<CWarehous
Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Michael's Finer Meats, LLC anti¢ other parties party thereto (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 2.1
to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 13, 20(R)yrsuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, sikhedules and
exhibits to this agreement are omitted, but willpbevided supplementally to the Securities and Brge Commission
upon request’

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb&032, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Qiidig,
Inc., Queensgate Food Group, LLC, Mullaghan ProgertLC, SP Beverage Co., LLC and the other pap#ty thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to thenpany’s Form 8-K filed on January 2, 2013) (Pursuarttem 601(b)(2)
of Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits i® alyreement are omitted, but will be provided $eqmentally to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon reqt

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dassdof July 27, 2011 (incorporated by referencexoailiit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Form K filed on August 2, 2011

Bylaws of the Company, dated as of July 27, 20ddafiporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Canys Form 8-K
filed on August 2, 2011

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated &ference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Comp/s &-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Agreement of Lease, dated as of April 26, 2012ybeh the City of New York, as Landlord, and DaindeHP LLC, as
Tenant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 108.the Compar’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Mortgage Note, dated as of April 26, 2012, betwBairyland HP LLC, as Maker, and Commercial LendingLC, as
Payee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.¢Compan’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Leasehold Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assigt of Leases and Rents, dated as of April 262 20etween
Dairyland HP LLC, as Mortgagor, and Commercial Liegdl LLC, as Mortgagee (incorporated by refereta&xhibit
10.3 to the Compar's Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Joint and Several Guaranty of Payment, dated apiof26, 2012, among The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inbef€ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chéfgarehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’
Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ WareholB®rida, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exihil0.4 to the
Compan’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Lease between The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co.,drfidDairyland USA Corporation, dated as of Decami2Be 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tlmmpanys Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Sublease Agreement between The Chefs’ Warehousinge@o., LLC and Dairyland USA Corporation, dasedof
December 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference tolkitxh0.20 to the Compa’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011}
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Exhibit No.
10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16* 1
10.17* 1
10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

Description

Employment Agreement between Christopher Pappa3hedhefs\Warehouse, Inc., together with its subsidiarieted
as of August 2, 2011 (incorporated by referendeéxoibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Form &K filed on August 2, 2011

Employment Agreement between John Pappas and Téifs'GMarehouse, Inc., together with its subsidgraated as of
August 2, 2011 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi2 to the Compar's Form K filed on August 2, 2011

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betws#enBappas and The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., togeftierts
subsidiaries, dated as of January 12, 2012 (incated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compafgen 8-K filed on
January 19, 2012

Offer letter between The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. dotth D. Austin, dated May 29, 2012 (incorporatgddference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Compa’s Form K filed on May 30, 2012)

Employment Agreement between The Chefs’ Warehduseand Kenneth Clark, dated May 29, 2012 (incoapexd by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form &K filed on May 30, 2012)

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ James Wagner, dated as of April 8, 2011 (pwated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Comp’s Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Amended offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse hglsli LLC and James Wagner, dated as of June 28, 201
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to@wmpan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Separation Agreement and General Release betwee@idfs’ Warehouse, Inc. and James Wagner, datgdsAGO0,
2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1thieo Compan’s Form K filed on August 31, 2012

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ Frank O’Dowd, dated as of January 28, 20Q(porated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Comp’s Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Offer letter between Che Warehouse Holdings, LLC and Patricia Lecouras,dlateof January 31, 20C
Offer letter between Che Warehouse Holdings, LLC and Alexandros Aldous, di@® of February 18, 201

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2011 Omnibus Equityitige Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhibitlB0to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2012 Cash Incentive gheorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to @@mpany’s Form
8-K filed on January 19, 201z

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2013 Cash Incentive @heorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s Form
8-K filed on January 24, 2012

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Oéfis and Employees) (incorporated by reference tokix10.14 to
the Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Diars) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45he Company’s
Form $-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement (Blioes) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10td6he Companyg
Form &-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (Officard Employees) (incorporated by reference to Exhiil7 to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011’

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (Diregt@reorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 te @ompany’s
Form $-1/A filed on July 1, 2011
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10.26*

10.27*

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31

10.32

10.33t

10.34+

10.35

Description

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorpedsby reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Compaigem S-1/A filed
onJuly 1, 2011)

Form of Performance Restricted Share Award Agre¢if@fficers and Employees) (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit
10.3 to the Compar's Form &K filed on January 19, 201z

Credit Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2011, anizaigyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ WarehouseMtlantic,

LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Wsast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaC, as
Borrowers, the other Loan Parties thereto, the eengarty thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.Aadasnistrative agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tler@anys Form K filed on August 8, 2011

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of Augud@P1, among Dairyland USA Corporation, The Cheé¥sirehouse Mid-
Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Véapuse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehoubéafla, LLC,
as Borrowers, the other Loan Parties thereto, trakrs party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Bisfadministrative
agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompan’s Form K filed on August 8, 2011

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2012, ambagyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ WarehouselMilantic,

LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Wsast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaC, as
Borrowers, The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and ChefstaWause Parent, LLC, as Guarantors, the Lendetg ihareto,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agant] the other Loan Parties party thereto (incaigak by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Compa’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of August 9, 2012, tdtealit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2012, aghbDairyland USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst; LLC,

and The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Boetsythe financial institutions party thereto, dRiMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent and Issuing Bank @Grorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comy’s Form 108 filed
on November 13, 2012

Waiver and Amendment No. 2, dated as of Augus2®2, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of AprjlZBL2, among
Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse -Mitantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chel&arehouse We:
Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaCl s Borrowers, the financial institutions pattgreto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent and IsgiBank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.the Company’s
Form 1(-Q filed on November 13, 201z

Amendment No. 3, dated as of November 30, 201thadCredit Agreement, dated April 25, 2012, amoidgrydand USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLEBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst; LLC,

and The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Boetsythe financial institutions party thereto, dRiMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agen

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated April 25, 20¥2and among Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chéfarehouse
Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chef#/arehouse West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehous$éooida,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouaee, LLC, and the other Subsidiaries of The Ch&fsrehouse, Inc.
that become party thereto after the date thersoguwarantors, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., adrisinative Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to tlmrpany's Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Building Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2pti@tween Commercial Lending Il LLC, as Lender, &adryland HP
LLC, as Borrower (incorporateby reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Comp’s Form -K/A filed on May 1, 2012)
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10.36+ Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2012, amoa@yland HP LLC, as Borrower, The Chefs’ Warehouse,, Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporatiome Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantools, LLC, The
Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The ChefgéMause of Florida, LLC, as Guarantors, and Comialeending Il
LLC, as Lender (incorporated by reference to ExHibi6 to the Compar's Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

10.37* Form of Indemnification Agreement by and betweee Tefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its directors andwgiez officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to@wmpan’s Form -1/A filed on July 14, 2011

10.38t Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated as of R6ri2012, between the City of New York, as Landlemid Dairyland HP
LLC, as Tenant, dated February 27, 2!

21t Subsidiaries of the Compar

23.1t Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31.1t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INST XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH- XBRL Schema Documel

101.CALt XBRL Calculation Linkbase Docume
101.LABY XBRL Label Linkbase Documel
101.PRE" XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Ariziegé

t  Filed herewith

+ Certain confidential portions of this exhibit wesmitted by means of redacting a portion of thx tEhis exhibit has been filed separately
with the Securities and Exchange Commission accaraegday a confidential treatment request pursuafule 24b-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend
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Exhibit 10.16
January 31, 2007

Ms. Patricia M. Lecouras
68 Greenfield Road
Stamford, CT 06906
plecouras@aol.com

Dear Pat:

It is with great pleasure that we confirm our ofiieryou for employment with Chefs Warehouse as Httee Vice President, Human Resour¢
Your salary will be $3846.15 weekly, ($200,000 penum), effective on your start date, which willMarch 5, 2007. In this position you will
report directly to me.

In addition to the starting base salary, the folloywvill also be part of your Chefs Warehouse emplent package:
* Four (4) weeks of vacation effective 20

» Eligibility to participate in Chef Warehouse2007 Individual Variable Compensation Plan (Byrais target of 50% of your ann
base salary. We will work together to plan for &tggthat will be based upon both company and patsijectives

» Eligibility to participate in Chefs Warehot's equity plan a1/ 2 percent, vesting over 4 yea

» Inthe event that your employment is terminatedhegyChefs Warehouse for reasons other than caoseyijl be eligible for 12
months severanc

This offer is contingent upon the following: yougming of the Employee Patent and Confidential tnfation Agreement and Code of Ethics
and a background verification, (to include previeugployers and education/degrees) prior to yout dtde.

Chef Warehouse offers an excellent benefits progtasigned to meet the needs of you and your eéiglbpendents. Coverage under most of
these programs commences on the first day of emq#ay. Information regarding these programs andrd@loenpany benefits, along with
guidelines concerning employment, will be discussegour employee orientation. The terms and canthitof all benefit plans are governed
by the summary plan descriptions which | have eseio

Please be advised that Chefs Warehouse, the Conapahniys subsidiaries and affiliated companiesidseto hire only legal workers (those
individuals who, by law, have the right to worktire United States). As a condition of employmerhwhe Company, you will be required to
show proof of work eligibility to the Human ResoescDepartment no later than your first schedulgdofi@mployment. Enclosed is a copy of
Form I-9 showing the necessary documentation negdedmplete Section 2 on the forRlease bring this necessary documentation with
you on your start date.



On your first day, we ask that you report to ouret@use at 1300 Viele Avenue, Bronx, New York. Hgtttime | will provide you with
additional documentation necessary to begin yowpleyment.

As evidence of your acceptance of this positioeapé sign and return to fimemediately this offer letter US Mail and the enclosiéw Hire
Paperwork . However, this letter does not establish a cohwhemployment for any duration. You or the Compamay terminate your
employment at any time without notice. We are debig that you have decided to join the team at €Wédrehouse. We are confident that y
employment with us can make a positive contribut@mgiour career and that you, in turn, will helpimigttaining our corporate vision.

Sincerely,

Michael G. DeCat:
Presiden
Chefs Warehous

MD/mm
Cc: Christopher Pappi
Enclosure

Accepted/s/ Patricia M. Lecouras
Start Dat 3-5-2007




Exhibit 10.17

“chefswAREHOUSE

Part of the Dairyland Family of Companics

February 18, 2011

Alexandros Aldous

c/o Sarah Whittington

4 Lafayette Court, Apartment 3D
Greenwich, CT 06830
alexandros_aldous@yahoo.com
203-585-3331

Dear Alex:

It is my pleasure to offer you the position of Le§arvices Director with The Chef@/arehouse. This letter constitutes our offer. Ridaep ir
mind that this letter and its contents are confidérPlease note that this offer of employmertaatingent upon the successful completion of
background check and drug screen.

The terms of this offer are as follows:

e Weekly salary of $2980.76 ($155,000 annually). Thian exempt positiol

. Bonus Target of 25% of Base Salary (prorated foraieder of 2011)

. Your regular payday is Wednesd

. Health insurance: Employees are currently eligibfegroup insurance on the first of the month faliog 30 days of employment. There
is an employee contribution amount of the premiwasedl on the plan and level of coverage you che

. You are eligible to receive up to 15 vacation dayd 5 sick days during your first year of employmémditional vacation eligibility is
provided for in the Employee Handbook which youl wéceive.

. Other current benefits include 401(k) plan, Grobpr® Term Disability Insurance, Group Life Insurarand Flexible Spending Accour
You will receive full details on all current bertsfivhen you begin your employme

. Employees are also required to sign a confidehtjalior-solicit and invention agreement upon commencemeatnployment

. You represent and warrant that you have been atiths it is the policy and procedures of the Conypa not accept obtain or use any
confidential or trade secret documents, electroeords or information you may have obtained fresxcompetitors. You further
represent and warrant that you have not givenadtbtmpany any confidential documents, electrorgonets, or information you may
have obtained from your former employer and that wdl not disclose or utilize any suc



confidential information in connection with your ployment with the Company. You also warrant andesent that prior to the
commencement of your employment with the Compaay, lyave given to the Company a copy of any confidgty, non-solicit, non-
compete or other agreements you may have had withpsior employers which might impact your abilityperform your duties or
services for the Compan

Your employment with the Company shall be at wiltlaeither you or the Company may terminate the eympént relationship at any
time for any reason with or without prior noticeurfher, nothing contained herein is or shall bestwred as a contract of employment for
a definite period of time

To comply with federal identification requiremests forth by the Department of Homeland Securitd8), it is required that on the first
day of employment you bring with you supporting almentation as listed on Form 1-9 (DHS). Such doausienclude a driver’s license,
social security card, birth certificate, or a UPAssport

Your tentative start date will be March 7, 20

If this offer is acceptable, please sign this tedtied return it to us for our files.

We look forward to having you join The Chefs’ Waneise.

Sincerely, ACCEPTED By Alexandros Aldou:
/sl Patricia M. Lecouras /s/ Alexandros Aldous
Date:

March 7, 2011

Patricia M. Lecoura

Executive Vice President, Human Resoul



Exhibit 10.33
EXECUTION COPY

AMENDMENT NO. 3
Dated as of November 30, 2012
to
CREDIT AGREEMENT
Dated as of April 25, 2012

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 3 (this “ Amendmeri) is made as of November 30, 2012 by and amongylzeid USA Corporation, a
New York corporation” Dairyland”), The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, a Delaxe limited liability company (* CW MidAtlantic "),
Bel Canto Foods, LLC, a New York limited liabilisgpmpany (“ Bel Cantd), The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, a Delawianited
liability company (“.CW West Coag}, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, ad&ehre limited liability company (* CW Floridaand,
together with Dairyland, CW Mid-Atlantic, Bel Canémd CW West Coast, the “ BorrowéJsthe financial institutions listed on the signed
pages hereof and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., asrstnative Agent (the “ Administrative Aget)t under that certain Credit Agreement
dated as of April 25, 2012 by and among the Borrewhe other Loan Parties party thereto, the Lended the Administrative Agent (as
amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise raddifom time to time, the * Credit AgreeméhtCapitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined herein shall have the respeatiganings given to them in the Credit Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested that theisggu.enders and the Administrative Agent agreeddain amendments to
the Credit Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the Lenders party heretbthe Administrative Agent have so agreed on theteand conditions set
forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premisédah above, the terms and conditions contaire@in, and other good a
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficieoicyhich are hereby acknowledged, the Borrowdss Ltenders party hereto and the
Administrative Agent hereby agree to enter inte thinendment.

1. Amendments to the Credit Agreemefiffective as of the date of satisfaction of tbaditions precedent set forth_in Section 2
below, the parties hereto agree that the referentand (iv) Holdings and its Subsidiaries may makg other Restricted Payment, so long as
the aggregate amount of all such Restricted Paysweatle pursuant to this clause (tyring any Fiscal Year does not exceed $1,000,000”
appearing in Section 6.08(af the Credit Agreement is hereby amended andtegkia its entirety to read as follows:

“(iv) the Loan Parties and their Subsidiaries makmRestricted Payments payable solely in the fafrtheir Equity Interests
pursuant to and in accordance with employment ageeés, bonus plans, stock option plans, or otheefiteplans for existing, new and
former management, directors, employees and camdslof the Loan Parties and their Subsidiaries(@ndoldings and its Subsidiaries
may make any other Restricted Payment, so longeaaggregate amount of all such Restricted Paymeadie pursuant to this clause (v)
during any Fiscal Year does not exceed $1,00"




2. Conditions of EffectivenessThe effectiveness of this Amendment is subje¢héoconditions precedent that (i) the
Administrative Agent shall have received countetgaf this Amendment duly executed by the Borrowtits Required Lenders and the
Administrative Agent, (ii) the Administrative Ageshall have received counterparts of the ConsahRaaffirmation attached as Exhibit A
hereto duly executed by the Loan Guarantors andh@ Administrative Agent shall have received payt and/or reimbursement of the
Administrative Agent’s and its affiliates’ fees aaxpenses (including, to the extent invoiced inrnaoice dated on or prior to the date hereof,
fees and expenses of counsel for the Administraitiyent) in connection with this Amendment.

3. Representations and Warranties of the Borroweexch Borrower hereby represents and warrantsllasvé:

(a) This Amendment and the Credit Agreement as fieadhereby constitute legal, valid and bindingigalions of such Borrower
and are enforceable against such Borrower in aaooelwith their terms, subject to applicable baptay, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ riglgenerally and subject to general principles oftggregardless of whether considered in a
proceeding in equity or at law.

(b) As of the date hereof and after giving effectite terms of this Amendment, (i) no Default hesusred and is continuing and
(i) the representations and warranties of the LBarties set forth in the Credit Agreement, as aledrnereby, are true and correct in all
material respects (it being understood and agtestcany representation or warranty which by iteiteis made as of a specified date shall be
required to be true and correct only as of suckifipd date).

4. Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreement

(a) Upon the effectiveness hereof, each referemteet Credit Agreement in the Credit Agreementroyr ather Loan Document sh
mean and be a reference to the Credit Agreemearhasded hereby.

(b) Each Loan Document and all other documentguments and agreements executed and/or delivereshinection therewith
shall remain in full force and effect and are hgredtified and confirmed.

(c) Except with respect to the subject matter higtbe execution, delivery and effectiveness of imendment shall not operate as
a waiver of any right, power or remedy of the Adistirative Agent or the Lenders, nor constitute &esof any provision of the Credit
Agreement, the Loan Documents or any other docusnergtruments and agreements executed and/oedadivn connection therewith.

5. Governing Law This Amendment shall be construed in accordaritteamd governed by the law of the State of Newkyor

6. Headings Section headings in this Amendment are includeeih for convenience of reference only and sthatliconstitute a
part of this Amendment for any other purpose.



7. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed by one or moteeparties hereto on any number of separate cganmte, ani
all of said counterparts taken together shall ol to constitute one and the same instrumentagiges delivered by facsimile or PDF shall
have the same force and effect as manual signadete®gred in person.

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been dulscexed as of the day and year first above written.

DAIRYLAND USA CORPORATION

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

THE CHEF¢ WAREHOUSE MIC-ATLANTIC, LLC

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

BEL CANTO FOODS, LLC

By: /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

THE CHEF¢ WAREHOUSE WEST COAST, LL(

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

THE CHEF¢ WAREHOUSE OF FLORIDA, LLC

By: /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

Signature Page to Amendment No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chef’ Warehouse, Incet al



JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
individually as a Lender, as the Swingline Lenderthe
Issuing Bank and as Administrative Agt

By: /s/ Patricia T. Stone
Name: Patricia T. Ston
Title: Authorized Officer

Signature Page to Amendment No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chef’ Warehouse, Incet al



GE CAPITAL BANK, formerly known as GE CAPITAL
FINANCIAL INC.,
as a Lende

By: /s/ Heather-Leigh Glade
Name: Heathe-Leigh Glade
Title: Duly Authorized Signator

Signature Page to Amendment No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chef’ Warehouse, Incet al



WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lende

By: /s/ Karen F. Booth
Name: Karen F. Boott
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

Signature Page to Amendment No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chef’ Warehouse, Incet al



BMO HARRIS FINANCING, INC.,
as a Lende

By: /s/ Philip Langheim

Name: Philip Langheimr
Title: Managing Directo

Signature Page to Amendment No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chef’ Warehouse, Incet al



BRANCH BANKING AND TRUST COMPANY,
as a Lende

By: /s/ Kenneth M. Blackwell

Name: Kenneth M. Blackwel
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

Signature Page to Amendment No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chef’ Warehouse, Incet al



EXHIBIT A

Consent and Reaffirmation

Each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges reskgptopy of the foregoing Amendment No. 3 to @rédreement with respe
to that certain Credit Agreement dated as of Novam3, 2012 (as the same may be amended, ressafgiiemented or otherwise modified
from time to time, the “ Credit Agreementby and among Dairyland USA Corporation, a Newk oorporation (* Dairyland), The Chefs’
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, a Delaware limiteddiity company (* CW MidAtlantic "), Bel Canto Foods, LLC, a New York limited
liability company (“_Bel Cantd), The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, a Deladianited liability company (* CW West Coa4t and Thi
Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, a Delaware lirditability company (* CW Floridd and, together with Dairyland, CW Mid-Atlantic, Be
Canto and CW West Coast the “ Borrow8rghe other Loan Parties party thereto, the Les@dead JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent (the “ Administrative Aget)t which Amendment No. 3 to Credit Agreement isebas of November 30, 2012 and is by
and among the Borrowers, the financial institutibsted on the signature pages thereof and the Adtnative Agent (the * Amendmetit
Capitalized terms used in this Consent and Readfion and not defined herein shall have the meanjigen to them in the Credit Agreement.
Without in any way establishing a course of deabgghe Administrative Agent or any Lender, eaclhaf undersigned consents to the
Amendment and reaffirms the terms and conditionth@foan Guaranty and any other Loan Documentwgddy it and acknowledges and
agrees that the Loan Guaranty and each and evelnyleian Document executed by the undersigned inextion with the Credit Agreement
remains in full force and effect and is hereby fieakd, ratified and confirmed. All references ke tCredit Agreement contained in the above-
referenced documents shall be a reference to theéitGxgreement as so modified by the Amendmentamnthe same may from time to time
hereafter be amended, modified or restated.

Dated November 30, 2012

[Signature Page Follow:



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Consent and Reaffirmatias been duly executed as of the day and year atritven.

DAIRYLAND USA CORPORATION

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

THE CHEF¢ WAREHOUSE MIC-ATLANTIC, LLC

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

BEL CANTO FOODS, LLC

By: /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

THE CHEF¢ WAREHOUSE WEST COAST, LL(

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

THE CHEF¢ WAREHOUSE OF FLORIDA, LLC

By: /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

Signature Page to Consent and Reaffirmation to Atmemt No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chef’ Warehouse, Incet al



THE CHEF¢ WAREHOUSE, INC.

By: /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

CHEFS WAREHOUSE PARENT, LLC

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

MICHAEL’S FINER MEATS, LLC

By: /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

MICHAEL'’S FINER MEATS HOLDINGS, LLC

By:  /s/ John D. Austin

Name: John D. Austir
Title: CFO

Signature Page to Consent and Reaffirmation to Almemt No. 3 to
Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2012
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inet al



Exhibit 10.38

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT OF LEASE
FOR 200240 FOOD CENTER DRIVE
HUNTS POINT, THE BRONX

This Amendment to Agreement of Lease is dated aadeneffective as of February 27, 2013 between Tityeo€New York, a
municipal corporation of the State of New York,iagtby and through its Department of Small Busirgssrices, having an office located at
110 William Street, New York, NY 10038, as “Landigrand Dairyland HP LLC, a limited liability compg organized under the laws of the
State of New York having its principal office atQlBast Ridge Road, Ridgefield, CT 06877, as “Tena\it capitalized terms used herein but
not otherwise defined herein shall have the respeateanings ascribed thereto in the Lease (arelbfierein below).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant entered into thase dated as of April 26, 2012 with respect ttagepremises generally
known as a portion of 200-240 Food Center DrivarBt New York, located in the Hunts Point Food Blisttion Center (the “Lease”); and

WHEREAS, Section 13.01(a) of the Lease requires #ta minimum, Tenant shall invest Seven Millallars ($7,000,000) into
the Project, pertaining to the Required Work; and

WHEREAS, Tenant has proposed that it will investaggregate of Eighteen Million Dollars ($18,000,p0fo the Project,
pertaining to the Required Work (the “Increasedéttlnvestment”); and

WHEREAS, in consideration of Tenasiforoposed Increased Project Investment, Landigmekes that it will promptly take measu
to pass through to Tenant the sales and use tamptioms available to Landlord under New York Taxm 8ection 1115(a)(15) with respect to
materials incorporated into the Building in conmattwith the Required Work; and

WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant are prepared tooeiyntheir commitments with respect to the Incrda@®mject Investment
and the granting of certain tax exemptions for Tefr@o this Amendment to the Lease.

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby mutually covenanted agreed by and between the Landlord and Tenanthtbdtease is amended as
follows:

1. Section 13.01(a) of the Lease is hereby ametalsdbstitute Eighteen Million Dollars ($18,000,0@0 place of Seven Million
Dollars ($7,000,000



2. New Section 5.07 to the Lease is hereby insertedad as follows

(&) “In consideration of Tenant's agreement toltit@eased Project Investment (i) Landlord agregsags through to
Tenant the exemption from payment of sales and eosgting use taxes which Tenant or its contragtor&ing on
Tenant’s behalf or their subcontractors would cadig have to pay in connection with the Required/ and (ii)
Tenant agrees that, except for the Required Waikher Tenant nor any Subtenant (nor their contract
subcontractors or materialmen) may claim any gabegxemption solely by virtue of the City’s ownt@gsof the
Premises with respect to any other constructiorkwedher performed by Tenant or by Subtenants, wvhic
disqualification from sales tax benefits shall ird# Optional Work; an

(b) Landlord shall, simultaneously with the exeeontof this Amendment, provide Tenant with a lettem a Deputy
Mayor of Landlord or from the Office of Corporati@ounsel (the “Certificate of Exemption”) evidengiexemption
from the imposition of any sales and compensatsgtaxes, pursuant to New York Tax Law Section (&){55),
which exemption benefit is hereby being pa-though to Tenant under this Amendment to the Le

3.  This Amendment to the Lease constitutes theeeAtnendment, and all other representations thgtlmse been made by the
Landlord and Tenant in connection with the subijeatter hereof are hereby merged herein. This Amentimay not be changed,
modified, altered, waived or terminated except byrigten instrument of change, modification, altera, waiver or termination
executed by Landlord and Tenant. Except as modifezdby all of the terms, covenants and conditsmtgorth in the Lease shall
remain in full force and effec

[signatures on following pag



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have exedtihis Amendment
of the Lease as of the day and year first abovtenri

THE CITY OF NEW YORK

By: /s/ Andrew Schwartz
Deputy Commissioner of tt
Department of Small Business Servi

Approved as to Forn

/sl James McSpiritt
Acting Corporation Counsi

DAIRYLAND HP LLC,
a Delaware limited liability compar

By: DAIRYLAND USA CORPORATION,
A New York corporatior
Sole Member and Manag

By: /s/Alexandros Aldous
Name Alexandros Aldous
Title: General Counst

STATE OF NEW YORK )
:SS.:

COUNTY OF NEW YOREF )

On this 27 day of February, in the year 2013, leefoe, a Notary Public in and for said State, peatpappeared the
Commissioner of the Department of Small Businessi&es of the City of New York, personally knownrtee or proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the individual whos@@as subscribed to within the foregoing instrumeamd acknowledged to me that he exec
the same in his capacity, and that by his signainrdhe instrument, the individual, or the persarbehalf of which the individual acted,
executed the instrument.

/s/ Jung Choi

Notary Public



STATE OF CT )
. SS.:
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELL)

On this 12th day of February, in the year 2013pi®Mme, a Notary Public in and for said State, greally appeared Alex Aldous, personally
known to me or proved to me on the basis of satiefg evidence to be the individual whose nameiissribed to within the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged to me that he exet¢htedame in his capacity, and that by his signaiarthe instrument, the individual, or the
person on behalf of which the individual acted,aied the instrument.

/s/ Chuxiao Maldonado

Notary Public



Exhibit 21

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Entity Name State of Organization
Dairyland USA Corporatio New York
Dairyland HP LLC (1) Delaware

Bel Canto Foods, LLC (1 New York
Chef¢ Warehouse Parent, LL Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse Mi-Atlantic, LLC (2) Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC | Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC (. Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC (: Delaware
Michae’s Finer Meats Holdings, LLC (: Delaware
Michae’s Finer Meats, LLC (3 Delaware

(1) Dairyland HP LLC and Bel Canto Foods, LLC ateolly-owned by Dairyland USA Corporation, whichvidolly-owned by The Chefs’

(@)

(3)

Warehouse, Inc

The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, The @&iaVarehouse West Coast, LLC,The Chefs’ Warehadfigdorida, LLC, The Chefs’
Warehouse Midwest, LLC and Michael's Finer Meatddits, LLC are wholly-owned by Chefs’ Warehousedds, LLC, which is
wholly-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

Michael's Finer Meats, LLC is wholly-owned byidhael’s Finer Meats Holdings, LLC, which is whelhiyvned by Chefs’ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, which is whol-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriino

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-B833974) of The Chefs’ Warehouse,
Inc. of our reports dated March 13, 2013, relatmthe consolidated financial statements and tfez@feness of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting, whichpaar in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Chéfarehouse, Inc. for the fiscal year
ended December 28, 2012.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
BDO USA, LLP
Melville, NY

March 13, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Christopher Pappas, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The Chef’ Warehouse, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsotimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rule 13-15(f) and Rule 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finance&darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentihisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thes&gnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors fersons performing the equivalent
function):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céoptrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and re
financial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Dated: March 13, 2013 /sl Christopher Pappi
By: Christopher Pappas
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
[, John D. Austin, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The Chef’ Warehouse, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report reghmes not contain any untrue statement of a mafadaor omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvesits made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rule 13-15(f) and Rule 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finance&darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentihisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thes&gnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors fersons performing the equivalent
function):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céoptrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and re
financial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Dated: March 13, 2013 /s/ John D. Austit
By: John D. Austin
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accourdi
Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of The Ch&¥grehouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fae ffear ended December 28, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Christophep®as, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 13, 2013 By: /s/ Christopher Pappi
Christopher Pappas
Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement hasrbpeovided to the Company and will be retainedi®y€ompany and furnished to the SEC or
its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of The Ch#¥grehouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fa trear ended December 28, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, John D. Aus@hief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(dmpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 13, 2013 By: /s/ John D. Austil
John D. Austin
Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

A signed original of this written statement hasrbpeovided to the Company and will be retainedi®sy€ompany and furnished to the SEC or
its staff upon reques



